
1 
 

AGENDA 
STATE BOARD OF AGRICULTURE 

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, FOOD, AND FORESTRY 
 
 
Thursday, January 26, 2023            2800 N. Lincoln Blvd. 
10:00 a.m.     Oklahoma City, OK  73105 
 
 
 
 
 
1. Call to Order  
 
2. Roll Call  
 
3. Declaration of a Quorum  
 
4. Introduction of Guests  
 
5. Consideration and Proposed Action on Minutes of Regular Board Meeting of December 7, 

2022. 
 
6. Consideration and Proposed Action on Division Reports  
 

A. Administrative Services – Dan Ridings 
Summary of present financial condition of the agency and monthly activities in the 
following areas: Finance, Human Resources, Fleet Management, Data Processing and 
Agriculture Law Enforcement Investigators.   
 

  B. Laboratory Services – Wade Krivanek 
   Summary of analytical activities, customer contacts, and other pertinent information 

related to laboratory operations. 
 

C. Forestry Services – Mark Goeller 
   Summary of activities and accomplishments in resource protection and rural fire 

defense, forest management and regeneration, water quality, urban forestry, forestry 
education and law enforcement.  Includes statistics on wildfires and law enforcement 
activity and narrative of forestry program highlights for the month. 

 
D. Consumer Protection Services – Kenny Naylor 
 Addresses stop sale orders on insect and disease infested crops, phytosanitary 

certificates issued, insect survey summaries, pesticide registration updates, pesticide 
inspections, seed program and seed laboratory updates, weights and measures reports, 
scanner inspections, grain warehouses and meetings attended by division personnel.  
 



2 
 

 
E. Animal Industry Services – Rod Hall, DVM 

 Addresses information and activities of staff related to control and eradication of 
animal diseases affecting livestock and livestock market audits.  It also addresses 
emergency response preparation and education for response to any outbreak of 
foreign, emerging and/or eradicated disease.  

 
 F.   Wildlife Services – Scott Alls 

   Summary of activities and accomplishments in wildlife damage management to 
protect state resources such as agriculture, property, natural resources, and public 
health and safety from wildlife damage and wildlife threats.  

 
  G. Agricultural Statistics – Troy Marshall  
   Addresses the current crop conditions and livestock inventory numbers.  Also 

included is a report on the number of information requests received, reports released 
during the previous month, reports to be released during the current month, and the 
meetings attended by Division personnel during the previous month. 

 
  H. Market Development Services – Meriruth Cohenour 

   Summary of the accomplishments, projects and events of Ag in the Classroom, 
Agritourism, Communications, Domestic Marketing (Made in Oklahoma, Made in 
Oklahoma Coalition), Diversified Marketing (Farmers Market, Specialty Crop Block 
Grants, Farm to School), International Marketing, Market News and Rural Economic 
Development. 

 
I. Agricultural Environmental Management Services – Teena Gunter 

Executive summary that addresses Swine Feeding Operations, registered poultry 
feeding operations and poultry waste applicators, National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES), plus agricultural composting facilities, and 
Commercial Pet Breeders and Shelters.  Includes numbers and statistics on complaint 
investigations, technical assistance contacts, inspections, enforcement/compliance 
activities and seminars/meetings attended by Division personnel for the month. 
 

J. Office of General Counsel – Teena Gunter 
Summarizes activities of the division, including rules, collections, legal research, 
meetings, support for programs, contracts, employment issues, open records requests, 
farming and ranching incorporations, and informal and formal enforcement actions 
before the Board, district court, and federal court. 
 

K. Food Safety Services – Scott Yates 
Addresses the inspection of meat, poultry, egg, and milk processing facilities to 
determine compliance with regulatory standards. 

 
L. Ag Communications and Outreach Update – Lee Benson 

 
 
 

 
 



3 
 

7. Consideration and Proposed Action on Purchases/Contracts  
  

8.  Consideration and Proposed Action on Cases Resolved by Stipulations  
Consumer Protection Services 

 Ag Solutions, LLC, P. O. Box 729, Satanta, Kansas 
 Arnett Grain & Feed, P. O. Box 1567, Shawnee, Oklahoma 
 Central Custom Ag Aviation, 3195 CR 1140, Hydro, Oklahoma 
 Landmark Outdoor Services, 10901 E. 11TH, Street, Tulsa, Oklahoma  
 Orkin, LLC, 3620 S. Moulton Drive, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 
 Rowdy Lawn, 6300 S. Choctaw Road, Choctaw, Oklahoma 
 Texoma AG, LLC, 1928 Bishop Road, Bowie, Texas 
 Martin Williams, 12250 X Road, Red Rock, Oklahoma 
 
 **Possible Executive Session (if approved by the required number of members present):  

As authorized by the Oklahoma Open Meeting Act in Section 307(B)(8) of Title 25 of the 
Oklahoma Statutes, an executive session may be held for the purpose of “[e]ngaging in 
deliberations or rendering a final or intermediate decision in an individual proceeding 
pursuant to Article II of the Administrative Procedures Act.” 

 
9. Consideration and Proposed Action on Cases Resolved by Consent Order 
 Consumer Protection Services 
 Deterding Aerial, LLC, 701 West Cedar Drive, Pond Creek, Oklahoma 
 Eckles Aircraft, LLC, 330 Airport Lane, Holdenville, Oklahoma 
 Escott Aerial Spraying, 140 Airport Drive, Nowata, Oklahoma 
 
 **Possible Executive Session (if approved by the required number of members present):  

As authorized by the Oklahoma Open Meeting Act in Section 307(B)(8) of Title 25 of the 
Oklahoma Statutes, an executive session may be held for the purpose of “[e]ngaging in 
deliberations or rendering a final or intermediate decision in an individual proceeding 
pursuant to Article II of the Administrative Procedures Act.” 

 
 
10. Consideration and Proposed Action on Proposed Permanent Rules 
 ADMINISTRATIVE OPERATIONS 
 Title 35.  Oklahoma Department of Agriculture, Food, and Forestry 
 Chapter 1. Administrative Operations 
 Subchapter 10. Requirements for Department Programs 
 35:1-10-6. Date of federal regulations incorporated [AMENDED] 
 
 FEES 
 Title 35.  Oklahoma Department of Agriculture, Food, and Forestry 
 Chapter 2. Fees 
 Subchapter 3. Fee Schedules  
 35:2-3-5. Fees for meat inspection overtime [AMENDED] 
 35:2-3-29. General animal industry supply fees [AMENDED] 
 
 AGRICULTURAL PRODUCTS 
 Title 35. Oklahoma Department of Agriculture, Food, and Forestry  
 Chapter 10. Agricultural Products  



4 
 

 Subchapter 1. General Provisions  
 35:10-1-3. Handbook and publication editions [AMENDED] 
     
 ANIMAL INDUSTRY 
 Title 35. Oklahoma Department of Agriculture, Food, and Forestry  
 Chapter 15. Animal Industry  
 Subchapter 9. Livestock Special Sales 
 Part 3. Livestock Special Sales 
 35:15-9-7. Application [AMENDED] 
 35:15-9-8. Written records [AMENDED] 
 35:15-9-9. Submission of record sales [AMENDED] 
 Subchapter 13. Testing and Inspection for Disease and Release of Livestock at 

Auction Markets 
 35:15-13-3. General requirements for a livestock auction market [AMENDED] 
 35:15-13-6. Movement of livestock through livestock auction markets [AMENDED] 
 35:15-13-7. Specific approval of livestock auction markets [AMENDED] 
 Subchapter 22. Swine Pseudorabies and Brucellosis 
 Part 7. Requirements for Swine Exhibitions 
 35:15-22-71. Exhibition requirements [AMENDED] 
 Subchapter 34. Feral Swine 
 35:15-34-13. License fees [AMENDED] 
 Subchapter 44. Farmed Cervidae 
 35:15-44-19. Entry and export requirements [AMENDED] 
 35:15-44-20. Animal identification requirements [AMENDED] 
 Subchapter 47. Chronic Wasting Disease (CWD) in Cervids 
 Part 7. Interstate Movement Requirements 
 35:15-47-18. Minimum CWD requirements for interstate movement of cervids 

[AMENDED] 
 
 WATER QUALITY 
 Title 35. Oklahoma Department of Agriculture, Food, and Forestry 
 Chapter 17. Water Quality 
 Subchapter 5. Registered Poultry Feeding Operations 
 35:17-5-3. Registration, Nutrient Management Plan (NMP) required [AMENDED] 
 35:17-5-5. Nutrient Management Plan [AMENDED] 
 APPENDIX B. Nutrient Management Plan Requirements When Using Poultry Litter 

and Other Nutrient Resources [NEW] 
 
 FORESTRY 
 Title 35. Oklahoma Department of Agriculture, Food, and Forestry 
 Chapter 20. Forestry 
 Subchapter 3. Rural Fire Protection Program Fund Act 
 Part 3. Financial Assistance Program 
 35:20-3-9. Determination of financial assistance program grant amount [AMENDED] 
 35:20-3-12. Financial Assistance Program grant administration [AMENDED] 
 
 
 
 



5 
 

 CONSUMER PROTECTION 
 Title 35. Oklahoma Department of Agriculture, Food, and Forestry  
 Chapter 30. Consumer Protection  
 Subchapter 17. Combined Pesticide 
 Part 3. Certification, Conduct of Examinations, and Recertification 
 35:30-17-4. Examination of applicants for certification [AMENDED] 
 Part 5. Prerequisites for Licensing 
 35:30-17-10. Application insurance requirements [AMENDED] 
 Part 10. Minimum Standards for Pesticides 
 35:30-17-22.2. Pesticide enforcement [AMENDED] 
 Part 11. Standards for Application of Pesticide 
 35:30-17-25. Pesticide application by certified applicators, noncertified applicators, 

service technicians, and private applicators [AMENDED] 
 Part 17. Minimum Standards for Termite Work for Preconstruction (Pretreats) and 

New Construction 
 35:30-17-73. Concrete Slabs [AMENDED] 
 Subchapter 45. Scrap Metal Dealers 
 35:30-45-9. Purchases, sales, and records [AMENDED] 
        
 FOOD SAFETY 
 Title 35. Oklahoma Department of Agriculture, Food, and Forestry  
 Chapter 37. Food Safety 
 Subchapter 1. Eggs  
 35:37-1-2. Methods of grading [AMENDED] 
 Subchapter 3. Meat Inspection 
 Part 1. General Provisions   
 35:37-3-1. Incorporation by reference of federal meat inspection regulations  
 [AMENDED] 
 35:37-3-3. Deleted regulations [AMENDED] 
 Subchapter 5. Poultry Products Inspection  
 Part 1. General Provisions   
 35:37-5-1. Definitions and incorporation by reference of federal poultry inspection             

regulations [AMENDED] 
 35:37-5-2. Deleted regulations and exemptions [AMENDED] 
 Subchapter 13. Milk and Milk Products 
 35:37-13-2. Incorporations by reference [AMENDED] 
 35:37-13-7. Inspection and permit fees [AMENDED] 
 35:37-13-8. Incidental sales [NEW] 
 Subchapter 15. Organic Products  
 35:37-15-2. The Adoption of NOP Standards [AMENDED] 
 Subchapter 17. Produce safety  
 35:37-17-3. Incorporation by reference of federal produce safety regulations 

[AMENDED] 
 Subchapter 19. Homemade Food  
 35:37-19-2. Definitions [AMENDED] 
 35:37-19-3. Sale and delivery requirements [AMENDED] 
 35:37-19-6. Registration fee [NEW] 
 
 



6 
 

 MARKET DEVELOPMENT 
 Title 35. Oklahoma Department of Agriculture, Food, and Forestry  
 Chapter 40. Market Development 
 Subchapter 17. Agritourism 
 35:40-17-2. Definitions [AMENDED] 
 35:40-17-3. Eligibility and registration [AMENDED] 
 35:40-17-4. Additional requirements for hunting facilities [AMENDED] 
 35:40-17-6. Additional requirements for winery and brewery facilities [AMENDED] 
 35:40-17-7. Additional requirements for petting farm facilities [NEW] 
 35:40-17-8. Additional requirements for pumpkin picking facilities [NEW] 
 35:40-17-9. Additional requirements for maze facilities [NEW] 
 35:40-17-10. Additional requirements for Christmas tree facilities [NEW] 
 35:40-17-11. Additional requirements for bison facilities [NEW] 
 Subchapter 21. Oklahoma Healthy Food Financing Program 
 35:40-21-3. Applicant eligibility [AMENDED] 
 Subchapter 23. Made in Oklahoma 
 35:40-23-2. Definitions [AMENDED] 
 35:40-23-3. Applicant eligibility [AMENDED] 
 35:40-23-4. Product eligibility [AMENDED] 
 35:40-23-4.1. Service eligibility [NEW] 
 35:40-23-5. Application [AMENDED] 
 35:40-23-6. Logo [AMENDED] 
 35:40-23-7. Renewal and revocation [AMENDED] 
 35:40-23-8. Product endorsement [AMENDED] 
 
 AGRICULTURE POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM 
 Title 35. Oklahoma Department of Agriculture, Food, and Forestry  
 Chapter 44. Agriculture Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
 Subchapter 1. Agriculture Environmental Permitting and AGPDES 
 Part 1. General Provisions   
 35:44-1-3. Date of federal regulations incorporated [REVOKED] 
 Subchapter 3. Permit Conditions and Requirements 
 35:44-3-3. Date of federal regulations incorporated [REVOKED] 
 
 AQUACULTURE 
 Title 35. Oklahoma Department of Agriculture, Food, and Forestry 
 Chapter 50. Aquaculture 
 35:50-1-30. Initial licensing requirements [AMENDED] 
 35:50-1-31. Renewal licensing requirements [AMENDED] 
 
 COMMERCIAL PET BREEDERS AND ANIMAL SHELTERS 
 Title 35. Oklahoma Department of Agriculture, Food, and Forestry  
 Chapter 55. Commercial Pet Breeders and Animal Shelters 
 Subchapter 3. Standards of Care 
 35:55-3-1. Incorporation by reference [AMENDED] 
 Subchapter 9. Seizure and Impoundment [NEW] 
 35:55-9-1. Seizure and impoundment [NEW] 
 



7 
 

 **Possible Executive Session (if approved by the required number of members present):  
As authorized by the Oklahoma Open Meeting Act in Section 307(B)(8) of Title 25 of the 
Oklahoma Statutes, an executive session may be held for the purpose of “[e]ngaging in 
deliberations or rendering a final or intermediate decision in an individual proceeding 
pursuant to Article II of the Administrative Procedures Act.” 

  
 
11. Next Board meeting scheduled for Wednesday, March 8, 2023, at Oklahoma City. 
 
12. Old Business 
 
13. New Business – Under the Open Meeting Act, this agenda item is authorized only for 

matters not known about or which could not have been reasonably foreseen prior to the 
time of posting the agenda or any revised agenda. 

 
14. Adjournment 
 
 
 *Members of the Board and staff from ODAFF may join for lunch.  Board Members, staff, and the public may 

discuss program issues during lunch; no votes or action will be taken during the luncheon. 



1 
 

 
 

OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS 
OF THE STATE BOARD OF AGRICULTURE 

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, FOOD, AND FORESTRY 
 
 
 

Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 
December 7, 2022 

 
 The Oklahoma State Board of Agriculture met in regular session at 10:01 a.m., December 7, 
2022, in the Agriculture Building, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma.  Written notice of this meeting was 
filed with the Secretary of State.  A notice was posted at the Agriculture Building 24 hours prior to the 
meeting setting forth thereon the date, time, place and agenda for the meeting and an agenda was 
posted on the agency website. 
 
 
 Members Present: Joe Farris 
  Brent Bolen 
  Blayne Arthur 
  Clay Burtrum 
  Nocona Cook 
 
  
 Others Present: Kandi Batts, Executive Secretary 
  JanLee Rowlett, Deputy Commissioner 
  Dan Ridings, Director, Administrative Services 
  Wade Krivanek, Director, Laboratory Services 
  Andy James, Forestry Services 
 Kenny Naylor, Director, Consumer Protection Services 
 Dr. Rod Hall, Director, Animal Industry Services 
 Scott Alls, Director, Wildlife Services 
 Meriruth Cohenour, Director, Market Development 
 Teena Gunter, Director, Agricultural Environmental  
  Management Services & Office of General Counsel 
 Scott Yates, Director, Food Safety Services 
 Audrey Ochsner, Public Engagement Specialist 
 Lee Benson, Public Information Officer 
 Devin Morton, Ag Youth Council Member 
 Jason Murray, Governor’s Office 
  
 
 
 
 Mrs. Arthur called the meeting to order, and a quorum was declared. 
 
 
 
 



2 
 

 
 A motion was made by Mr. Cook, seconded by Mr. Bolen, to approve the minutes of the 
regular meeting of October 26, 2022, as presented. 
 
 The vote was as follows: 
 
 Farris Aye 
 Bolen Aye 
 Arthur Aye 
 Burtrum Abstain 
 Cook Aye 
  
 The motion carried. 
   
 A motion was made by Mr. Bolen, seconded by Mr. Burtrum, to approve the division reports 
as submitted and amended. 
 
 The vote was as follows: 
 
 Farris Aye 
 Bolen Aye 
 Arthur Aye 
 Burtrum Aye 
 Cook Aye 
 
 The motion carried. 
 
 A motion was made by Mr. Burtrum, seconded by Mr. Farris, to approve the following 
purchases/contracts as submitted and contained on pages 4 and 5. 
 
 The vote was as follows: 
 
 Farris Aye 
 Bolen Aye 
 Arthur Aye 
 Burtrum Aye 
 Cook Aye 
  
 The motion carried. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 
 

 
 
 
 A motion was made by Mr. Cook, seconded by Mr. Burtrum, to approve the Proposed Action 
on Stipulations as submitted and contained on pages 6 and 7. 
 
 Consumer Protection Services 

4 Star Treatment Pest Control, P. O. Box 3802, Bartlesville, Oklahoma     
Cedar Ridge Aviation, LLC, P. O. Box 37, Knox City, Texas 
Blake Hall, 24736 E. 670 Road, Wagoner, Oklahoma 
Tony Kodesh, 4800 CR 110, Red Rock, Oklahoma   
Lawnpro Outdoor Services, 7870 E. 126TH ST., S. Apt 312, Bixby, Oklahoma 
Carolyn Leck, 814 S. Duane Ave., El Reno, Oklahoma 
James Neal, 5600 Free Ferry Road, Fort Smith, Arkansas 
Total Environment, Inc., 16301 N. Rockwell Ave. Edmond, Oklahoma 
Tri-Rotor Services, LLC, 9170 E. Road 2, Ulysses, Kansas 

  
 **Possible Executive Session (if approved by the required number of members present):  As authorized 

by the Oklahoma Open Meeting Act in Section 307(B)(8) of Title 25 of the Oklahoma Statutes, an 
executive session may be held for the purpose of “[e]ngaging in deliberations or rendering a final or 
intermediate decision in an individual proceeding pursuant to Article II of the Administrative Procedures 
Act.” 

 
 The vote was as follows: 
 
 Farris Aye 
 Bolen Aye 
 Arthur Aye 
 Burtrum Aye 
 Cook Aye 
  
 The motion carried. 
 
 
 There is no Old business presented for the Board to take action upon.  Mr. Bolen moved, Mr. 
Farris seconded, that the meeting be adjourned at 11:19 a.m.  
 
 
 
 
 By  
 President 
 
 
 ATTEST:  
      Executive Secretary 



4 
 

DECEMBER 7, 2022 BOARD MEETING 
 
PURCHASES/CONTRACTS 

Administrative Services 
FY23 – Hard Drives and Additional Ram (Upgrading Components) - $6,000.00 
Purchase of Solid State Hard Drives and Additional Ram to upgrade thirty (30) computers; this is 
in an efforts to update the current computers that are running slow. This a continuation of a 
previous project that is already underway and has been successful in extending the life of previous 
computers that were aging out. 
 
FY23 – Security Camera Upgrade - $63,000.00 
This purchase is to upgrade the entire ODAFF security camera system infrastructure to IP video 
surveillance cameras. This will allow us to purchase Hanwha Techwin cameras, VMS 
Salient/Complete view software. This entails the replacement of (14) fixed analog cameras, (14) 
2mp IP cameras, (2) Analog PTZ outdoor cameras, (2) IP PTZ Cameras, (5) 2mp indoor cameras, 
(1) Multisensor 360 degree camera, and (14) 5mp exterior bullet cameras all within the OMES 
state standard.  
The current system is outdated, and many cameras do not function, and replacement parts have 
become a significant issue. Without this upgrade we will continue to use this outdated system 
which may be problematic in instances of a security breach as the current hardware and software is 
unreliable at times. We have recently had instances of vandalism to State property, we were unable 
to utilize on the security cameras that are currently in place to help in this matter.  

 
 
Animal Industry Services 
A contract between Iowa State University and Oklahoma Department of Agriculture, Food and 
Forestry (ODAFF).  We will receive $15,000 from the USDA through ISU to support ODAFF as 
US Swine Health Improvement Plan (US SHIP) Official State Agency. 
 
 
Food Safety Services 
VWR – $5,550.00 
Purchase 47CF Refrigerator for Dairy Lab.  This is a double sliding door refrigerator to hold 
reagents and prepared media.  With the increased volume of meat and dairy samples, we are 
having to share a walk-in refrigerator. This will be 100% reimbursed from the Dairy Grant for 
equipment.   
 
 
Forestry Services 
FY23- $200,000 - Purchase firefighting equipment and clothing for resale to Rural Fire 
Departments through the Revolving Equipment Fund. This program allows firefighters to buy 
equipment and personal protective equipment at a reduced cost. Justification: Without this 
approval and this program, rural fire department costs to purchase necessary equipment and 
supplies would increase. 
 
 
 
 



5 
 

Market Development Services 
FY2023 – National Restaurant Association Show – booth rental – cost share basis for 3 Made 
in Oklahoma companies - $15,475.00 
 
FY2023 – Veteran/Young Farmer Grant – Wyatt Catron - $10,000.00 
 
FY2023 – Agriculture Event Grant – Oklahoma Youth Expo – Ag Mechanics Wood & Tractor 
Division - $6,000.00 
 
FY2023 – Purchase of Oklahoma Grown Farmers Market bags for OK Grown Markets. - 
$23,000.00 
 
FY2023 – USDA has provided a Local Food for Schools (LFS) Grant to ODAFF with the 
objective of providing food assistance purchases of domestic local foods for distribution to 
schools. Effective: 11/1/22 - 4/30/24 - $3,002,891.00. 
Justification: This project is entirely funded by the USDA Agricultural Marketing Service Local 
Food for Schools Cooperative Agreement Program (LFS). With funding made available 
through USDA’s Commodity Credit Corporation, USDA will help states deal with the challenges 
of supply chain disruptions brought on by the pandemic. Through the LFS program, USDA will 
award funds to states for food assistance purchases of domestic local foods for distribution to 
schools. This program will strengthen the food system for schools by helping to build a fair, 
competitive, and resilient local food chain, and expand local and regional markets with an 
emphasis on purchasing from historically underserved producers and processors. If this proposed 
expense is not approved and therefore the project is not completed, the State not only loses money 
immediately that is important to the school districts throughout the state, but also runs the risk of 
not being awarded money from the USDA Agricultural Marketing Service in the future. 
 
 
Wildlife Services 
$158,000 - ODAFF Wildlife Services is requesting approval to purchase (3) 2022 Ford F150 Crew 
Cab 4x4 truck and (1) Chevrolet C1500 Silverado 4x4 truck.  These are replacements to the fleet 
of vehicles that have high mileage and will used for field staff in completing their duties. Not 
approving will result in excessive vehicle repairs. 
 

https://www.usda.gov/ccc






Oklahoma Department of Agriculture, 
Food & Forestry 

January 26, 2023, Board Report 

Administrative Services

A-1



Investigative Services 

A-2

• Investigative Services received an award of 
appreciation from the Osage County Sheriff’s Office 
for excellent work done on cases in Osage county 
by three of our officers: 
• Doug Elliott
• Ryan Hensley 
• Jamie Wilson



Investigative Services 

A-3



Administrative Services – Investigative Services

A-4



Administrative Services – Investigative Services

A-5

• Auto Vehicle Locators, (AVL), are now installed on 
126 of our vehicles.

• Procurement audit was recently completed
• Report stated ODAFF significantly complied with the 

Central Purchasing Act and the Oklahoma Administrative 
Code 260 section 115

• This successful audit allows for the expansion purchasing 
program



A-6
Note: The amounts above include fund 700, Commodity Storage Indemnity 
Fund, which had a balance of $11,273,621 as of 12/31/2022.

Available Cash at Month End per Allotment Budget & 
Available Cash Report Fiscal Year 2020-2023
Months Ending: July 2019 – December 2022

$2
5.

3

$2
1.

9

$2
1.

0

$1
9.

1

$1
9.

4

$1
9.

8

$1
9.

9

$1
9.

9

$1
9.

9

$2
0.

7

$2
1.

3

$2
2.

2

$2
0.

9

$2
7.

5

$3
4.

3

$2
5.

6

$2
4.

7

$2
9.

3

$2
8.

7

$2
8.

9

$2
9.

8

$2
9.

0

$2
6.

5

$2
6.

5

$2
7.

3

$2
8.

2

$3
2.

4

$3
3.

0

$3
0.

3

$3
0.

9

$3
1.

1

$3
1.

5

$3
1.

9

$3
1.

8

$3
2.

0

$3
1.

3

$3
2.

3

$3
2.

3

$3
1.

7

$4
1.

4

$4
3.

0

$3
5.

5

$3
2.

7

$3
1.

8

$3
3.

4 $3
6.

3

$0

$5

$10

$15

$20

$25

$30

$35

$40

$45

$50

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Avg

Do
lla

rs
 in

 M
ill

io
ns

FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023



Administrative Services - Finance

A-7

• Cash balance as of 12/31/2022 was $33.34 million 
compared to $31.51 million as of 12/31/2021.
• Increase of $1.8 million from the prior year and is primarily 

attributed to the following:
• Increase in appropriations and appropriated cash for 

increases in legislative directed payments
• Timing of grant receipts



A-8

Total Revenues, Expenses, Transfers In & Out
July – December 2022

$9,735,930

$26,987,652

$36,723,582
$35,801,094

$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

$20,000,000

$25,000,000

$30,000,000

$35,000,000

$40,000,000

July - Dec 22 - Revenues July - Dec 22 - Expenses

Revenues Appropriations Expenses Transfers Out



Total Revenue by Month 
July 2019 – December 2022

A-9

$1
.9

$1
.9

$0
.9

$0
.7

$1
.8

$1
.3

$1
.3

$1
.1

$1
.9

$1
.7

$1
.2

$2
.8

$1
.5

$1
.6

$2
.7

$1
.6

$0
.6

$5
.6

$1
.6

$0
.8

$2
.2

$2
.2

$2
.1

$1
.6 $1

.8 $2
.0

$1
.3

$2
.4

$1
.3

$1
.7

$2
.3

$1
.3

$0
.8

$1
.5 $1

.6

$2
.2

$1
.1

$2
.3

$1
.6

$2
.1

$2
.1

$1
.6

$1
.2

$1
.7

$1
.1

$1
.6

$0.0

$1.0

$2.0

$3.0

$4.0

$5.0

$6.0

Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Average

$’
s i

n 
M

ill
io

ns

FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023

Note: November 2020 includes a $4.2 million pass thru 
payment from Oklahoma Emergency Management 
payable to the US Forest Services for the 2018 Oklahoma 
fires.



Revenue By Division July – December 2022

A-10

Division 
December 2022 

Revenue

Fiscal Year to Date 
Thru 12/31/2022 

Revenue
Admin. Svcs. 601                           196,490                    
General Counsel 5,000                        30,145                      
AEMS 2,250                        139,822                    
Stats -                            -                            
Forestry 68,761                      515,433                    
Animal Ind. 24,606                      411,064                    
Mkt. Dev. 222,845                    757,252                    
CPS 598,214                    4,752,628                 
Wildlife 200                           99,550                      
Food Safety 69,873                      2,164,083                 
Ag. Lab 128,642                    595,841                    
DIVISION TOTAL  (see division receipts graph below) 1,120,993                 9,662,308                 

-                            
Commodity Storage Indemnity 16,408                      92,830                      
Appropriations 3,095,517                 26,987,652               
AGENCY TOTAL 4,232,918                 36,742,789               

OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, FOOD AND FORESTRY
PROGRAM REVENUE SUMMARY

12/31/2022

Note: Clearing fund, 79901, is not included in the above table.


12 2022

								OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, FOOD AND FORESTRY								1/13/23 11:47

								PROGRAM REVENUE SUMMARY

								12/31/2022

								Division 		December 2022 Revenue		Fiscal Year to Date Thru 12/31/2022 
Revenue

								Admin. Svcs.		601		196,490		197,091.41		(196,490.17)		0.05%		2%												176,715.86				195,888.93		196,490.17

								General Counsel		5,000		30,145		35,145.00				0.45%		0%												18,200.00				25,145.00		30,145.00

								AEMS		2,250		139,822		142,071.84				0.20%		1%												142,356.18				137,571.84		139,821.84

								Stats		- 0		- 0		- 0				0.00%		0%												- 0				- 0		- 0

								Forestry		68,761		515,433		584,193.98				6.13%		5%												1,677,367.87				446,623.40		515,384.69

								Animal Ind.		24,606		411,064		435,669.69				2.20%		4%												539,413.09				386,457.31		411,063.50

								Mkt. Dev.		222,845		757,252		980,097.90				19.88%		8%												287,663.89				534,454.92		757,300.41

								CPS		598,214		4,752,628		5,350,842.60				53.36%		49%												5,046,977.06				4,229,690.88		4,827,905.07		523007.55

								Wildlife		200		99,550		99,750.00				0.02%		1%												113,685.05				99,350.00		99,550.00

								Food Safety		69,873		2,164,083		2,233,955.46				6.23%		22%												1,577,160.41				2,094,209.54		2,164,082.50

								Ag. Lab		128,642		595,841		724,483.03				11.48%		6%												444,343.03				467,199.79		595,841.41

								DIVISION TOTAL  (see division receipts graph below)		1,120,993		9,662,308		10,783,300.91

												- 0				From this sheet		Per SRD																				- 0

								Commodity Storage Indemnity		16,408		92,830		109,237.35		9,755,137.49		9,735,929.71		SRD Total Annual Total												70,833.00				76422		92,829.79

								Appropriations		3,095,517		26,987,652		30,083,169.00				(19,207.78)		Difference, OK matches Clearing Fund 79901 for Dec												17,816,224.00				8,693,013.61

								AGENCY TOTAL		4,232,918		36,742,789				1,137,400.77		1,086,532.15		SRD Current Month Total

																		(50,868.62)		Difference, OK matches Clearing Fund 79901 for Dec

								Note: Clearing fund, 79901, is not included in the above table.



																								1,137,400.77

																								1,086,532.15

																								50,868.62



		





















Fiscal Year to Date Thru 12/31/2022 	
Revenue	

Admin. Svcs.	General Counsel	AEMS	Stats	Forestry	Animal Ind.	Mkt. Dev.	CPS	Wildlife	Food Safety	Ag. Lab	196490.16999999998	30145	139821.84	0	51	5432.69	411063.5	757252.41	4752628.41	99550	2164082.5	595841.40999999992	December 2022 Revenue	

Admin. Svcs.	General Counsel	AEMS	Stats	Forestry	Animal Ind.	Mkt. Dev.	CPS	Wildlife	Food Safety	Ag. Lab	601.24	5000	2250	0	68761.289999999994	24606.19	222845.49	598214.18999999994	200	69872.960000000006	128641.62	









11 2022

								OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, FOOD AND FORESTRY								1/13/23 11:47

								PROGRAM REVENUE SUMMARY

								11/30/2022

								Division 		November 2022 Revenue		Fiscal Year to Date Thru 11/30/2022 
Revenue

								Admin. Svcs.		2,228		195,889		198,117.27		(195,888.93)		0.14%		2%						176,715.86

								General Counsel		3,295		25,145		28,440.00				0.20%		0%						18,200.00

								AEMS		27,052		137,572		164,624.27				1.64%		2%						142,356.18

								Stats		- 0		- 0		- 0				0.00%		0%						- 0

								Forestry		51,664		446,623		498,287.40				3.13%		5%						1,677,367.87

								Animal Ind.		211,619		386,457		598,076.57				12.83%		5%						539,413.09

								Mkt. Dev.		41,327		534,455		575,781.55				2.51%		6%						287,663.89

								CPS		1,168,806		4,229,691		5,398,496.90				70.85%		49%						5,046,977.06

								Wildlife		29,240		99,350		128,590.00				1.77%		1%						113,685.05

								Food Safety		90,657		2,094,210		2,184,866.57				5.50%		24%						1,577,160.41

								Ag. Lab		(427)		467,200		466,772.97				-0.03%		5%						444,343.03

								Other (Transfers out of Clearing Account)		24,140		(43,616)		(19,476.23)				1.46%		-1%						78,575.50

								DIVISION TOTAL  (see division receipts graph below)		1,649,601		8,572,976		10,222,577.27



								Commodity Storage Indemnity		15,717		76,422		92,138.67		8,649,397.56		8,649,397.56		SRD Total						70,833.00

								Appropriations		3,095,517		23,892,135		26,987,652.00				- 0		Difference						17,816,224.00

								AGENCY TOTAL		4,760,835		32,541,533



								





		





















Fiscal Year to Date Thru 11/30/2022 	
Revenue	

Admin. Svcs.	General Counsel	AEMS	Stats	Forestry	Animal Ind.	Mkt. Dev.	CPS	Wildlife	Food Safety	Ag. Lab	195888.93	25145	137571.84	0	446623.4	386457.31	534454.91999999993	4229690.8800000008	99350	2094209.54	467199.79	November 2022 Revenue	

Admin. Svcs.	General Counsel	AEMS	Stats	Forestry	Animal Ind.	Mkt. Dev.	CPS	Wildlife	Food Safety	Ag. Lab	2228.34	3295	27052.43	0	51664	211619.26	41326.629999999997	1168806.02	29240	90657.03	-426.82	









10 2022 V2

								OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, FOOD AND FORESTRY								1/13/23 11:47

								PROGRAM REVENUE SUMMARY

								10/31/2022

								Division 		October 2022 Revenue		Fiscal Year to Date Thru 10/31/2022 
Revenue

								Admin. Svcs.		49,928		193,661				49,928.19		4.23%		3%						176,715.86

								General Counsel		3,000		21,850						0.25%		0%						18,200.00

								AEMS		72,144		110,519						6.12%		2%						142,356.18

								Stats		- 0		- 0						0.00%		0%						- 0

								Forestry		306,418		394,959						25.97%		6%						1,677,367.87

								Animal Ind.		15,711		174,838						1.33%		3%						539,413.09

								Mkt. Dev.		1,701		493,128						0.14%		7%						287,663.89

								CPS		260,608		3,060,885						22.09%		44%						5,046,977.06

								Wildlife		21,310		70,110						1.81%		1%						113,685.05

								Food Safety		198,154		2,003,553						16.80%		29%						1,577,160.41

								Ag. Lab		128,141		467,627						10.86%		7%						444,343.03

								Other (Transfers out of Clearing Account)		122,607		(67,755)						10.39%		-1%						78,575.50

								DIVISION TOTAL  (see division receipts graph below)		1,179,721		6,923,374		- 0



								Commodity Storage Indemnity		24,000		60,705		6,984,079.18		6,984,079.18		SRD Total								70,833.00

								Appropriations		3,095,517		17,701,101				- 0		Difference								17,816,224.00

								AGENCY TOTAL		4,299,238		24,685,180



								





		





















Fiscal Year to Date Thru 10/31/2022 	
Revenue	

Admin. Svcs.	General Counsel	AEMS	Stats	Forestry	Animal Ind.	Mkt. Dev.	CPS	Wildlife	Food Safety	Ag. Lab	193660.59	21850	110519.41	0	394959.4	174838.05	493128.29	3060884.8600000003	70110	2003552.51	467626.61	October 2022 Revenue	

Admin. Svcs.	General Counsel	AEMS	Stats	Forestry	Animal Ind.	Mkt. Dev.	CPS	Wildlife	Food Safety	Ag. Lab	49928.19	3000	72143.81	0	306417.56	15711	1700.54	260607.55	21310	198154.42	128140.95	









10 2022

								OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, FOOD AND FORESTRY								1/13/23 11:47

								PROGRAM REVENUE SUMMARY

								10/31/2022

								Division 		October 2022 Revenue		Fiscal Year to Date Thru 10/31/2022 
Revenue

								Admin. Svcs.		49,928		193,661				49,928.19		4.23%		3%						176,715.86

								General Counsel		3,000		21,850						0.25%		0%						18,200.00

								AEMS		72,144		110,519						6.12%		2%						142,356.18

								Stats		- 0		- 0						0.00%		0%						- 0

								Forestry		306,418		394,959						25.97%		6%						1,677,367.87

								Animal Ind.		15,711		174,838						1.33%		3%						539,413.09

								Mkt. Dev.		1,701		493,128						0.14%		7%						287,663.89

								CPS		418,164		3,560,413						35.45%		51%						5,046,977.06

								Wildlife		21,310		70,110						1.81%		1%						113,685.05

								Food Safety		198,154		2,003,553						16.80%		29%						1,577,160.41

								Ag. Lab		128,141		467,627						10.86%		7%						444,343.03

								Other (Transfers out of Clearing Account)		(34,950)		(567,284)						-2.96%		-8%						78,575.50

								DIVISION TOTAL  (see division receipts graph below)		1,179,721		6,923,374		- 0



								Commodity Storage Indemnity		24,000		60,705		6,984,079.18		6,984,079.18		SRD Total								70,833.00

								Appropriations		3,095,517		17,701,101				- 0		Difference								17,816,224.00

								AGENCY TOTAL		4,299,238		24,685,180



								





		





















Fiscal Year to Date Thru 10/31/2022 	
Revenue	

Admin. Svcs.	General Counsel	AEMS	Stats	Forestry	Animal Ind.	Mkt. Dev.	CPS	Wildlife	Food Safety	Ag. Lab	193660.59	21850	110519.41	0	394959.4	174838.05	493128.29	3560413.2	70110	2003552.51	467626.61	October 2022 Revenue	

Admin. Svcs.	General Counsel	AEMS	Stats	Forestry	Animal Ind.	Mkt. Dev.	CPS	Wildlife	Food Safety	Ag. Lab	49928.19	3000	72143.81	0	306417.56	15711	1700.54	418164.36	21310	198154.42	128140.95	









09 2022

								OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, FOOD AND FORESTRY								1/13/23 11:47

								PROGRAM REVENUE SUMMARY

								9/30/2022

								Division 		September 2022 Revenue		Fiscal Year to Date Thru 9/30/2022 
Revenue

								Admin. Svcs.		130,033		143,732				130,032.83		8.00%		3%						176,715.86

								General Counsel		1,625		18,850						0.10%		0%						18,200.00

								AEMS		11,792		38,376						0.73%		1%						142,356.18

								Stats		- 0		- 0						0.00%		0%						- 0

								Forestry		32,675		88,542						2.01%		2%						1,677,367.87

								Animal Ind.		39,986		159,127						2.46%		3%						539,413.09

								Mkt. Dev.		111,830		491,428						6.88%		9%						287,663.89

								CPS		801,878		3,142,249						49.33%		55%						5,046,977.06

								Wildlife		6,400		48,800						0.39%		1%						113,685.05

								Food Safety		694,648		1,805,398						42.73%		31%						1,577,160.41

								Ag. Lab		208,167		339,486						12.80%		6%						444,343.03

								Other (Transfers out of Clearing Account)		(413,344)		(532,334)						-25.43%		-9%						78,575.50

								DIVISION TOTAL  (see division receipts graph below)		1,625,690		5,743,654		- 0



								Commodity Storage Indemnity		13,345		36,705		5,780,358.64		5,780,358.64		SRD Total								70,833.00

								Appropriations		3,095,517		17,701,101				- 0		Difference								17,816,224.00

								AGENCY TOTAL		4,734,552		23,481,460



								





		





















Fiscal Year to Date Thru 9/30/2022 	
Revenue	

Admin. Svcs.	General Counsel	AEMS	Stats	Forestry	Animal Ind.	Mkt. Dev.	CPS	Wildlife	Food Safety	Ag. Lab	143732.4	18850	38375.599999999999	0	88541.84	159127.04999999999	491427.75	3142248.84	48800	1805398.09	339485.66	September 2022 Revenue	

Admin. Svcs.	General Counsel	AEMS	Stats	Forestry	Animal Ind.	Mkt. Dev.	CPS	Wildlife	Food Safety	Ag. Lab	130032.83	1625	11792	0	32674.52	39986	111830.26	801878.19	6400	694647.6	208167	









07 2022

								OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, FOOD AND FORESTRY								1/13/23 11:47

								PROGRAM REVENUE SUMMARY

								Jul-22

								Division 		July 2022 Revenue		Fiscal Year to Date Thru 7/31/2022 
Revenue

								Admin. Svcs.		10,455		10,455				10,454.88		0.51%		1%						176,715.86

								General Counsel		16,025		16,025						0.78%		1%						18,200.00

								AEMS		13,994		13,994						0.68%		1%						142,356.18

								Stats		- 0		- 0						0.00%		0%						- 0

								Forestry		49,128		49,128						2.39%		2%						1,677,367.87

								Animal Ind.		108,906		108,906						5.29%		5%						539,413.09

								Mkt. Dev.		126,558		126,558						6.15%		6%						287,663.89

								CPS		909,782		909,782						44.22%		44%						5,046,977.06

								Wildlife		40,200		40,200						1.95%		2%						113,685.05

								Food Safety		785,158		785,158						38.16%		38%						1,577,160.41

								Ag. Lab		80,980		80,980						3.94%		4%						444,343.03

								Other		(83,798)		(83,798)						-4.07%		-4%						78,575.50

								DIVISION TOTAL  (see division receipts graph below)		2,057,389		2,057,389		- 0



								Commodity Storage Indemnity		10,829		10,829		2,068,218.02		2,068,218.02		SRD Total								70,833.00

								Appropriations		11,510,067		11,510,067				- 0		Difference								17,816,224.00

								AGENCY TOTAL		13,578,285		13,578,285









		





















Fiscal Year to Date Thru 7/31/2022 	
Revenue	

Admin. Svcs.	General Counsel	AEMS	Stats	Forestry	Animal Ind.	Mkt. Dev.	CPS	Wildlife	Food Safety	Ag. Lab	10454.879999999999	16025	13994.2	0	49128.22	108905.96	126558.22	909782.15	40200	785158.38	80980.09	July 2022 Revenue	

Admin. Svcs.	General Counsel	AEMS	Stats	Forestry	Animal Ind.	Mkt. Dev.	CPS	Wildlife	Food Safety	Ag. Lab	10454.879999999999	16025	13994.2	0	49128.22	108905.96	126558.22	909782.15	40200	785158.38	80980.09	









06 2022

								OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, FOOD AND FORESTRY								1/13/23 11:47

								PROGRAM REVENUE SUMMARY

								Jun-22

								Division 		June 2022 Revenue		Fiscal Year to Date Thru 6/30/2022 
Revenue

								Admin. Svcs.		(10,052)		384,602				(10,051.68)		-0.43%		2%						176,715.86

								General Counsel		19,000		58,025						0.82%		0%						18,200.00

								AEMS		142,597		466,094						6.17%		2%						142,356.18

								Stats		- 0		- 0						0.00%		0%						- 0

								Forestry		559,279		2,932,447						24.19%		15%						1,677,367.87

								Animal Ind.		585,061		1,714,411						25.30%		9%						539,413.09

								Mkt. Dev.		31,023		746,358						1.34%		4%						287,663.89

								CPS		663,620		9,630,795						28.70%		49%						5,046,977.06

								Wildlife		1,700		135,685						0.07%		1%						113,685.05

								Food Safety		218,826		2,438,616						9.46%		12%						1,577,160.41

								Ag. Lab		54,658		820,011						2.36%		4%						444,343.03

								Other		46,523		259,716						2.01%		1%						78,575.50

								DIVISION TOTAL  (see division receipts graph below)		2,312,236		19,586,760		- 0



								Commodity Storage Indemnity		10,449		144,898		19,731,658.55		16,285,565.62		SRD Total								70,833.00

								Appropriations		2,285,279		31,527,896				(3,446,092.93)		Difference								17,816,224.00

								AGENCY TOTAL		4,607,964		51,259,555









		





















Fiscal Year to Date Thru 6/30/2022 	
Revenue	

Admin. Svcs.	General Counsel	AEMS	Stats	Forestry	Animal Ind.	Mkt. Dev.	CPS	Wildlife	Food Safety	Ag. Lab	Other	384602.15	58025	466094.47	0	2932446.89	1714410.88	746357.99	9630794.7799999993	135685.04999999999	2438616.37	820010.72	259716.09	June 2022 Revenue	

Admin. Svcs.	General Counsel	AEMS	Stats	Forestry	Animal Ind.	Mkt. Dev.	CPS	Wildlife	Food 	Safety	Ag. Lab	Other	-10051.68	19000	142597	0	559279.24	585060.82999999996	31023	663620.38	1700	218826.07	54657.88	46523.09	









03 2022

								OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, FOOD AND FORESTRY								1/13/23 11:47

								PROGRAM REVENUE SUMMARY

								Mar-22

								Division 		March 2022 Revenue		Fiscal Year to Date Thru 3/31/2022 
Revenue

								Admin. Svcs.		41,336		220,838				41,336.08		2.65%		2%						176,715.86

								General Counsel		1,000		24,825						0.06%		0%						18,200.00

								AEMS		18,817		171,058						1.20%		1%						142,356.18

								Stats		- 0		- 0						0.00%		0%						- 0

								Forestry		70,141		1,818,712						4.49%		13%						1,677,367.87

								Animal Ind.		322,701		919,250						20.65%		7%						539,413.09

								Mkt. Dev.		7,328		299,833						0.47%		2%						287,663.89

								CPS		967,611		7,559,240						61.93%		54%						5,046,977.06

								Wildlife		12,500		128,185						0.80%		1%						113,685.05

								Food Safety		61,262		1,743,572						3.92%		13%						1,577,160.41

								Ag. Lab		26,061		651,355						1.67%		5%						444,343.03

								Other		33,791		397,939						2.16%		3%						78,575.50

								DIVISION TOTAL  (see division receipts graph below)		1,562,548		13,934,806		- 0



								Commodity Storage Indemnity		23,181		112,217		14,047,022.35		14,047,022.35		SRD Total								70,833.00

								Appropriations		2,285,279		24,672,061				- 0		Difference								17,816,224.00

								AGENCY TOTAL		3,871,008		38,719,083









		





















Fiscal Year to Date Thru 3/31/2022 	
Revenue	

Admin. Svcs.	General Counsel	AEMS	Stats	Forestry	Animal Ind.	Mkt. Dev.	CPS	Wildlife	Food Safety	Ag. Lab	Other	220837.74	24825	171057.58	0	1818711.74	919249.81	299832.98	7559240.0899999999	128185.05	1743572.47	651354.54	397938.58	March 2022 Revenue	

Admin. Svcs.	General Counsel	AEMS	Stats	Forestry	Animal Ind.	Mkt. Dev.	CPS	Wildlife	Food Safety	Ag. Lab	Other	41336.080000000002	1000	18817	0	70140.759999999995	322700.94	7327.63	967611	12500	61262.41	26061.119999999999	33791.380000000005	









01 2022

								OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, FOOD AND FORESTRY								1/13/23 11:47

								PROGRAM REVENUE SUMMARY

								Jan-22

								Division 		January 2022 Revenue		Fiscal Year to Date Thru 1/31/2022 
Revenue

								Admin. Svcs.		229		176,945				228.70		0.03%		2%						176,715.86

								General Counsel		2,734		20,934						0.35%		0%						18,200.00

								AEMS		5,881		148,238						0.75%		1%						142,356.18

								Stats		- 0		- 0						0.00%		0%						- 0

								Forestry		35,999		1,713,367						4.61%		16%						1,677,367.87

								Animal Ind.		26,791		566,204						3.43%		5%						539,413.09

								Mkt. Dev.		1,136		288,799						0.15%		3%						287,663.89

								CPS		494,681		5,541,658						63.39%		51%						5,046,977.06

								Wildlife		1,000		114,685						0.13%		1%						113,685.05

								Food Safety		65,712		1,642,872						8.42%		15%						1,577,160.41

								Ag. Lab		104,662		549,005						13.41%		5%						444,343.03

								Other		41,606		120,182						5.33%		1%						78,575.50

								DIVISION TOTAL  (see division receipts graph below)		780,430		10,882,888		- 0



								Commodity Storage Indemnity		8,957		79,790		10,962,677.53		10,962,677.51		SRD Total								70,833.00

								Appropriations		2,285,279		17,816,224				(0.02)		Difference								17,816,224.00

								AGENCY TOTAL		3,074,666		28,778,902









		





















Fiscal Year to Date Thru 1/31/2022 	
Revenue	

Admin. Svcs.	General Counsel	AEMS	Stats	Forestry	Animal Ind.	Mkt. Dev.	CPS	Wildlife	Food Safety	Ag. Lab	Other	176944.56	20934	148237.57999999999	0	1713366.9800000002	566204.09000000008	288799.48999999993	5541657.9399999995	114685.04999999999	1642871.9700000002	549004.59000000008	120181.67	January 2022 Revenue	

Admin. Svcs.	General Counsel	AEMS	Stats	Forestry	Animal Ind.	Mkt. Dev.	CPS	Wildlife	Food Safety	Ag. Lab	Other	228.7	2734	5881.4	0	35999.11	26791	1135.5999999999999	494680.88	1000	65711.56	104661.56	41606.17	









12 2021

								OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, FOOD AND FORESTRY								1/13/23 11:47

								PROGRAM REVENUE SUMMARY

								Dec-21

								Division 		December 2021 Revenue		Fiscal Year to Date Revenue

								Admin. Svcs.		112,741		176,716						8.88%		2%

								General Counsel		11,557		18,200						0.91%		0%

								AEMS		35,139		142,356						2.77%		1%

								Stats		- 0		- 0						0.00%		0%

								Forestry		183,479		1,677,368						14.45%		17%

								Animal Ind.		256,351		539,413						20.19%		5%

								Mkt. Dev.		1,747		287,664						0.14%		3%

								CPS		571,747		5,046,977						45.04%		50%

								Wildlife		(44,449)		113,685						-3.50%		1%

								Food Safety		138,147		1,577,160						10.88%		16%

								Ag. Lab		38,256		444,343						3.01%		4%

								Other		(35,237)		78,576						-2.78%		1%

								DIVISION TOTAL  (see division receipts graph below)		1,269,477		10,102,458		- 0



								Commodity Storage Indemnity		9,157		70,833		10,173,290.93		10,173,290.93		SRD Total

								Appropriations		2,285,279		17,816,224				- 0		Difference

								AGENCY TOTAL		3,563,913		27,989,515









		





















Admin. Svcs.	

Fiscal Year to Date Revenue	176715.86	General Counsel	Fiscal Year to Date Revenue	18200	AEMS	Fiscal Year to Date Revenue	142356.18	Stats	Fiscal Year to Date Revenue	0	Forestry	

Fiscal Year to Date Revenue	1677367.87	Animal Ind.	

Fiscal Year to Date Revenue	539413.09000000008	Mkt. Dev.	

Fiscal Year to Date Revenue	287663.88999999996	CPS	



Fiscal Year to Date Revenue	5046977.0599999996	Wildlife	Fiscal Year to Date Revenue	113685.04999999999	Food Safety	

Fiscal Year to Date Revenue	1577160.4100000001	Ag. Lab	

Fiscal Year to Date Revenue	444343.03	Other	Fiscal Year to Date Revenue	78575.5	Commodity Storage Indemnity	Fiscal Year to Date Revenue	70832.990000000005	











10 2021

								OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, FOOD AND FORESTRY								1/13/23 11:47

								PROGRAM REVENUE SUMMARY

								Dec-21

								Division 		December 2021 Revenue		Fiscal Year to Date Revenue

								Admin. Svcs.		112,741		176,716						8.88%		2%

								General Counsel		11,557		18,200						0.91%		0%

								AEMS		35,139		142,356						2.77%		1%

								Stats		- 0		- 0						0.00%		0%

								Forestry		183,479		1,677,368						14.45%		17%

								Animal Ind.		256,351		539,413						20.19%		5%

								Mkt. Dev.		1,747		287,664						0.14%		3%

								CPS		571,747		5,046,977						45.04%		50%

								Wildlife		(44,449)		113,685						-3.50%		1%

								Food Safety		138,147		1,577,160						10.88%		16%

								Ag. Lab		38,256		444,343						3.01%		4%

								Other		(35,237)		78,576						-2.78%		1%

								DIVISION TOTAL  (see division receipts graph below)		1,269,477		10,102,458		- 0



								Commodity Storage Indemnity		9,157		70,833		10,173,290.93		10,173,290.93		SRD Total

								Appropriations		2,285,279		17,816,224				- 0		Difference

								AGENCY TOTAL		3,563,913		27,989,515









		





















Admin. Svcs.	

Fiscal Year to Date Revenue	176715.86	General Counsel	Fiscal Year to Date Revenue	18200	AEMS	Fiscal Year to Date Revenue	142356.18	Stats	Fiscal Year to Date Revenue	0	Forestry	

Fiscal Year to Date Revenue	1677367.87	Animal Ind.	

Fiscal Year to Date Revenue	539413.09000000008	Mkt. Dev.	

Fiscal Year to Date Revenue	287663.88999999996	CPS	



Fiscal Year to Date Revenue	5046977.0599999996	Wildlife	Fiscal Year to Date Revenue	113685.04999999999	Food Safety	

Fiscal Year to Date Revenue	1577160.4100000001	Ag. Lab	

Fiscal Year to Date Revenue	444343.03	Other	Fiscal Year to Date Revenue	78575.5	Commodity Storage Indemnity	Fiscal Year to Date Revenue	70832.990000000005	











09 2021

								OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, FOOD AND FORESTRY								1/13/23 11:47

								PROGRAM REVENUE SUMMARY

								Sep-21

								Division 		September 2021 Revenue		Fiscal Year to Date Revenue		Prior FYTD		Difference

								Admin. Svcs.		13,487		130,036				(130,036.40)		1.05%		3%

								General Counsel		350		8,000				(8,000.00)		0.03%		0%

								AEMS		692		18,528				(18,527.80)		0.05%		0%

								Stats		- 0		- 0				- 0		0.00%		0%

								Forestry		384,056		514,095				(514,094.83)		29.87%		10%

								Animal Ind.		84,677		236,714				(236,714.33)		6.59%		5%

								Mkt. Dev.		181,468		225,216				(225,215.95)		14.11%		5%

								CPS		470,306		2,851,845				(2,851,845.21)		36.58%		58%

								Wildlife		49,377		122,982				(122,981.78)		3.84%		2%

								Food Safety		33,449		546,128				(546,127.70)		2.60%		11%

								Ag. Lab		33,546		270,470				(270,469.89)		2.61%		5%

								Other		34,364		609				(609.32)		2.67%		0%

								DIVISION TOTAL  (see division receipts graph below)		1,285,772		4,924,623		- 0		(4,924,623.21)



								Commodity Storage Indemnity		10,466		32,164		1,296,238.66		4,956,787.18		0.81%		1%

								Appropriations		1,907,088		11,732,902				4,956,787.18		SRD Total

								AGENCY TOTAL		3,203,327		16,689,689				- 0		Difference



















		





















Admin. Svcs.	

Fiscal Year to Date Revenue	130036.4	General Counsel	Fiscal Year to Date Revenue	7999.9999999999982	AEMS	Fiscal Year to Date Revenue	18527.8	Stats	Fiscal Year to Date Revenue	0	Forestry	

Fiscal Year to Date Revenue	514094.83	Animal Ind.	Fiscal Year to Date Revenue	236714.33000	000002	Mkt. Dev.	Fiscal Year to Date Revenue	225215.94999999998	CPS	



Fiscal Year to Date Revenue	2851845.21	Wildlife	Fiscal Year to Date Revenue	122981.78	Food Safety	

Fiscal Year to Date Revenue	546127.70000000007	Ag. Lab	Fiscal Year to Date Revenue	270469.89	Other	Fiscal Year to Date Revenue	609.31999999999243	Commodity Storage Indemnity	Fiscal Year to Date Revenue	32163.97	











09 2021 Working Version

		DIVISION		July 2021		August 2021		Sept 2021		YEAR TO DATE REVENUE

		Admin. Svcs.		112,936.97		3,612.12		13,487.31		130,036.40

		General Counsel		6,850.00		800.00		350.00		8,000.00

		AEMS		14,484.20		3,351.60		692.00		18,527.80

		Stats		- 0				- 0		- 0

		Forestry		83,656.50		46,382.31		384,056.02		514,094.83

		Animial Ind.		11,664.00		140,373.56		84,676.77		236,714.33

		Mkt. Dev.		12,329.74		31,418.66		181,467.55		225,215.95

		CPS		776,099.84		1,605,439.21		470,306.16		2,851,845.21

		Wildlife		55,400.00		18,204.81		49,376.97		122,981.78

		Food Safety		71,330.23		441,348.61		33,448.86		546,127.70

		Ag. Lab		55,662.70		181,260.80		33,546.39		270,469.89

		OTHER		68,068.49		(101,823.61)		34,364.44		609.32

		DIVISION TOTAL  (see division receipts graph below)		1,268,482.67		2,370,368.07		1,285,772.47		4,924,623.21



		Commodity Storage Indemnity		10,847.03		10,850.75		10,466.19		32,163.97

		Total		1,279,329.70		2,381,218.82		1,296,238.66		4,956,787.18

				1,279,329.70		2,381,218.82		1,296,238.66		4,956,787.18

				- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		







July 2021

								OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, FOOD AND FORESTRY								1/13/23 11:47

								PROGRAM REVENUE SUMMARY

								Jul-21

								DIVISION		PERIOD RECEIPTS		YEAR TO DATE REVENUE		Prior FYTD		Difference

								Admin. Svcs.		112,937		112,937				(112,936.97)		8.90%		9%

								General Counsel		6,850		6,850				(6,850.00)		0.54%		1%

								AEMS		14,484		14,484				(14,484.20)		1.14%		1%

								Stats		- 0		- 0				- 0		0.00%		0%

								Forestry		83,657		83,657				(83,656.50)		6.60%		7%

								Animial Ind.		11,664		11,664				(11,664.00)		0.92%		1%

								Mkt. Dev.		12,330		12,330				(12,329.74)		0.97%		1%

								CPS		776,100		776,100				(776,099.84)		61.18%		61%

								Wildlife		55,400		55,400				(55,400.00)		4.37%		4%

								Food Safety		71,330		71,330				(71,330.23)		5.62%		6%

								Ag. Lab		55,663		55,663				(55,662.70)		4.39%		4%

								OTHER		68,068		68,068				(68,068.49)		5.37%		5%

								DIVISION TOTAL  (see division receipts graph below)		1,268,483		1,268,483		- 0		(1,268,482.67)



								Commodity Storage Indemnity		10,847		10,847		1,279,329.70		1,279,329.70		0.86%		1%

								Appropriations		1,907,088		1,907,088				1,279,329.70		SRD Total

								AGENCY TOTAL		3,186,418		3,186,418				- 0		Difference









		



































Division Receipts 

Fiscal Year 2022 



Admin. Svcs.	

YEAR TO DATE REVENUE	112936.97	General Counsel	YEAR TO DATE REVENUE	6849.9999999999982	AEMS	YEAR TO DATE REVENUE	14484.2	Stats	YEAR TO DATE REVENUE	0	Forestry	

YEAR TO DATE REVENUE	83656.5	Animial Ind.	YEAR TO DATE REVENUE	11664	Mkt. Dev.	YEAR TO DATE REVENUE	12329.74	CPS	



YEAR TO DATE REVENUE	776099.83999999997	Wildlife	YEAR TO DATE REVENUE	55400	Food Safety	YEAR TO DATE REVENUE	71330.23000000001	Ag. Lab	YEAR TO DATE REVENUE	55662.7	OTHER	YEAR TO DATE REVENUE	68068.489999999991	Commodity Storage Indemnity	YEAR TO DATE REVENUE	10847.03	











Sheet2

						14,490.00

						881,736.53

						440.00

						1,379.52

						1,500.00

						540.00

						1,696.00

						8,244.22

						45,521.91

						432.00

						10,847.03

						312,502.49

						1,279,329.70







Revenue By Division July – December 2022

A-11

Note: Clearing fund, 79901, is not included in the above graph.

$196,490
$30,145

$139,822
$0

$515,433 $411,064

$757,252

$4,752,628

$99,550

$2,164,083

$595,841

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

$3,000,000

$3,500,000

$4,000,000

$4,500,000

$5,000,000

ADMIN. 
SVCS.

GENERAL 
COUNSEL

AEMS STATS FORESTRY ANIMAL 
IND.

MKT. DEV. CPS WILDLIFE FOOD 
SAFETY

AG. LAB

Fiscal Year to Date Thru 12/31/2022
Revenue



Administrative Services - Finance

A-12

• Revenues (excluding appropriations) for July thru 
December 2022 were $9.73 million, compared to 
$10.17 million for July – December 2021.

• This is a decrease of approximately $437K
• Primarily due to the timing of payments received.
• Reduction in surplus property sales



Total Expenses by Month 
July 2019 – December 2022

A-13

$3
.0

$6
.8

$4
.0

$4
.6

$3
.0

$2
.7

$3
.3

$3
.0

$3
.0 $3

.3

$1
.9

$4
.5

$3
.6

$2
.1

$7
.0

$2
.8

$2
.9

$2
.8 $3

.3

$2
.6 $2

.9

$4
.2

$7
.0

$3
.5

$2
.6

$3
.6

$2
.2

$3
.5

$7
.5

$3
.9

$3
.6

$3
.2

$2
.5

$3
.9

$3
.5

$5
.4

$3
.1

$4
.0

$3
.9$4

.1

$3
.7

$1
2.

6

$7
.1

$5
.6

$2
.6

$6
.0

$0

$2

$4

$6

$8

$10

$12

$14

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June Average

$’
s i

n 
M

ill
io

ns

FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 FY2023

Note1 : Forestry - April 2020 includes  a $4.2 pass thru payment from 
Oklahoma Emergency Management payable to the US Forest Services for the 
2018 Oklahoma fires.

Note 2: Forestry - Fire Operational Grants totaling $4,000,991 were paid out 
in September 2021.

Note 3: Forestry  - Fire Operational Grants totaling $8,369,050 were paid out 
in September 2022.

Note 4: Administration - Legislative directed payments for incorporated municipalities 
affected by the extreme weather between 2/7/21 & 2/21/21 totaling $4.5 million were 
paid in fiscal year 2023.



Administrative Services - Finance

• The expenses for July – December 2022 were $35.8 
million  

• This is an increase of $11.8 million compared to the prior 
year and was due to the following:

• Increase in legislative directed payments for fiscal year 2023
• Fire Operational Grants 

• $8.4 million paid out to Oklahoma fire stations
• Increase of $4.4 million from the prior year.

• Increase in 80/20 rural fire operational grants
• Payments to incorporated municipalities affected by extreme 

weather events during February 2021
• $4.5 million paid out 

A-14



FY 2023 Total Expenses 
by Month with Budget Year

A-15

$2.83

$1.02
$0.31 $0.17 $0.38 $0.00

$1.28

$2.57

$12.30

$6.92
$5.25

$2.61

$4.11
$3.73

$12.62

$7.09

$5.63

$2.62

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.0

$2.0

$4.0

$6.0

$8.0

$10.0

$12.0

$14.0
Ju

l-2
2

Au
g-

22

Se
p-

22

O
ct

-2
2

N
ov

-2
2

De
c-

22

Ja
n-

23

Fe
b-

23

M
ar

-2
3

Ap
r-

23

M
ay

-2
3

Ju
n-

23

$’
s 

in
  M

ill
io

ns
 

19 20 21 22 23

Budget Year

Note 1: Forestry  - Fire Operational Grants totaling $8,369,050 
were paid out in September 2022.

Note 2: Administration - Legislative directed payments for 
incorporated municipalities affected by the extreme weather 
between 2/7/21 & 2/21/21 totaling $4.5 million were paid in 
fiscal year 2023.



Employee FTE Totals 
Fiscal Year FY 2006 – FY 2023

A-16

467
458 459 452

441

412 408
395 388

372
352

337 336 336 342 343 343 346

 -

 50.00

 100.00

 150.00

 200.00

 250.00

 300.00

 350.00

 400.00

 450.00

 500.00

06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23

Em
pl

oy
ee

  (
FT

E)

Fiscal Year Note: FTE listed for Fiscal Year 23 was based 
on the FTE as of 12/31/2022.



Appropriations 
FY 2018 - thru December 2022

A-17

$22.5

$24.8

$29.4

$27.0

$31.5

$27.0

$2.0 $2.0
$3.5

$2.9

$0.0 $0.0
$0

$5

$10

$15

$20

$25

$30

$35

FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 thru 12/31/2022

$ 
‘s

 in
 M

ill
io

ns

Appropriation Transfers In Appropriation Transfers Out

Note 1: Legislative directed payments to OSU are processed quarterly from operating expense accounts for fiscal year 2022 & 2023.
Note 2: $8.4 million of one time cash for Operational Fire Grants was received in July 2022.



Administrative Services – Commodity Storage Indemnity

A-18

Commodity Storage Indemnity
Investment Report

As of December 31, 2022

Investments with Office of State Treasurer
  Cash  Management Account: $11,273,620.66

FY-2023 Receipts
 

Current Month   YTD
------------------------            ----------------------

New -                      -                                  
Interest $16,407.79 $92,829.56
Reinsurance -                                  
ODAFF Support Services -                                  
Recovered Salvage -                      -                                  
Elevator Salvage -                      -                                  
Matured Long Term Investments -                      -                                  

           ---------------            ----------------------

TOTALS $16,407.79 $92,829.56
        ===========         ================


2022_12

		JANUARY BOARD REPORT







				Commodity Storage Indemnity

				Investment Report

				As of December 31, 2022







				Investments with Office of State Treasurer

				  Cash  Management Account: 						$11,273,620.66



						FY-2023 Receipts

						 



								Current Month		  YTD

								---------------------------		           ----------------------



				New				- 0		- 0										$11,180,791.10		7/1/2022 Balance

				Interest				$16,407.79		$92,829.56										$92,829.56		Add: Year to Date Interest

				Reinsurance						- 0

				ODAFF Support Services						- 0										$11,273,620.66		Current Balance

				Recovered Salvage				- 0		- 0

				Elevator Salvage				- 0		- 0

				Matured Long Term Investments				- 0		- 0

								           -------------------		           ----------------------



						TOTALS		$16,407.79		$92,829.56

								        ============		        ================

				   INTEREST DIRECT DEPOSITED				0.00		0.00

								           ===========		           ===========

		Month		NEW  		INTEREST		REINSURANCE		ODAFF Support Services		RECOVERED COSTS		SALVAGE

		1				10,829.38

		2

		3

		4

		5

		6

		7

		8

		9

		10

		11

		12



				0.00		10,829.38		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		MONTH		5		 





																		1		SEPTEMBER BOARD REPORT		AS OF JULY 31, 2022

																		2		OCTOBER BOARD REPORT		AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

																		3		NOVEMBER BOARD REPORT		AS OF OCTOBER 31, 2022

																		4		DECEMBER BOARD REPORT		AS OF NOVEMBER 30, 2022

																		5		JANUARY BOARD REPORT		AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2022

																		6		FEBRUARY BOARD REPORT		AS OF JANUARY 31, 2023

																		7		MARCH BOARD REPORT		AS OF FEBRUARY 28, 2023

																		8		APRIL BOARD REPORT		AS OF MARCH 31, 2023

																		9		MAY BOARD REPORT		AS OF APRIL 30, 2023

																		10		JUNE BOARD REPORT		AS OF MAY 30, 2023

																		11		JULY BOARD REPORT		AS OF JUNE 30,2023

																		12		AUGUST BOARD REPORT



















































2022_10

		SEPTEMBER BOARD REPORT







				Commodity Storage Indemnity

				Investment Report

				As of October 31, 2022







				Investments with Office of State Treasurer

				  Cash  Management Account: 						$11,241,495.97



						FY-2023 Receipts

						 



								Current Month		  YTD

								---------------------------		           ----------------------



				New				- 0		- 0										$11,180,791.10		7/1/2022 Balance

				Interest				$23,999.80		$60,704.87										$60,704.87		Add: Year to Date Interest

				Reinsurance						- 0

				ODAFF Support Services						- 0										$11,241,495.97		Current Balance

				Recovered Salvage				- 0		- 0

				Elevator Salvage				- 0		- 0

				Matured Long Term Investments				- 0		- 0

								           -------------------		           ----------------------



						TOTALS		$23,999.80		$60,704.87

								        ============		        ================

				   INTEREST DIRECT DEPOSITED				0.00		0.00

								           ===========		           ===========

		Month		NEW  		INTEREST		REINSURANCE		ODAFF Support Services		RECOVERED COSTS		SALVAGE

		1				10,829.38

		2

		3

		4

		5

		6

		7

		8

		9

		10

		11

		12



				0.00		10,829.38		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		MONTH		1		 





																		1		SEPTEMBER BOARD REPORT		AS OF JULY 31, 2022

																		2		OCTOBER BOARD REPORT		AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

																		3		NOVEMBER BOARD REPORT		AS OF OCTOBER 31, 2022

																		4		DECEMBER BOARD REPORT		AS OF NOVEMBER 30, 2022

																		5		JANUARY BOARD REPORT		AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2022

																		6		FEBRUARY BOARD REPORT		AS OF JANUARY 31, 2023

																		7		MARCH BOARD REPORT		AS OF FEBRUARY 28, 2023

																		8		APRIL BOARD REPORT		AS OF MARCH 31, 2023

																		9		MAY BOARD REPORT		AS OF APRIL 30, 2023

																		10		JUNE BOARD REPORT		AS OF MAY 30, 2023

																		11		JULY BOARD REPORT		AS OF JUNE 30,2023

																		12		AUGUST BOARD REPORT



















































2022_09

		SEPTEMBER BOARD REPORT







				Commodity Storage Indemnity

				Investment Report

				As of September 30, 2022







				Investments with Office of State Treasurer

				  Cash  Management Account: 						$11,217,496.17



						FY-2023 Receipts

						 



								Current Month		  YTD

								---------------------------		           ----------------------



				New				- 0		- 0										$11,180,791.10		7/1/2022 Balance

				Interest				$13,345.02		$36,705.07										$36,705.07		Add: Year to Date Interest

				Reinsurance						- 0

				ODAFF Support Services						- 0										$11,217,496.17		Current Balance

				Recovered Salvage				- 0		- 0

				Elevator Salvage				- 0		- 0

				Matured Long Term Investments				- 0		- 0

								           -------------------		           ----------------------



						TOTALS		$13,345.02		$36,705.07

								        ============		        ================

				   INTEREST DIRECT DEPOSITED				0.00		0.00

								           ===========		           ===========

		Month		NEW  		INTEREST		REINSURANCE		ODAFF Support Services		RECOVERED COSTS		SALVAGE

		1				10,829.38

		2

		3

		4

		5

		6

		7

		8

		9

		10

		11

		12



				0.00		10,829.38		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		MONTH		1		 





																		1		SEPTEMBER BOARD REPORT		AS OF JULY 31, 2022

																		2		OCTOBER BOARD REPORT		AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

																		3		NOVEMBER BOARD REPORT		AS OF OCTOBER 31, 2022

																		4		DECEMBER BOARD REPORT		AS OF NOVEMBER 30, 2022

																		5		JANUARY BOARD REPORT		AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2022

																		6		FEBRUARY BOARD REPORT		AS OF JANUARY 31, 2023

																		7		MARCH BOARD REPORT		AS OF FEBRUARY 28, 2023

																		8		APRIL BOARD REPORT		AS OF MARCH 31, 2023

																		9		MAY BOARD REPORT		AS OF APRIL 30, 2023

																		10		JUNE BOARD REPORT		AS OF MAY 30, 2023

																		11		JULY BOARD REPORT		AS OF JUNE 30,2023

																		12		AUGUST BOARD REPORT



















































2022_07

		SEPTEMBER BOARD REPORT







				Commodity Storage Indemnity

				Investment Report

				As of July 31, 2022







				Investments with Office of State Treasurer

				  Cash  Management Account: 						$11,191,620.48



						FY-2023 Receipts

						 



								Current Month		  YTD

								---------------------------		           ----------------------



				New				- 0		- 0

				Interest				10,829.38		$10,829.38

				Reinsurance						- 0

				ODAFF Support Services						- 0

				Recovered Salvage				- 0		- 0

				Elevator Salvage				- 0		- 0

				Matured Long Term Investments				- 0		- 0

								           -------------------		           ----------------------



						TOTALS		$10,829.38		$10,829.38

								        ============		        ================

				   INTEREST DIRECT DEPOSITED				0.00		0.00

								           ===========		           ===========

		Month		NEW  		INTEREST		REINSURANCE		ODAFF Support Services		RECOVERED COSTS		SALVAGE

		1				10,829.38

		2

		3

		4

		5

		6

		7

		8

		9

		10

		11

		12



				0.00		10,829.38		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		MONTH		1		 





																		1		SEPTEMBER BOARD REPORT		AS OF JULY 31, 2022

																		2		OCTOBER BOARD REPORT		AS OF AUGUST 31, 2022

																		3		NOVEMBER BOARD REPORT		AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

																		4		DECEMBER BOARD REPORT		AS OF OCTOBER 31, 2022

																		5		JANUARY BOARD REPORT		AS OF NOVEMBER 30, 2022

																		6		FEBRUARY BOARD REPORT		AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2022

																		7		MARCH BOARD REPORT		AS OF JANUARY 31, 2023

																		8		APRIL BOARD REPORT		AS OF FEBRUARY 28, 2023

																		9		MAY BOARD REPORT		AS OF MARCH 31, 2023

																		10		JUNE BOARD REPORT		AS OF APRIL 30, 2023

																		11		JULY BOARD REPORT		AS OF MAY 30, 2023

																		12		AUGUST BOARD REPORT		AS OF JUNE 30,2023



















































2022_06

		JUNE BOARD REPORT







				Commodity Storage Indemnity

				Investment Report

				As of June 30, 2022







				Investments with Office of State Treasurer

				  Cash  Management Account: 						$11,180,791.10



						FY-2022 Receipts

						 



								Current Month		  YTD

								---------------------------		           ----------------------



				New				- 0		- 0

				Interest				10,448.96		$144,898.26

				Reinsurance						- 0

				ODAFF Support Services						(50,000.00)

				Recovered Salvage				- 0		- 0

				Elevator Salvage				- 0		- 0

				Matured Long Term Investments				- 0		- 0

								           -------------------		           ----------------------



						TOTALS		$10,448.96		$94,898.26

								        ============		        ================

				   INTEREST DIRECT DEPOSITED				0.00		0.00

								           ===========		           ===========

		Month		NEW  		INTEREST		REINSURANCE		ODAFF Support Services		RECOVERED COSTS		SALVAGE

		1				10,847.03

		2				10,850.75

		3				10,466.19

		4				9,698.30

		5				19,813.73

		6				9,156.99				(50,000.00)

		7				8,965.60

		8				9,237.03

		9				23,181.15

		10				11,735.86

		11				10,496.67

		12				10,448.96



				0.00		144,898.26		- 0		(50,000.00)		- 0		- 0

		MONTH		10		 





																		1		SEPTEMBER BOARD REPORT		AS OF JULY 31, 2021

																		2		OCTOBER BOARD REPORT		AS OF AUGUST 31, 2021

																		3		NOVEMBER BOARD REPORT		AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

																		4		DECEMBER BOARD REPORT		AS OF OCTOBER 31, 2021

																		5		JANUARY BOARD REPORT		AS OF NOVEMBER 30, 2021

																		6		FEBRUARY BOARD REPORT		AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2021

																		7		MARCH BOARD REPORT		AS OF JANUARY 31, 2022

																		8		APRIL BOARD REPORT		AS OF FEBRUARY 28, 2022

																		9		MAY BOARD REPORT		AS OF MARCH 31, 2022

																		10		JUNE BOARD REPORT		AS OF APRIL 30, 2022

																		11		JULY BOARD REPORT		AS OF JUNE 30,2022

																		12		AUGUST BOARD REPORT



















































2022_01

		MARCH BOARD REPORT







				Commodity Storage Indemnity

				Investment Report

				As of March 31, 2022







				Investments with Office of State Treasurer

				  Cash  Management Account: 						$11,148,109.71



						FY-2022 Receipts

						 



								Current Month		  YTD

								---------------------------		           ----------------------



				New				- 0		- 0

				Interest				23,181.15		$112,216.77

				Reinsurance						- 0

				ODAFF Support Services						(50,000.00)

				Recovered Salvage				- 0		- 0

				Elevator Salvage				- 0		- 0

				Matured Long Term Investments				- 0		- 0

								           -------------------		           ----------------------



						TOTALS		$23,181.15		$62,216.77

								        ============		        ================

				   INTEREST DIRECT DEPOSITED				0.00		0.00

								           ===========		           ===========

		Month		NEW  		INTEREST		REINSURANCE		ODAFF Support Services		RECOVERED COSTS		SALVAGE

		1				10,847.03

		2				10,850.75

		3				10,466.19

		4				9,698.30

		5				19,813.73

		6				9,156.99				(50,000.00)

		7				8,965.60

		8				9,237.03

		9				23,181.15

		10

		11

		12



				0.00		112,216.77		- 0		(50,000.00)		- 0		- 0

		MONTH		7		 





																		1		SEPTEMBER BOARD REPORT		AS OF JULY 31, 2021

																		2		OCTOBER BOARD REPORT		AS OF AUGUST 31, 2021

																		3		NOVEMBER BOARD REPORT		AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

																		4		DECEMBER BOARD REPORT		AS OF OCTOBER 31, 2021

																		5		JANUARY BOARD REPORT		AS OF NOVEMBER 30, 2021

																		6		FEBRUARY BOARD REPORT		AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2021

																		7		MARCH BOARD REPORT		AS OF JANUARY 31, 2022

																		8		APRIL BOARD REPORT		AS OF FEBRUARY 28, 2022

																		9		MAY BOARD REPORT		AS OF MARCH 31, 2022

																		10		JUNE BOARD REPORT		AS OF APRIL 30, 2022

																		11		JULY BOARD REPORT		AS OF MAY 31, 2022

																		12		AUGUST BOARD REPORT		AS OF JUNE 30,2022



















































2021_12

		DECEMBER BOARD REPORT







				Commodity Storage Indemnity

				Investment Report

				As of December 31, 2021







				Investments with Office of State Treasurer

				  Cash  Management Account: 						$11,106,725.93



						FY-2022 Receipts

						 



								Current Month		  YTD

								---------------------------		           ----------------------



				New				- 0		- 0

				Interest				$9,156.99		$70,832.99

				Reinsurance				(50,000.00)		(50,000.00)

				Recovered Salvage				- 0		- 0

				Elevator Salvage				- 0		- 0

				Matured Long Term Investments				- 0		- 0

								           -------------------		           ----------------------



						TOTALS		($40,843.01)		$20,832.99

								        ============		        ================

				   INTEREST DIRECT DEPOSITED				0.00		0.00

								                 ========		           ===========

		Month		NEW  		INTEREST		REINSURANCE		RECOVERED COSTS		SALVAGE

		1				10,847.03

		2				10,850.75

		3				10,466.19

		4				9,698.30

		5				19,813.73

		6				9,156.99		(50,000.00)

		7

		8

		9

		10

		11

		12



				0.00		70,832.99		(50,000.00)		- 0		- 0

		MONTH		4		 





																		1		SEPTEMBER BOARD REPORT		AS OF JULY 31, 2021

																		2		OCTOBER BOARD REPORT		AS OF AUGUST 31, 2021

																		3		NOVEMBER BOARD REPORT		AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

																		4		DECEMBER BOARD REPORT		AS OF OCTOBER 31, 2021

																		5		JANUARY BOARD REPORT		AS OF NOVEMBER 30, 2021

																		6		FEBRUARY BOARD REPORT		AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2021

																		7		MARCH BOARD REPORT		AS OF JANUARY 31, 2022

																		8		APRIL BOARD REPORT		AS OF FEBRUARY 28, 2022

																		9		MAY BOARD REPORT		AS OF MARCH 31, 2022

																		10		JUNE BOARD REPORT		AS OF APRIL 30, 2022

																		11		JULY BOARD REPORT		AS OF MAY 31, 2022

																		12		AUGUST BOARD REPORT		AS OF JUNE 30,2022



















































2021_10

		DECEMBER BOARD REPORT







				Commodity Storage Indemnity

				Investment Report

				As of October 31, 2021







				Investments with Office of State Treasurer

				  Cash  Management Account: 						$11,127,755.21



						FY-2022 Receipts

						 



								Current Month		  YTD

								---------------------------		           ----------------------



				New				- 0		- 0

				Interest				$9,698.30		$41,862.27

				Reinsurance				- 0		- 0

				Recovered Salvage				- 0		- 0

				Elevator Salvage				- 0		- 0

				Matured Long Term Investments				- 0		- 0

								           -------------------		           ----------------------



						TOTALS		$9,698.30		$41,862.27

								        ============		        ================

				   INTEREST DIRECT DEPOSITED				0.00		0.00

								                 ========		           ===========

		Month		NEW  		INTEREST		REINSURANCE		RECOVERED COSTS		SALVAGE

		1				10,847.03

		2				10,850.75

		3				10,466.19

		4				9,698.30

		5

		6

		7

		8

		9

		10

		11

		12



				0.00		41,862.27		0.00		0.00		0.00

		MONTH		4		 





																		1		SEPTEMBER BOARD REPORT		AS OF JULY 31, 2021

																		2		OCTOBER BOARD REPORT		AS OF AUGUST 31, 2021

																		3		NOVEMBER BOARD REPORT		AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

																		4		DECEMBER BOARD REPORT		AS OF OCTOBER 31, 2021

																		5		JANUARY BOARD REPORT		AS OF NOVEMBER 30, 2021

																		6		FEBRUARY BOARD REPORT		AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2021

																		7		MARCH BOARD REPORT		AS OF JANUARY 31, 2022

																		8		APRIL BOARD REPORT		AS OF FEBRUARY 28, 2022

																		9		MAY BOARD REPORT		AS OF MARCH 31, 2022

																		10		JUNE BOARD REPORT		AS OF APRIL 30, 2022

																		11		JULY BOARD REPORT		AS OF MAY 31, 2022

																		12		AUGUST BOARD REPORT		AS OF JUNE 30,2022



















































2021_07

		SEPTEMBER BOARD REPORT







				COMMODITY STORAGE INDEMNITY

				     INVESTMENT REPORT

				AS OF JULY 31, 2021







		Investments with Office of State Treasurer:

		  Cash  Management Account: 								11,096,739.97



						FY-2022 RECEIPTS

						 



								CURRENT MONTH		  YTD

								---------------------------		           -------------------



				               NEW				- 0		- 0

				               INTEREST				10,847.03		10,847.03

				               REINSURANCE				- 0		- 0

				               RECOVERED COSTS				- 0		- 0

				               ELEVATOR SALVAGE				- 0		- 0

				               MATURED LONG TERM INVEST				- 0		- 0

								           -------------------		           -------------------



						TOTALS		$10,847.03		$10,847.03

								        ============		        ==============

				   INTEREST DIRECT DEPOSITED				0.00		0.00

								                 ========		           ===========

		Month		NEW  		INTEREST		REINSURANCE		RECOVERED COSTS		SALVAGE

		1				10847.03

		2

		3

		4

		5

		6

		7

		8

		9

		10

		11

		12



				0.00		10,847.03		0.00		0.00		0.00

		MONTH		1		 





																		1		SEPTEMBER BOARD REPORT		AS OF JULY 31, 2021

																		2		OCTOBER BOARD REPORT		AS OF AUGUST 31, 2021

																		3		NOVEMBER BOARD REPORT		AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

																		4		DECEMBER BOARD REPORT		AS OF OCTOBER 31, 2021

																		5		JANUARY BOARD REPORT		AS OF NOVEMBER 30, 2021

																		6		FEBRUARY BOARD REPORT		AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2021

																		7		MARCH BOARD REPORT		AS OF JANUARY 31, 2022

																		8		APRIL BOARD REPORT		AS OF FEBRUARY 28, 2022

																		9		MAY BOARD REPORT		AS OF MARCH 31, 2022

																		10		JUNE BOARD REPORT		AS OF APRIL 30, 2022

																		11		JULY BOARD REPORT		AS OF MAY 31, 2022

																		12		AUGUST BOARD REPORT		AS OF JUNE 30,2022



















































2021_08 

		OCTOBER BOARD REPORT







				COMMODITY STORAGE INDEMNITY

				     INVESTMENT REPORT

				AS OF AUGUST 31, 2021







		Investments with Office of State Treasurer:

		  Cash  Management Account: 								11,096,739.97



						FY-2022 RECEIPTS

						 



								CURRENT MONTH		  YTD

								---------------------------		           -------------------



				               NEW				- 0		- 0

				               INTEREST				10,850.75		21,697.78

				               REINSURANCE				- 0		- 0

				               RECOVERED COSTS				- 0		- 0

				               ELEVATOR SALVAGE				- 0		- 0

				               MATURED LONG TERM INVEST				- 0		- 0

								           -------------------		           -------------------



						TOTALS		$10,850.75		$21,697.78

								        ============		        ==============

				   INTEREST DIRECT DEPOSITED				0.00		0.00

								                 ========		           ===========

		Month		NEW  		INTEREST		REINSURANCE		RECOVERED COSTS		SALVAGE

		1				10847.03

		2				10850.75

		3

		4

		5

		6

		7

		8

		9

		10

		11

		12



				0.00		21,697.78		0.00		0.00		0.00

		MONTH		2		 





																		1		SEPTEMBER BOARD REPORT		AS OF JULY 31, 2021

																		2		OCTOBER BOARD REPORT		AS OF AUGUST 31, 2021

																		3		NOVEMBER BOARD REPORT		AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

																		4		DECEMBER BOARD REPORT		AS OF OCTOBER 31, 2021

																		5		JANUARY BOARD REPORT		AS OF NOVEMBER 30, 2021

																		6		FEBRUARY BOARD REPORT		AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2021

																		7		MARCH BOARD REPORT		AS OF JANUARY 31, 2022

																		8		APRIL BOARD REPORT		AS OF FEBRUARY 28, 2022

																		9		MAY BOARD REPORT		AS OF MARCH 31, 2022

																		10		JUNE BOARD REPORT		AS OF APRIL 30, 2022

																		11		JULY BOARD REPORT		AS OF MAY 31, 2022

																		12		AUGUST BOARD REPORT		AS OF JUNE 30,2022



















































2021_09 

		NOVEMBER BOARD REPORT







				Commodity Storage Indemnity

				Investment Report

				As of September 30, 2021







				Investments with Office of State Treasurer

				  Cash  Management Account: 						$11,118,056.91



						FY-2022 Receipts

						 



								Current Month		  YTD

								---------------------------		           ----------------------



				New				- 0		- 0

				Interest				$10,466.19		$32,163.97

				Reinsurance				- 0		- 0

				Recovered Salvage				- 0		- 0

				Elevator Salvage				- 0		- 0

				Matured Long Term Investments				- 0		- 0

								           -------------------		           ----------------------



						TOTALS		$10,466.19		$32,163.97

								        ============		        ================

				   INTEREST DIRECT DEPOSITED				0.00		0.00

								                 ========		           ===========

		Month		NEW  		INTEREST		REINSURANCE		RECOVERED COSTS		SALVAGE

		1				10,847.03

		2				10,850.75

		3				10,466.19

		4

		5

		6

		7

		8

		9

		10

		11

		12



				0.00		32,163.97		0.00		0.00		0.00

		MONTH		3		 





																		1		SEPTEMBER BOARD REPORT		AS OF JULY 31, 2021

																		2		OCTOBER BOARD REPORT		AS OF AUGUST 31, 2021

																		3		NOVEMBER BOARD REPORT		AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

																		4		DECEMBER BOARD REPORT		AS OF OCTOBER 31, 2021

																		5		JANUARY BOARD REPORT		AS OF NOVEMBER 30, 2021

																		6		FEBRUARY BOARD REPORT		AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2021

																		7		MARCH BOARD REPORT		AS OF JANUARY 31, 2022

																		8		APRIL BOARD REPORT		AS OF FEBRUARY 28, 2022

																		9		MAY BOARD REPORT		AS OF MARCH 31, 2022

																		10		JUNE BOARD REPORT		AS OF APRIL 30, 2022

																		11		JULY BOARD REPORT		AS OF MAY 31, 2022

																		12		AUGUST BOARD REPORT		AS OF JUNE 30,2022





















































A-19

Oklahoma Department of Agriculture, Food & Forestry
Monthly Budget Report - Budget Year 2023

As of December 31, 2022

Fiscal Year 2023 Annual Budget to Actuals for Budget Year 2023 thru December 31, 2022

 Object 
Code  Account Description 

 Annual 
Budget  Expenditures 

 Encumbrances & 
Pre Encumbrances 

 Available 
Budget 

511 Salary Expense                18,874,528 7,818,586 16,420,794 (5,364,853) 
512 Insur.Prem-Hlth-Life,etc      5,973,536 2,071,028 237,192 3,665,316 
513 FICA-Retirement Contributions 4,735,708 1,856,795 - 2,878,913 
515 Professional Services         3,100,583 712,387 2,000,546 387,650 
519 Inter/Intra Agy Pmt-Pers Svcs 30,000 1,293 23,707 5,000 
521 Travel - Reimbursements       328,702 85,193 - 243,509 
522 Travel - Agency Direct Pmts   365,898 144,920 - 220,978 
531 Misc. Administrative Expenses 1,178,520 314,254 313,159 551,107 
532 Rent Expense                  686,033 219,122 399,915 66,997 
533 Maintenance & Repair Expense  1,415,108 499,870 299,471 615,767 
534 Specialized Sup & Mat.Expense 1,585,410 503,721 468,992 612,697 
535 Production,Safety,Security Exp 201,456 29,854 850 170,752 
536 General Operating Expenses    300,860 56,999 - 243,861 
537 Shop Expense                  603,831 260,446 71,709 271,676 
541 Office Furniture & Equipment  3,082,652 246,354 563,761 2,272,537 
542 Library Equipment-Resources   932 19 - 913 
543 Lease Purchases               1,703,720 851,244 847,064 5,412 
544 Livestock-Poultry             - 10,053 - (10,053) 
552 Scholar.,Tuition,Incentive Pmt - 68 - (68) 
553 Refunds,Idemnities,Restitution 20,000 - - 20,000 
554 Program Reimb,Litigation Costs 4,815,453 9,073,872 3,869,043 (8,127,461) 
555 Pmts-Local Gov't,Non-Profits  15,953,116 6,101,906 4,848,477 5,002,733 
559 Assistance Pymts to Agencies  8,248,687 - 3,000,000 5,248,687 
564 Merchandise For Resale        140,000 - - 140,000 
601 AFP Encumbrances - - 1,375,774 (1,375,774) 
810 Req Only - - 723,435 (723,435) 

Operating Totals 73,344,733     30,857,983    35,463,890            7,022,861       



A-20

Oklahoma Department of Agriculture, Food & Forestry
Monthly Budget Report - Budget Year 2023

As of December 31, 2022

Fiscal Year 2023 Annual Budget to Actuals for Budget Year 2023 thru December 31, 2022

 Class 
Funding  Class Fund Description 

 Annual 
Budget  Expenditures 

 Encumbrances & 
Pre Encumbrances 

 Available 
Budget 

19201 GRF - Duties - - 0 (0) 
19211 Carryover 683,679 - 77,837 605,842 
19301 GRF - Duties 37,146,198 10,730,163 21,790,432 4,625,603 
20500 Rural Fire Defense Eqp Rev Fd 140,000 - 39,729 100,271 
21000 Agriculture Revolving Fund 22,541,010 10,668,007 10,801,420 1,071,584 
22500 Enhancemnt & Diversificatn Fnd 150,000 25,333 15,667 109,000 
23000 Okla Pet Overpopulation Fund 13,000 13,000 - - 
23500 Animal Friendly Revolving Fund 13,000 2,000 11,000 - 
24000 Unwanted Pesticide Disp Fund 350,000 24,573 325,427 - 
24500 Rural Fire Revolving Fund 800,000 51,147 480,709 268,144 
25600 Ok Viticulture Enology Revl Fd 350,000 18,000 12,750 319,250 
26200 Poultry Grading Revolving Fund 1,049,479 425,070 520,042 104,367 
28500 Milk & Milk Prod Inspec Rev Fd 379,817 127,917 196,940 54,961 
28600 Ag In The Classrm Educ Rvlv Fd 24,000 - - 24,000 
28700 Healthy Food Financing Revl Fd 100,000 - - 100,000 
42000 Specialty Crop Federal Funds 690,000 233,092 834,183 (377,275) 
43000 Farm and Ranch Stress Alliance 500,000 125,130 357,754 17,116 
57604 Duties 8,414,550 8,414,550 - 0 

Totals 73,344,733 30,857,983 35,463,890 7,022,861 


Board Rpt

		Oklahoma Department of Agriculture, Food & Forestry

		Monthly Budget Report - Budget Year 2023

		As of December 31, 2022



		Fiscal Year 2023 Annual Budget to Actuals for Budget Year 2023 thru December 31, 2022

		Object Code		Account Description		Annual Budget		Expenditures		Encumbrances & Pre Encumbrances		Available Budget

		511		Salary Expense                		18,874,528		7,818,586		16,420,794		(5,364,853)

		512		Insur.Prem-Hlth-Life,etc      		5,973,536		2,071,028		237,192		3,665,316

		513		FICA-Retirement Contributions 		4,735,708		1,856,795		- 0		2,878,913

		515		Professional Services         		3,100,583		712,387		2,000,546		387,650

		519		Inter/Intra Agy Pmt-Pers Svcs		30,000		1,293		23,707		5,000

		521		Travel - Reimbursements       		328,702		85,193		- 0		243,509

		522		Travel - Agency Direct Pmts   		365,898		144,920		- 0		220,978

		531		Misc. Administrative Expenses 		1,178,520		314,254		313,159		551,107

		532		Rent Expense                  		686,033		219,122		399,915		66,997

		533		Maintenance & Repair Expense  		1,415,108		499,870		299,471		615,767

		534		Specialized Sup & Mat.Expense 		1,585,410		503,721		468,992		612,697

		535		Production,Safety,Security Exp		201,456		29,854		850		170,752

		536		General Operating Expenses    		300,860		56,999		- 0		243,861

		537		Shop Expense                  		603,831		260,446		71,709		271,676

		541		Office Furniture & Equipment  		3,082,652		246,354		563,761		2,272,537

		542		Library Equipment-Resources   		932		19		- 0		913

		543		Lease Purchases               		1,703,720		851,244		847,064		5,412

		544		Livestock-Poultry             		- 0		10,053		- 0		(10,053)

		552		Scholar.,Tuition,Incentive Pmt		- 0		68		- 0		(68)

		553		Refunds,Idemnities,Restitution		20,000		- 0		- 0		20,000

		554		Program Reimb,Litigation Costs		4,815,453		9,073,872		3,869,043		(8,127,461)

		555		Pmts-Local Gov't,Non-Profits  		15,953,116		6,101,906		4,848,477		5,002,733

		559		Assistance Pymts to Agencies  		8,248,687		- 0		3,000,000		5,248,687

		564		Merchandise For Resale        		140,000		- 0		- 0		140,000

		601		AFP Encumbrances		- 0		- 0		1,375,774		(1,375,774)

		810		Req Only		- 0		- 0		723,435		(723,435)

				Operating Totals		73,344,733		30,857,983		35,463,890		7,022,861



		Oklahoma Department of Agriculture, Food & Forestry

		Monthly Budget Report - Budget Year 2023

		As of December 31, 2022



		Fiscal Year 2023 Annual Budget to Actuals for Budget Year 2023 thru December 31, 2022

		Class Funding		Class Fund Description		Annual Budget		Expenditures		Encumbrances & Pre Encumbrances		Available Budget

		19201		GRF - Duties		- 0		- 0		0		(0)

		19211		Carryover		683,679		- 0		77,837		605,842

		19301		GRF - Duties		37,146,198		10,730,163		21,790,432		4,625,603

		20500		Rural Fire Defense Eqp Rev Fd		140,000		- 0		39,729		100,271

		21000		Agriculture Revolving Fund		22,541,010		10,668,007		10,801,420		1,071,584

		22500		Enhancemnt & Diversificatn Fnd		150,000		25,333		15,667		109,000

		23000		Okla Pet Overpopulation Fund		13,000		13,000		- 0		- 0

		23500		Animal Friendly Revolving Fund		13,000		2,000		11,000		- 0

		24000		Unwanted Pesticide Disp Fund		350,000		24,573		325,427		- 0

		24500		Rural Fire Revolving Fund		800,000		51,147		480,709		268,144

		25600		Ok Viticulture Enology Revl Fd		350,000		18,000		12,750		319,250

		26200		Poultry Grading Revolving Fund		1,049,479		425,070		520,042		104,367

		28500		Milk & Milk Prod Inspec Rev Fd		379,817		127,917		196,940		54,961

		28600		Ag In The Classrm Educ Rvlv Fd		24,000		- 0		- 0		24,000

		28700		Healthy Food Financing Revl Fd		100,000		- 0		- 0		100,000

		42000		Specialty Crop Federal Funds		690,000		233,092		834,183		(377,275)

		43000		Farm and Ranch Stress Alliance		500,000		125,130		357,754		17,116

		57604		Duties		8,414,550		8,414,550		- 0		0

				Totals		73,344,733		30,857,983		35,463,890		7,022,861



		https://officemgmtentserv-my.sharepoint.com/personal/daniel_ridings_ag_ok_gov/Documents/Board Reports/[Board Stats & Analysis.xlsx]2022_12





						-		-		-		-



























































Payroll Lines Check

		Oklahoma Department of Agriculture, Food & Forestry

		Monthly Budget Report - Budget Year 2022

		As of October 31, 2021



		Fiscal Year 2022 Annual Budget to Actuals for 2022 Budget Year thru October 31, 2021

		Object Code		Account Description		Fiscal Year 2022 Budget		Fiscal Year 2022 Expenditures thru 10/31/2021		Encumbrances & Pre Encumbrances		Available Budget		Sum of Expenditures, Encumbrances, Pre-Encumbrances & Remaining Budget

		511		Salary Expense                		18,489,183		5,116,714		20,539,786		(7,167,317)						511		Salary Expense                		0

		512		Insur.Prem-Hlth-Life,etc      		5,949,013		1,353,777		227,032		4,368,203						512		Insur.Prem-Hlth-Life,etc      		0

		513		FICA-Retirement Contributions 		4,569,311		1,203,953		- 0		3,365,358						513		FICA-Retirement Contributions 		0

						29,007,507		7,674,445		20,766,818		566,244		29,007,507







		515		Professional Services         		2,865,945		573,353		1,831,380		461,212						515		Professional Services         		0

		519		Inter/Intra Agy Pmt-Pers Svcs		109,950		10,664		19,336		79,950						519		Inter/Intra Agy Pmt-Pers Svcs		0

		521		Travel - Reimbursements       		324,545		29,633		- 0		294,912						521		Travel - Reimbursements       		0

		522		Travel - Agency Direct Pmts   		342,620		37,276		- 0		305,344						522		Travel - Agency Direct Pmts   		0

		531		Misc. Administrative Expenses 		861,791		245,883		187,305		428,603						531		Misc. Administrative Expenses 		0

		532		Rent Expense                  		592,040		176,409		293,741		121,889						532		Rent Expense                  		0

		533		Maintenance & Repair Expense  		1,130,554		189,422		358,026		583,106						533		Maintenance & Repair Expense  		0

		534		Specialized Sup & Mat.Expense 		1,221,855		171,557		798,218		252,080						534		Specialized Sup & Mat.Expense 		0

		535		Production,Safety,Security Exp		294,156		29,716		- 0		264,440						535		Production,Safety,Security Exp		0

		536		General Operating Expenses    		184,403		23,218		- 0		161,185						536		General Operating Expenses    		0

		537		Shop Expense                  		506,681		94,389		103,662		308,630						537		Shop Expense                  		0

		541		Office Furniture & Equipment  		2,218,372		182,389		155,377		1,880,606						541		Office Furniture & Equipment  		0

		542		Library Equipment-Resources   		600		- 0		- 0		600						542		Library Equipment-Resources   		0

		543		Lease Purchases               		1,750,868		562,703		1,037,297		150,868						543		Lease Purchases               		0

		546		Buildings-Purch.,Constr,Renov.		- 0		- 0		7,900		(7,900)						546		Buildings-Purch.,Constr,Renov.		0

		554		Program Reimb,Litigation Costs		7,171,951		4,159,622		1,285,775		1,726,554						554		Program Reimb,Litigation Costs		0

		555		Pmts-Local Gov't,Non-Profits  		7,233,950		248,857		141,860		6,843,233						555		Pmts-Local Gov't,Non-Profits  		0

		559		Assistance Pymts to Agencies  		150,000		- 0		- 0		150,000						559		Assistance Pymts to Agencies  		0

		564		Merchandise For Resale        		120,000		- 0		118,800		1,200						564		Merchandise For Resale        		0

		601		AFP Encumbrances		- 0		- 0		1,777,258		(1,777,258)						601		AFP Encumbrances		0

		810		Req Only		- 0		- 0		687,947		(687,947)						810		Req Only		0

				Operating Totals		85,095,295		22,083,981		50,337,518		12,673,796



		Oklahoma Department of Agriculture, Food & Forestry

		Monthly Budget Report - Budget Year 2022

		As of October 31, 2021



		Fiscal Year 2022 Annual Budget to Actuals for 2022 Budget Year thru October 31, 2021

		Class Funding		Class Fund Description		Fiscal Year 2022 Budget		Fiscal Year 2022 Expenditures thru 10/31/2021		Encumbrances & Pre Encumbrances		Available Budget

		19011		Carryover		1,428,800		1,271,291		45,165		112,344

		19111		Carryover		168,336		- 0		83,303		85,033

		19201		GRF - Duties		27,423,346		4,600,306		14,438,533		8,384,507

		20500		Rural Fire Defense Eqp Rev Fd		236,500		- 0		159,300		77,200

		21000		Agriculture Revolving Fund		19,384,941		4,032,944		13,342,266		2,009,731

		22500		Enhancement & Diversificatn Fnd		150,000		1,661		- 0		148,339

		23000		Okla Pet Overpopulation Fund		12,000		5,000		5,000		2,000

		23500		Animal Friendly Revolving Fund		12,000		5,000		5,000		2,000

		25600		Ok Viticulture Enology Revl Fd		350,000		16,683		181,313		152,004

		26200		Poultry Grading Revolving Fund		1,291,463		321,408		620,814		349,240

		28500		Milk & Milk Prod Inspec Rev Fd		300,000		90,499		197,510		11,992

		28700		Healthy Food Financing Revl Fd		150,000		6,667		17,600		125,733

		42000		Specialty Crop Federal Funds		575,851		61,849		474,895		39,107

		43000		Farm and Ranch Stress Alliance		500,000		- 0		- 0		500,000

		57602		Duties		4,104,550		3,996,228		- 0		108,322

				Total		56,087,787		14,409,536		29,570,700		12,107,551



		https://officemgmtentserv-my.sharepoint.com/personal/daniel_ridings_ag_ok_gov/Documents/Board Reports/[Board Stats & Analysis.xlsx]2022_12





						29,007,508		7,674,445		20,766,818		566,245





























































100%

0%

General Chemistry

# Analytes Passed

# Analytes Failed

100%

0%

Pesticides

# Analytes Passed

# Analytes Failed

JANUARY 2023 BOARD REPORT 

AGRICULTURE LABORATORY SERVICES 

(November 2022 Activities) 

 

 

QUALITY MANAGEMENT SECTION: (Daniel Tripp, QA Manager; Eli Klimek, Technical 

Manager) 

 

The General Chemistry Section audit was completed with the audit review meeting held on 

November 10th. 

 

Three new ISO Standards were acquired by the Quality Management Section: 

 

ISO 9000:2015 - on quality management systems fundamentals and vocabulary 

ISO 9001:2015 - on quality management systems requirements 

ISO 19011:2018 - on guidelines for auditing management systems 

 

The Pesticide Section internal audit was started in December. 

 

 

PT Results 

 

The routine distribution of quality control samples to respective sections of the Laboratory 

continued. Collection and submission of data to the respective study groups for statistical 

analysis was conducted. 

 

PT results for November 2022: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

             

 

 

 

 

 

General Chemistry 

# Analytes Results Received 30 

# Analytes Passed 30 

# Analytes Failed 0 

Pesticides 

# Analytes Results Received 6 

# Analytes Passed 6 

# Analytes Failed 0 



 

INORGANIC SECTION: (Elena Lyon, Environmental/Chemical Laboratory Scientist IV) 

 

In November of 2022 the Inorganic Section completed 175 samples consisting of 1456 

determinations, with the following breakdown: 

    

November 2022  Inorganic Breakdown 

Customer Samples Determinations 

OCC 111 1162 

LMFO 47 282 

   

Service 6 12 

Pollution 11 31 

Total 175 1456 

   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

DAIRY/FOOD SAFETY SECTION: (Sharon Swyear, Environmental/Chemical Laboratory 

Scientist IV) 

 

The month of November was a typical testing month for the Section.  Three dairies were not 

tested with one of the dairies currently dry.  A total of sixteen dairies have ceased operation this 

calendar year.  

 

The Section participated in the FDA Food PT, which tests for bacteria counts, coliform counts as 

well as isolating Salmonella, Listeria and E. coli O157:H7.  Due to the shortage on liquid baby 

formula, which is typically used, regular milk was substituted this year.   

 

 

 



The Section tested twenty- five meat samples this month.  The Section has tested 191 samples 

for calendar year 2022. 

  

There has not been any additional work on the autoclave.  The Section was notified that there is a 

six to eight week delay on shipping of the new autoclave which will be into 2023. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SEED SECTION: (Tori Gillispie, Agriculture Field Inspector V and Wade Krivanek, State Seed 

Program Administrator) 

A total of 170 samples were received for November.  Most of the crops tested consisted of fall 

season turf grasses, native grass and bermudagrass.  Approximately forty-eight percent were taken 

from carryover seed lots that required new germination test dates for the Oklahoma Crop 

Improvement Association as well as random sample collections from CPS inspectors.  

 Seed quality was acceptable for official samples however there were label violations discovered 

on three different seed lots.  A total of 29 tons of small grains consisting of certified wheat and 

pasture blends were placed under stop sale due to incorrect labeling requirements.  All of the 

infractions have since been remedied and released from stop sale. 

 

 

 

 

0

500

1000

1500

Jan March May July Sept. Nov.

Total Determinations

CY 20

CY 21

CY 22

$10,956.00

$1,254.00$0.00

$11,286.00

Revenue Breakdown      Actual Invoiced

Billed by I.L.

Other

Unbilled

64

6 3

Dairy Farms

Completed In-house

Completed Out of State

Not Completed

0



B4 

 

SEROLOGY SECTION: (Pete Bourns, Laboratory Scientist IV)  

 

November  

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

N
u

m
b

er
s 

o
f 

Sa
m

p
le

s 

EIA SAMPLES ( 3 Year trend ) 

3-year Summary of Samples Analyzed 

Year Brucellosis Pseudorabies E.I.A. 

2022 5976 5707 16 

2021 1118 265 6 

2020 1397 233 4 



B5 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

9,000

10,000

N
u

m
b

er
s 

o
f 

Sa
m

p
le

s

BRUCELLOSIS SAMPLES ( 3 Year trend )

2022-2023

2021-2022

2020-2021



B6 

 

GENERAL CHEMISTRY SECTION: (Johnathan White, Environmental/Chemical Laboratory 

Scientist IV) 

 

November has been a productive month.  The Section has  transitioned over to primarily testing 

feed.  The Section was able to complete testing of all official fertilizer samples on November 4th 

and completed a late arriving fertilizer PT sample by the middle of the second week.  This has 

allowed us to shut down our fertilizer testing equipment and focus solely on feed. 

 

The Section was able to complete 925 determinations, which was close  to our target of 1000 

determinations per month.  If the Section can keep up with the incoming samples and maintain 

equipment we should be able to hit that target.   

 

The Section continues to expand cross training efforts to have all testing covered by two possible 

analysts.    

 

By adding two ultrasonic humidifiers to our Section,  we were able to continue working on at 

least five days when environmental conditions would have dropped below the allowable 

threshold.  In past years the Section has  lost several weeks of work time due to low humidity, so 

this should  further reduce our down time.   

 

The turn-around average is 15.23 days with a  date target of 18 days. We are also continuing to 

hit an internal target of samples having their first run within a week of receiving. 

 

 

 

Overview of Section numbers for the month of November:  

 

 Feed Fertilizer Lime Total 

Samples Received 197 1 0 198 

Samples Completed 185 6 0 191 

Determinations 905 20 0 925 

Violations 77 3 0 80 

Violation % 8.51% 15.00% 0.00% 8.65% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



B7 

 

PESTICIDE SECTION: (Usha Pandey-Kadel, Environmental/Chemical Laboratory Scientist 

IV)     

 

The new GC-FID (SCION) has been installed and training is ongoing. 

 

Pesticide Section samples completed: 

In the month of November, the Section completed 54 samples. Below is the table showing the 

number of samples, tests per sample, and determinations (Det.) per sample with turnaround times 

(TAT). 

 

 

Number Test Det. 

Average TAT 

(days) 

 

Average Residue 

Turnaround Time: 47 days 

 

Average Hemp 

Turnaround Time:9 days 

 

 

Residue 

Vegetation 
28 62 353 67 

 

Residue Soil 17 20 38 27  

IFA Soil 5 5 30 21  

Organic Act 2 2 2 21  

Residue, Other 1 1 1 19  

Hemp 1 1 1 9  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Samples the Section received by month:  

The Section received 27 samples for the month. Majority of the samples received were for residue 

analysis (see Fig A).  

 

                 
 

Fig A. Pie charts representing the number of samples received by type (left) and matrix (right) 

7%

63%

4%

15%

11%

Samples Received by 

Type

Proficiency Test Residue

Organic Act Hemp

IFA

70%

7%

22%

Samples Received by 
Matrix

Soil Pesticide, Other Hemp

Totals 

# of Samples # of Tests # of Determinations 

54 91 425 



B8 

 

 

 
 

Fig B. Graph showing the number of samples received by the Section each month.  

 

 

 

 

Determinations the Section completed by month: 

 

The Section completed 425 determinations with most of the determinations done on residue 

vegetation samples.  

 

 
 

Fig C. Graph showing the number of determinations completed each month. 

 

 

 

OKLAHOMA BUREAU OF STANDARDS: (Amanda Kramer, Metrologist III)  

 

The following is a workload summary for the Oklahoma Bureau of Standards from November 1st 

through 30th.   

 

Month # Fees % of Fees # Standards 
% of 

Standards 

Out-of-State Customers 8  $12,336  41.8% 318 22% 

In-State Customers 15  $17,164 58.2%   1,116  78% 

Totals 23  $29,500  100% 1,434 100% 

      

0

50

100

150

200

Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

2019

2020

3 Yr Avg

2021

2022

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

2019

2020

3 Yr Ave

2021

2022



B9 

 

Total Fees not Charged  # Working  Days Lead Time to Next Available Date for Calibration 

 $0   Mass I / II 9 

Fees not Charged 

ODAFF CPS  

 

Mass III 9 

$0   Volume 9 

 

 

 
 

 

Respectfully Submitted,  

 

 
Wade Krivanek 

Laboratory Director 

Laboratory Services Division 

  

$
0

$
5

0
,0

0
0

$29,500

$17,393

$27,993

Revenue Generated

R
e
v
e
n

u
e

 P
e
ri

o
d

Revenue Comparison

0 500 1000 1500 2000 2500

1434

933

2092

# of Artifacts Calibrated

R
e
v
e
n

u
e

 P
e
ri

o
d

Artifacts Comparison

2021 November

2022 October

November 2022

0 50 100 150 200

119

103

160

Certificates Issued

R
e
v
e
n

u
e

 P
e
ri

o
d

Certificate Comparison



FEED SAMPLES 197

FEED DETERMINATIONS 905

POSSIBLE VIOLATIONS 77

FERTILIZER SAMPLES 1

FERTILIZER DETERMINATIONS 20

POSSIBLE VIOLATIONS 3

LIME SAMPLES 0

LIME DETERMINATIONS 0

POSSIBLE VIOLATIONS 0

PESTICIDE SAMPLES 54

PESTICIDE DETERMINATIONS 425

POSSIBLE VIOLATIONS 0

MEAT SAMPLES 0

MEAT DETERMINATIONS 0

VIOLATIONS 0

INORGANIC LAB SAMPLES 175

DETERMINATIONS 1456

STATE-FEDERAL VET. LAB. SAMPLES 11699

STATE-FEDERAL VET. LAB. DETERMINATIONS 12469

NUMBER POSITIVES 0

SEED SAMPLES 170

SEED DETERMINATIONS 431

POSSIBLE VIOLATIONS 3

BUREAU OF STANDARDS CERTIFICATES 119

NUMBER OF STANDARDS CALIBRATED 1434

FEE CHARGES $29,500.00

DAIRY SAMPLES 335

DAIRY DETERMINATIONS 708

POSSIBLE VIOLATIONS 3

TOTAL SAMPLES 12750

TOTAL DETERMINATIONS 17848

TOTAL POSSIBLE VIOLATIONS 86

BOARD REPORT

AGRICULTURAL LABORATORY SERVICES

NOVEMBER 2022 ACTIVITIES

B10



C-1 
 

OKLAHOMA FORESTRY SERVICES BOARD REPORT 
 

Division Activities from November 19, 2022 – January 13, 2022 

Serving Oklahomans by conserving, enhancing, and protecting our forest and natural resources 
for present and future generations. Our Board Report is formatted to reflect the priorities of 
the National Cohesive Wildland Fire Management Strategy, which include Resilient 
Landscapes, Fire Adapted Communities, and Wildfire Response. 

 
 
WILDFIRE RESPONSE 
 
Wildfire Activity & Outlook Executive Summary:   
Fire activity tailed off late in 2022 with overall 
calm weather patterns dominating.  A cold air 
intrusion around the Christmas holiday pushed 
the cool-season species into dormancy increasing 
fuel availability.  Over 95% of Oklahoma remains 
highlighted on the Drought Monitor with extreme 
drought indices spanning northern Oklahoma, 
most of central Oklahoma and a pocket in 
southwestern Oklahoma.  The carryover of 
drought stress and increasing separation from 
wetting rainfall during the driest period of the 
year has supported development of an adverse 
fire environment.  Oklahoma Forestry Services 
working alongside our partners with the National 
Weather Service and Oklahoma Mesonet are 
actively monitoring for fire-effective weather 
patterns on the horizon. 
 
Wildfire Outlook 
Fuels assessment points to below-average fuel loading in general due to a drought-dominated growing season.  This 
lessens the potential for frequent significant wildfires (fires >5,000 acres and/or with notable structure loss) noting that 
fire occurrence is expected to be somewhat above normal given the current trends, state of fuels and seasonality.  Near-
term weather outlooks, dominated by the continuation of La Niña conditions that are projected to transition toward ENSO-
neutral moving through winter into spring.  Nonetheless, above normal temperatures are favored through January and 
climatology suggests dry conditions persisting.  Assessment of the fire environment points to the expectation of above-
normal wildfire occurrence during the dormant season and severity will be dependent upon the following triggers: 

• =/> 5 days since wetting rain. 
• Critical fine-dead fuel moisture (3% West/5% East). 
• Period of accelerated drying. 
• Frequency of fire-effective weather patterns. 
• >15° positive temperature anomaly. 
• Energy Release component >75th percentile. 

 

 



C-2 
 

Wildfire Response (cont’d) 
CY 2022 proved to be an active year for wildfire response. Oklahoma Forestry Services responded to 1,292 wildfire 
incidents that burned 244,382 acres. On those fires 1,004 residences were directly saved with 34 lost, and 552 
outbuildings were protected with 68 lost.  

• March had the highest fire occurrence with OFS acting on 295 fires. 
• April saw 82,826.6 acres burned for the highest monthly total of 2022. 
• A notable summer fire season developed while drought intensified into the fall. 
• In CY 2022, 37 Prescribed Fires were successfully conducted treating 9,370.6 acres, achieving both  resource 

management and hazard fuels mitigation objectives. 
 
A relatively quiet time during November and December afforded opportunities to repair and maintain equipment in 
preparation for the dormant wildfire season.  The lack of wildfire threat also allowed employees to reduce comp time 
balances ahead of the expectation for above normal fire occurrence though the early spring months. Area supervisors are 
working diligently to fill vacancies to maintain personnel capacity due to retirements and resignations for employers 
offering higher salaries for positions with less personal risk. 
 
With reference to ongoing equipment repair, it is projected that the OFS repair budget allocation for this fiscal year will 
be exhausted prior to the peak of the dormant fire season.  As testament to that projection, only 61% of the OFS 
firefighting equipment was available for service on October 23, 2022.  This was due to breakdowns and repair 
requirements that rendered a mix of dozers, transports, and wildland fire engines out of service.  The current downturn 
in fire activity is providing some time for repair noting that supply-chain issues are problematic. 
 
 
RESILIENT LANDSCAPES 
 
URBAN & COMMUNUTY FORESTRY PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS 

On November 15th, Community Forester Mark Bays and Partnership District Forester Riley Coy represented OFS at the 
Annual National Urban and Community Forestry Coordinators meeting held in Seattle. Following that meeting on 
November 16th – 17th, Mark and Riley attended the Partners in Community Forestry Conference. The theme for the 
conference was “Now is the Time for Trees.”  Speakers included nationally and globally renowned experts in the field of 
arboriculture and urban & community forestry. 

On November 25th Education Coordinator Tony 
Pascall and Community Forester Riley Coy set up 
an educational booth at the World’s Tallest 
Christmas Tree Lighting Ceremony in Enid, 
Oklahoma. There were approximately 30,000 
people in attendance allowing Riley and Tony to 
speak with approximately 3,000 people 
throughout the evening. In addition, they 
distributed 800 loblolly pine seedlings to event 
participants. The topic for discussion was “the 
importance of trees in Western Oklahoma”. 



C-3 
 

Washington Elm Tree Preservation – In late November, Mark Bays and 
Riley Coy met with representatives of Manhattan Construction, Capital 
Improvement  and OMES to discuss security threat improvements that 
included the placement pylons under the canopy of the George 
Washington Elm on the SW grounds of the Capitol.  The existing design 
was to drill 36-inch holes on 8 ft. spacing under the critical root zone of 
the tree.  It was determined this would be a serious risk to the health of 
the tree and the project was redesigned to place large boulders on the 
surface instead of drilling and causing root damage.  Work was completed 
in late December. 

 

On November 
30th, Education 
Coordinator Tony 
Pascall, 
Community 
Forester Riley Coy,  
Service Forester 
Evan Long and Communications Director Keith Merckx Visited 
with the head of Grounds Keeping at Northeastern State 
University in Tahlequah, OK. The goal was to assess trees on 
campus to determine whether they should be removed or 
maintained.  A partnership was formed between OFS and the 
University which will impact the health of the campus canopy 
into the future. 

Oklahoma Urban & Community Forestry Council. The U&CF 
Council met for their quarterly meeting December 8th at Arcadia 
Lake in in Edmond.  The new officer elections, end-of-year 
financials, annual conference financials and the upcoming 2023 
Arbor Week were some of the main topics of discussion.  Riley 
Coy and Mark Bays represented OFS at the meeting. 

 

 

On January 6th, 2023, Community Foresters Mark Bays and 
Riley Coy met with a landowner in Midwest City and OG&E 
foresters with their contracted arborist crew to discuss 
miscommunications between the L/O and crew. Trees near 
power lines had been pruned differently than expected 
according to the L/O. Ultimately concessions were made to 
facilitate the understanding and satisfaction of all parties. 

 

 

 



C-4 
 

Upcoming Events 

The Midwestern Chapter of International Society of Arboriculture Annual Conference will be January 25th-27th in Tulsa.  
Riley will be participating in a lightening round discussion and talk about additional opportunities for the utilization of 
urban wood program. 

Riley and Mark Bays will be traveling to Baton Rouge, LA January 30th - February 2nd to attend the winter meeting of the 
SGSF U&CF Committee.  

 

COMMUNITY OUTREACH AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 
FORESTRY EDUCATION 
On November 17th Education Coordinator Tony Pascall lead a Tree Badge program for a group of ten Girl Scouts at the 
Forest Regeneration Center in Goldsby.  These scouts learned about how the nursery works, and why we grow trees for 
conservation projects.   

  

On November 19th, Tony trained five Pre-K teachers and non-formal educators on Project Learning Tree’s “Trees & Me” 
curriculum at the OSU extension office in Tulsa.  These educators will now have the resources to teach about the forest 
with their own classes. 



C-5 
 

On November 30th, Tony introduced Project 
Learning Tree to 15 pre-service educators at 
NSU.  These teachers are going to college to be 
teachers and were introduced to Project 
Learning Tree and the opportunities that the 
program presents. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

From January 3rd- 6th Tony 
joined with Education 
Coordinators from other 
states in the Southern 
Group of State Foresters to 
build Forest Literacy lesson 
plans for Oklahoma and 
the southern region. The 
training and resources 
developed will help 
provide OFS staff with the 
confidence and skills 
needed to inspire true 
behavior change toward 
improved health and 
sustainability of the natural 
resources they manage. 

 

 



C-6 
 

 
COMMUNICATIONS 
 
Social media engagement was up after daily posts through the Christmas season that included facts about naturally 
grown Christmas trees. During the month, Facebook reach was 80,255. That is an increase of 79.6% over the prior 
month. There were more than 3.000 visits to the OFS Facebook page for an increase of 21.3% over the prior month. The 
OFS page will soon surpass the 59,000-follower mark. 
 
 
Communications continues to work to 
publicize fuels mitigation work in northeast 
Oklahoma. Projects around Bartlesville are 
now complete – OFS and its partners met 
with success in publicizing work to clear 
vegetation before it occurred to achieve 
community buy-in. Media partners from 
Tulsa and Bartlesville participated in the 
effort. The spotlight will next turn to work at 
the Turkey Mountain Urban Wilderness Area 
in Tulsa. 
 
Efforts are underway to make more 
frequently visited portions of the OFS 
webpage more easily accessible to visitors. 
These include Situation Reports, Maps, etc. 
 
Information Representative Keith Merckx will attend the Southern Group of State Foresters Water Quality meeting in 
South Carolina at the end of January. He serves as the Communications Committee Liaison to WQ. 
 
PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS FROM THE EASTERN AREA OFFICES 
 
NORTHEAST AREA 
 
Forest Protection Highlights: 
From November 11th through January 6th the Northeast Area had 8 fires for 487 acres in the Protection Area.   
 
Connie Robinson, Craig Longshore, Doug Duncan, Tim Reno, and Dakota Green conducted Colcord Unit Forest Ranger I 
interviews on 11/30/2022.  New Colcord Unit Forest Ranger I Travis Garrison started work on January 4th.   
 
The OFS Red Card Committee meeting held at NE Area Office in Tahlequah on December 13, 2022. 
 
Forest Management/Program Highlights 
Connie Robinson conducted eight site visits to assist landowners in the NE Area, as well as assist three landowners over 
the phone.  She wrote four Stewardship plans covering 360 acres, focusing on management objectives such as forest 
health, wildlife habitat, and silvopasture.  She also completed two management plans for properties in Osage and Rogers 
counties that addressed management issues on 299.5 acres.  Evan Long assisted eight landowners regarding issues such 
as tree health, disease, ID, management concerns, and stewardship plans.  Evan assisted Northeastern State University on 
identifying trees on campus for removal.  

 
 



C-7 
 

Prescribed Burning: 
Control line construction started in December on one Stevens Grant Prescribed Fire project.   

 
Ongoing Issues & Upcoming Events: 
− NE Area Work Capacity test and Annual Fireline Refresher is scheduled for January 26th  
− Interviews for vacant Forest Ranger positions in the Bunch and Park Hill units are tentatively scheduled 
 
SOUTHEAST AREA 
 
Forest Protection Highlights: 
− In Protection: 8 fires in November for 91 acres; 7 fires in December for 56 acres. 
− SE Area completed CY 2022 with a total of 664 fires for 32,965.6 acres burned.   
 
Forest Management/Programs Highlights: 
− Will Phifer conducted 20 landowner assists/contacts in October, November, and December 2022. 
− Aerial spraying on 137 acres for tree planting site preparation is in progress. 
− JT Allen conducted twelve landowner contacts. 
− Tyler Hyatt conducted four landowner contacts 
− Tama Lester, Johnny Baze, James Hamilton, Phil Delozier, Sonny Johnson, and Bryden Walker assisted at the Forest 

Heritage Center Fall Folk Festival in November. 
− C. Hutson, T. Wilson, J. Baze, J. Burgett, C. Mack – Fire Prevention Program at Rattan 
− C. Hutson, T. Wilson, J. Baze, B. Hill, C. Mack - Fire Prevention Program at Antlers 
− T. Macon, C. Mack - Fire Prevention Program at Clayton. 
 
Rx Assistance: 
− Completed CY 2022 with a total of sixteen Prescribed Fires, treating a total of 6,852 acres. 
 
Safety/Training Highlights: 
− The Broken Bow District completed Confronting Bias training 
− Seven Broken Bow District employees completed Sexual Harassment training.   
− All Antlers District employees have completed both of the above trainings. 
− Leon Macon, SE Area Dispatcher, has completed CPR, Defensive Driving and ROHVA training. 
− Jared Burgett completed CPR training; Josh Bates completed ROHVA training; Terron Gee, Mark Webb and Tyler 

Hyatt completed Defensive Driving training. 
− Antler’s district completed safety training “Fire Communication Responsibilities” 
 
Employee Recognition/Other: 
− Johnny Baze, A341, retired on November 30th with 35 

years of service as a Forest Ranger. 
 
 
 



C-8 
 

− Phil Delozier, A222, retired on December 31st with 35 
years and 6 months as a Forest Ranger. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
− JT Allen attended the Stephen F. Austin career fair to recruit forestry students. 
 
Upcoming events/activities: 
− Completing site prep for the spring planting season 
− Spring planting season 
− Multiple Stevens program prescribed burns are scheduled 
− Hochatown Mapping Updates 
− Work Capacity Test - February 7, 2023 
− RT-130 Fireline Annual Safety Refresher course 
− S-130, S-190 for Leon Macon 
− S-200 Initial Attack Incident Commander course  
− Refresh fire control lines at McGee Creek NSRA in preparation for Hunter’s Cabin Unit 2,300 acre prescribed fire. 
− JT Allen will be speaking at a Green Jobs even January 12th in Durant, OK 
 
     
STATE FORESTER ACTIVITIES from 19 November 2022 thru 13 January 2023 

- Attended First Tuesday Meetings with OFS Staff 
- Attended scheduled Director’s Meetings 
- Attended a virtual meetings with Conservation Fund leadership to discuss the land purchase procedures and 

application process through the USFS Forest Legacy program for the first State Forest 
- Attended S-520 Advanced Incident Management course in Tucson, AZ (Goeller serves as a Subject Matter 

Expert/Cadre/Steering Committee member) 
- Job shadowed by Ag Youth Council Member Mason Harris 
- Met with Oklahoma State Firefighter’s Association leadership to discuss Rural Fire issues (2nd meeting) 
- Participated on the National Association of State Foresters’ All State Foresters Monthly Policy Call 
- Virtually attended the Northern Rockies Incident Management Team #1’s Command and General Staff 

organizational call 
- Attended Administrative Rules Hearing to update the Rural Fire Protection Fund Program Act Rules 
- Attended the National Association of State Foresters’ Wildland Fire Committee/Chiefs, Managers, Supervisors 

Meeting in Albuquerque, NM 

 



D-1 
 
 

 

                      

JANUARY 26, 2023 BOARD MEETING 
REPORT FOR NOVEMBER/DECEMBER/JANUARY 2023 

 
 
Pesticide Program 
 
Pesticide Registration Activity 
 
Pesticide registrations for October 1, 2022 to January 10, 2023 are presented in the following chart.  A 
total of 3655 pesticide products registered, of the products registered 3308 were renewals and 347 were 
new. There were 200 products cancelled. 
 

 

 Pesticide Samples 

Pesticide samples taken November-December are presented in the following chart. A total of 29 
Residue, 8 Concentrate, 2 Pollution, and 1 Tank mix samples were taken.     

 

0
1,000
2,000
3,000
4,000

Total Renew New Cancelled

3,655 3,308

347 200

N
U

M
BE

R 
O

F 
RE

G
IS

TR
AT

IO
N

S

TYPE OF REGISTRATION

Pesticide Registration Activity
October 2022- January 2023

Concentration, 
8

Residue, 29

Tank Mix, 1 Pollution , 2

Pesticide Sample Submissions for            
November - December 2022

Concentration Documentary Residue Tank Mix Pollution



D-2 
 
 

 

Table 1. Inspection Count for November - December 2022* 
 

  Number of Inspections 

Inspection Type November December Two Month Total 

Experimental Use Permit 0 0 0 

Marketplace 65 44 109 

Pesticide Applicator Facility 25 32 57 

Pesticide Service Inspection 0 0 0 

Restricted Use Pesticide Dealer 19 19 38 

Container Containment Inspection 0 0 0 

Producer Establishment 0 0 0 

Use 56 82 138 

Termite 0 0 0 

Wood 0 0 0 

Pre-treat 4 2 6 

Drift Investigation 0 0 0 

Pesticide Label 5342 3217 8559 

Worker Protection 0 3 3 

Total 5511 3399 8910 

* Inspections not yet submitted at the time of this report will be reflected in the next board report 

Along with the above inspections CPS inspectors also took 30 non-agriculture use samples, 6 
agricultural use samples and 4 marketplace samples for a total of 40 samples.          

Licensing & Certification 
 
Pesticide applicator license companies have renewed 1765 licenses and the ones who do not 
renew will receive Stop Work Orders at the beginning of February. 
 
Service technician certification expired on December 31, 2022 so far 1,835 Service Techs have 
passed the exam. 



D-3 
 
 

 

Certified Applicator (CA) categories that expired in 2022 are 1B – Ag Animal, 2 – Forest, and 8 
– Public Health.  In category 1B, 6 CA’s have renewed by test and 5 by obtaining the required 
number of CEU’s.  In category 2, 4 CA’s have renewed by test and 23 by obtaining the required 
number of CEU’s.  In category 8, 14 CA’s have renewed by test and 17 by obtaining the required 
number of CEU’s. 
 
PSI Updates 
 
PSI has launched a new website specifically for the pesticide exams for ODAFF. The original 
website, www.psiexams.com, will relocate candidates to the new website or they can go to the 
new website at https://test-takers.psiexams.com/okpest 
 
Pesticide Complaints 

PESTICIDE COMPLAINTS   November 16, 2022 – January 9, 2022   

  RECEIVED CLOSED WARNINGS ISSUED NO ACTION 

CONSUMER GENERATED: 5 6 3 6 

MUSK THISTLE: 4 
 

  

PMR CASES: 8 6 5 6 

CASES REFERRED TO OGC: 8    

 
Plant Protection Program 

Phytosanitary Certificates 
 
Federal 
  
Federal phytosanitary certificates Issued from November 1, 2022 – December 31, 2022  

 
Commercial value of shipment $1,250 or more:  
   28 Federal phytosanitary certificates issued @ $106.00 each  
 
Commercial value of shipment less than $1,250:  
   6 Federal phytosanitary Certificates issued @ $61.00 each  
 

http://www.psiexams.com/
https://test-takers.psiexams.com/okpest


D-4 
 
 

 

 
 
Companies applying for federal phytosanitary certificates: 
 
 Baillie Lumber   2  

  International Ingredient:  4 
  Johnston Seed Company:  2 
  OSU Biosciences:   6 
  Sesaco     18 
  TMX Shipping:   1 
  
State   
 
State phytosanitary certificates Issued from November 1, 2022 – December 31, 2022  
36 phytosanitary certificates for 2,228 plants 

 

 

2
20

1 1 1 1 6 1 1 2

36

0
10
20
30
40

Certificates Issued

Certificates Issued



D-5 
 
 

 

Vascular Streak Dieback 
 
A couple of nurseries have tested positive for Vascular Streak Dieback (VSD) on Redbud. VSD 
has is a recently discovered problem in Redbud but the most likely cause is believed to be 
Ceratobasidium theobromae. This pathogen causes streaking in the vascular tissue, wilting, and 
eventual plant death. VSD has a wide host range which includes Redbud, Maple, Dogwood, and 
many other plants. 
 
Because of the impact this disease could have in Oklahoma, we plan to do additional sampling 
for this disease at nurseries that grow Redbud trees. Over the next 2 to 3 weeks, CPS inspectors s 
are going to take samples at each nursery that was positive. After sampling the positive nurseries 
we will sample the remaining nurseries in the area, with a plan to finish the initial sampling 
before March 1.  
 

 

Hemp Program 

License renewal for 2023 have begun for hemp. Caroline Nelson, Hemp Program Administrator 
has received many calls about how to obtain a license and several applications have been 
submitted and approved for 2023.  Additionally, several letters of warning have been sent to 
2022 licensees who did not complete their reporting for 2022.  

Apiary Program 

Caroline Nelson, Apiary Program Administrator and Joe Rackley, CAPS coordinator, will be 
making presentations to educators from around the state at Oklahoma Environmental Education 
Expo in February at the Oklahoma City Zoo.  

 

Figure 2: VSD Symptoms on growing plants. Figure 1: VSD Cuttings 



D-6 
 
 

 

 

 
 

Feed Program 

During this reporting period there were a total of 225 official feed samples analyzed, with 1214 
feed determinations made from these samples.  These determinations resulted in the issuance of 
58 violations for feeds or feed ingredients that did not meet established tolerances based on their 
guaranteed analysis.  Most of these violations were issued for products deficient in Crude 
Protein. Other violation includes Crude Fat, Crude Fiber, Vitamin A, Phosphorus, Potassium, 
Calcium, Salt, Copper, and Zinc. Twenty stop sale orders were issued for feed products with 
severe deviations from their guaranteed analysis. Seven stop sales were issued for products 
deficient in Vitamin A. Three stop sales were issued for products excessive in Crude Fiber. 
Three stop sales were issued for products deficient in Calcium. Two stop sales were issued for 
products deficient in Crude Fat. Two stop sales were issued for products deficient in Crude 
Protein. Two stop sales were issued for products deficient in Copper. One stop sale was issued 
for a product deficient in Phosphorus. 

The following tables show a two-month comparison of label violations and stop sale orders 
issued by the Department for feed products that did not meet their guaranteed analysis.   

 

 



D-7 
 
 

 

Table 1. Feed Notice of Label Violation Summary December 2022- November 2022 
 Number of Label Violations 
Nutritional Guarantee December 1 November 2 Two Month Total 
Crude Protein 17 8 25 
Non-protein Nitrogen 0 0 0 
Crude Fat 11 8 19 
Crude Fiber 1 2 3 
Calcium 6 3 9 
Phosphorus 3 2 5 
Salt 4 1 5 
Magnesium 0 0 0 
Potassium 1 2 3 
Copper 3 2 5 
Iron 0 1 1 
Zinc 4 3 7 
Vitamin A 8 4 12 
Medicated Feed 0 0 0 

Total 58 36 94 
1 225 feed samples analyzed with 1214 determinations; 2 181 feed samples analyzed with 818 determinations  
 

 

 

Table 2. Feed Stop Sale Summary December 2022- November 2022 
 Number of Stop Sales 
Nutritional Guarantee December 1 November 2 Two Month Total 
Crude Protein 2 1 3 
Non-protein Nitrogen 0 0 0 
Crude Fat 2 6 8 
Crude Fiber 3 0 3 
Calcium 3 3 6 
Phosphorus 1 0 1 
Salt 0 3 3 
Manganese 0 0 0 
Potassium 0 0 0 
Copper 2 2 4 
Zinc 0 1 1 
Vitamin A 7 7 14 
Medicated Feed 0 0 0 

Total 20 23 43 
1 225 feed samples analyzed with 1214 determinations; 2 181 feed samples analyzed with 818 determinations 

 

 
  
 



D-8 
 
 

 

Weights and Measures Program  
 
During this period the large capacity scale technicians tested 105 Vehicle scales and 12 scales 
were rejected. 

CPS inspectors checked a total of 1066 small scales and 26 platform scales, 57 of the scales were 
rejected. There were 70 random pack inspections and 101 standard pack inspections conducted 
that resulted in 13 companies receiving letters of warning and 2 company’s receiving a Stop 
Sale. Additionally, 277 price verification inspections were conducted at various retailers that 
resulted in 29 companies receiving letters of warning.  

A total of 4 scale companies received a letter of warning for not properly servicing scales and 7 
businesses received a letter of warning for possessing a not approved scale. 

The 2023 ODAFF Ranch Scale testing program plans to begin around the first of March. The fee 
for a ranch scale test is $200. Call the Weights & Measures office at 405/522-5968 or email Gary 
Smith at gary.smith@ag.ok.gov to request a scale test. 

 
Fertilizer Program  
 
Below you will find the performance numbers for the fertilizer, agricultural lime, and soil 
amendment programs for the time-period of November 15th, 2022 to January 5th, 2023. Fertilizer 
and ag lime samples were suspended for December and January to sample feed solely during its 
high use period allowing us to be more efficient with our time and resources. 
 

Type of Investigation Number 

Dry Bulk Fertilizer Facility 16 

Liquid Bulk Fertilizer Facility 6 

Fertilizer Samples Taken (Not Processed) 2 
  

As of January 5th, there are 1700 fertilizer licenses and 72 ag lime vendor licenses that have been 
renewed for 2023.  Additionally, there has also been 231 soil amendment registrants that have 
renewed a total of 934 soil amendment products for 2023.  

 

 



D-9 
 
 

 

                     I will be glad to answer any questions from the Board members. 

          
                                                    Kenny M. Naylor

 



 E - 1 

Oklahoma Department of Agriculture, Food and Forestry 
Animal Industry Services Board Report 

January 26, 2023 
Activities November 12, 2022 – December 31, 2022 

 
Animal Disease Traceability: 
During this time, we have distributed a RFID wand to OKC West Livestock Market. The 
market is updating their market recording software and will be integrating the wand into 
this system.  
 
We continue to distribute the free RFID tags to interested veterinarians and producers. 
During this time, we shipped 11,600 tags to veterinarians and producers. We also 
received 36 RFID wands that were purchased using supplemental cooperative agreement 
funding. We will be developing a system to allow veterinarians to apply to receive a 
wand and we’re hopeful we’ll be able to begin distributing them this spring.  
 
Aquaculture:   
2023 License renewal letters have been sent.  We have 3 licensed operators that we have 
been unsuccessful in contacting to initiate the required inspection. These operators will 
receive a letter advising that will not be able to renew their licenses until an inspection 
has been conducted per the rules. 
  
Marissa had two inquiries from potential new licensees. 
 
Biologics: 
During this time frame, we registered five new biological products. We also received 
notice of a recall of Elanco Rabvac that occurred over the summer. Veterinarians that 
received the recalled vaccine were notified and advised to return the vaccine. We shared 
this information with Dr. LeMac Morris, State Public Health Veterinarian, for their use 
when conducting dog bite/rabies investigations.  
 
Cattle Programs: 

Brucellosis: 
The only remaining reservoir of B abortus in the U.S. is in elk and bison in the Greater 
Yellowstone Park area.  Those states have Designated Surveillance Areas, where the 
disease in wildlife occasionally spills over into domestic cattle and bison.  
 
While there is very little need to test for B abortus any longer, this means we have very 
little or no surveillance for Brucella suis (Swine Brucellosis) which currently infects 
approximately 20% of the feral swine that our Wildlife Services personnel test.  B suis 
can, and does, infect cattle.  
 
Marissa McLaughlin has done a great job getting our Brucellosis Certified Herd Program 
up to date.  Express Ranches completed their testing to continue their Certified Herd 
status.  Re-certification letters were sent to the other three program participants. 

Tuberculosis: 



 E - 2 

We currently have no TB affected herds in Oklahoma.   
 

Trichomoniasis: 
During this period there were 1,284 Oklahoma bulls tested for Trichomoniasis with no 
positive individuals found.  
 

 
 
Our current statistics compare to 2.1% positive bulls in 2011, 1.4% in 2012, 1.3% in 
2013, 1.4% in 2014, 1.1% in 2015, 1.1% in 2016, 0.5% in 2017, 0.32% in 2018, 0.42% in 
2019, 0.35% in 2020, and 0.28% in 2021. 

 
Johne’s Disease: 

For the current reporting period we received 9 positve reports on 8 new premises.  For the 
same period in 2021 we received 18 positive reports on 13 new premises.  
Johne’s disease reports are by nature biased.  In the past we have reported on the total 
number within a reporting period.  Some of the numbers were high and some were lower.  
To add to the confusion were the multiple reports from the same premise involving a 
confirmation test or multiple animals that tested positive.  It was difficult to evaluate 
success, if any, in our efforts to educate our producers.  And because the disease is a 
slowly progressive disease gathering disease trends is also slow.   
 



 E - 3 

 
 
Emergency Management: 
On December 8, Dr. Gorczyca hosted the Multistate Partnership (MSP) for Security in 
Agriculture monthly call.  
 
On November 18, Dr. Gorczyca met with Pam Zaabel with the National Pork Board to 
discuss enrolling Oklahoma into the Certified Swine Sample Collector training program.  
 
On December 12-13, Dr. Gorczyca, Lee Benson, and Audrey Ochsner participated in the 
Kansas Department of Agriculture’s annual Foot and Mouth Disease full scale exercise. 
It was a great opportunity to see the complex nature of this exercise in person and be able 
to assist with the scenario from a neighboring SAHO perspective.  
 
On December 14, A Stress First Aid for Agriculture Responders training was held at 
ODAFF for both AIS and AEMS field staff. Dr. Gorczyca worked with the OKMRC 
Stress Response Team to modify a training that is typically provided to health care 
workers to be applicable and pertinent to agricultural field staff when responding to 
foreign animal disease outbreaks and other stressors that can come from working with 
livestock and producers. Dr. Gorczyca worked with Pat and Lynette in AEMS to plan the 
meeting. It was well attended and well received. 
  
Equine Programs: 
There are no reported cases or quarantines for CEM in Oklahoma 
There are no new or current EIA cases or traces in Oklahoma. 
There are no known Piroplasmosis cases or traces in Oklahoma. 
 
Farmed Cervidae Programs: 
AIS is preparing for renewal season for the Farmed Cervidae Producers. Renewal packets 
will be mailed out in early January.  After correspondence with the Oklahoma 
Department of Wildlife Conservation we have established a contact person to assist us in 
determining which commercial hunting facilities are fully licensed and compliant with 
ODWC for Cervidae import permit applications.   

 



 E - 4 

Feral Swine: 
On December 5, 2022 AIS received a complaint from a feral swine hunter stating that he 
booked a hunt with a Commercial Hunt Area in McClain County and expected to harvest 
feral swine.  While investigating this complaint it was discovered that the CHA was 
advertising boar hunting on their website.  Dana Call spoke to the manager of the facility 
to inform them of the complaint and the findings on the website, explaining that it 
appears as though they are advertising hog hunts, however they are not a licensed feral 
swine sporting facility.  The manager was instructed to either remove the references to 
boar hunting from the website or apply for a feral swine sporting facility license to be 
compliant with the law.  A letter of warning was mailed to the facility after they had not 
removed the ad in a few weeks. 
 
A feral swine hunter contacted AIS regarding a recently harvested feral swine with 
parasitic worms in the carcass.  They were advised to send a sample of the worms to an 
animal disease diagnostic lab for accurate identification.  
   
Foreign Animal Disease: 
During this time, we had six FAD investigations.  Two rabbits were tested due to 
suspicion of Rabbit Hemorrhagic Disease, one hog was tested due to suspicion of African 
Swine Fever, and three chickens were tested due to suspicion of Highly Pathogenic Avian 
Influenza.  One of the chickens was positive for HPAI and that case is described 
elsewhere.  Thankfully the remainder of the investigations were not FADs.   
 
On December 2 we had 1 confirmed case of Highly Pathogenic Avian Influenza in a 
backyard flock in Pawnee County during this time.  The flock was a mix of domestic 
poultry and domestic waterfowl that had access to a pond on the premises where wild 
waterfowl were known to visit. Since wild waterfowl are the highest risk source for 
carrying the virus, this commingling allowed the virus to be transmitted to the domestic 
birds. The owners reported sudden death in multiple birds.  To keep the virus from 
spreading, the flock was depopulated, and the birds were disposed of by incineration.   

 



 E - 5 

 
 

 
 
We continue to be part of three separate working groups that are planning to respond to 
African Swine Fever in case the disease makes it to the USA.  This has gained greater 
significance due to the finding of ASF in the Dominican Republic and Haiti. 
 
Livestock Market Audits: 
During this period, staff has been working with an individual who is trying to open the 
currently shuttered sale barn in Overbrook, Oklahoma. As of the end of December, that 
individual has not returned any paperwork to start our licensing process.  Although no 
market applications were received this month, packets were requested by a of couple of 



 E - 6 

others interested in sale barn ownership. This period also allowed for the completion of 
an annual market development audit of federal grant funds, a new market orientation, as 
well as several custodial account reviews.  
 
     Livestock Auction Market Activities 
   Auction market licenses issued      0 
  Auction market licenses pending  0 
   Market custodial audits completed       6 
   Auction market complaints investigated     0 
  Fines collected    0 
   Livestock Markets with Legal Action     0  
   Special Audits (Market Development) 1 
 
Outreach: 
On November 16 I gave a presentation on OSU Extension’s “Coffee Shop” virtual 
meeting.  I focused on show swine regulatory issues.  
 
On November 17 Dr. Stone represented ODAFF at the Northeastern Veterinary Medical 
Association, covering the current HPAI situation in America, the new electronic Vet CVI 
we have available, the importance of proper CVI submission with disease traceability, 
and answered questions on several diseases of horse, swine, cattle, and backyard poultry 
biosecurity.    
 
On November 29 Kayla Poling from the Ag Youth Council shadowed me for the day.  
Kayla attended a Directors Meeting with me and really enjoyed learning a lot about the 
agency.  She had some good questions and I think enjoyed the time. 
 
On November 30 Dr. Stone held a tissue sampling wet lab using harvested deer heads.  
14 veterinary students and two wildlife students participated.  This training taught proper 
collection of target lymph nodes and the Obex from the brain.  These are samples that are 
routinely tested for CWD in deer, elk, and moose but the same method is used in 
sampling for other prion disease such as scrapie in sheep and bovine spongiform 
encephalopathy in cattle.  Prior to the wet lab these specimens were sampled by Dr. 
Susan Little, parasitologist at OSU, for part of her ongoing research species and 
surveillance for the Asian Longhorn Tick.  
 
On December 5 Secretary Arthur, Deputy Commissioner Rowlett, and I met with 
representatives from Livestock Marketing Association to discuss the issues around 
livestock trailer accidents and the way the livestock are handled. 
 
On December 8 I received a call from the Canadian County Sheriff regarding a case of a 
producer not taking care of his cattle.  They were asking for assistance in evaluating the 
cattle.  I asked Dr. Mikka Larssen, USDA Field Veterinarian, to meet with them to do an 
investigation.  They discussed the situation with the owner, offered suggestions and 
decided to give him a few weeks to rectify the situation.  Dr. Larssen went back in early 
January and the cattle have improved body condition scores. 



 E - 7 

On December 9, Dr. Gorczyca got the opportunity to work with Destyn Emerson, Ag 
Youth Council member, and answer questions about veterinary medicine to assist Destyn 
with her project for the AYC.  
 
On December 19 I was invited to take part in a podcast hosted by OSU Equine Program 
Dr. Kris Hiney.  Dr. Hiney hosts the podcast for horse owners and enthusiasts.  We 
discussed the upcoming FDA rule that will make all antibiotics that are currently able to 
be sold over the counter into prescription drugs.  We talked about 
Veterinary/Client/Patient Relationships and the proper use of antibiotics. 
 
Cattlemen’s Congress is in Oklahoma City for the third year, running from December 29 
thru January 14.  Our LSIs are on site to help Cattlemen’s Congress interns with official 
animal identification and health requirements for entry into the show, to assist with 
problems that may arise and to educate the participants of the need for BVD PI testing to 
keep everyone’s animals safe.  
 
Poultry Programs: 
There have been 18 sick or dead birds submitted for our sick bird/dead bird program 
since the last board report, for a total of 152 cases this year. 
 
Dr. Ruby attended the Arkansas Poultry Veterinarian Association meeting to participate 
in a round table discussion between Oklahoma, Arkansas, and Missouri regarding their 
state’s responses to HPAI.   
 
Public Health 
On December 2, Dr. Gorczyca participated as an advisory board member for NSF 
EPSCoR Tick Grant, Year 4 update. This is a 5-year project funded by the National 
Science Foundation for investigation and mapping of tick species and tick-borne diseases 
in Oklahoma and Kansas. The result will be accurate mapping of the tick species and the 
tick-borne diseases those ticks are more likely to harbor to assist public health officials in 
diagnosing human tick-borne illnesses.  
 
Rabies in Livestock: 
There have been no new cases of rabies reported in livestock in Oklahoma.  
 
Sheep and Goat Programs: 
On November 18 Dr. Stone worked with a flock owner to devise and apply a feasible 
work plan for test and cull while managing Coxiella infection (Q Fever) within a herd of 
dairy goats.  Unfortunately, the owner became very ill and is having to sell all the goats, 
so the project can’t be completed. 
 
Swine Programs: 
In December, renewal forms and swine health information were sent to the validated and 
qualified herd program participants.  Their annual renewals and first quarterly tests are 
due on January 31,2023.  Dana Call continues to work with veterinarians and producers 
to assure accuracy in the VQ herd documents and appropriate swine identification.  



 E - 8 

On December 9 our Department of Agriculture Lab reported show pig as suspect for 
Brucellosis.  Dr. Stone collected additional samples from the pig, and they were sent to 
NVSL where it tested negative on a confirmatory test. 
 
As the spring show season approaches, AIS is receiving several swine show permit 
applications and swine test charts.  A swine health information sheet was sent to the 
County Extension offices for distribution to 4H, FFA and others who are interested in 
swine and human health. 
 
Miscellaneous: 
There were no miscellaneous activities during this time.  We were focused and on point! 
 
Respectfully, 
 

 
 
Rod Hall, DVM 
 
 



 
F-1 

Oklahoma Department of Agriculture, Food, and Forestry 
Wildlife Services Division 

 Board Report for December 2022 Activities 
 
 
Introduction 
 
 Wildlife Services (WS) responds to damage complaints caused by wildlife to resources or 
property throughout Oklahoma.  WS Specialists conduct operational damage management programs 
for many of the complaints they receive to resolve these wildlife damage problems.  During this 
period, these projects were conducted on 423 properties with an estimated 964,968 acres of land 
under agreement.  Additionally, WS helped 2,151 persons and entities with technical assistance 
which involved providing information to cooperators so they can resolve problems themselves.  
Cooperators reported and WS Specialists verified wildlife damage of $1,173,228 during this period. 
Beaver damages accounted for losses totaling $108,500. Coyotes were responsible for a number of 
damage requests, primarily to livestock, with losses totaling $31,242. Feral swine damages accounted 
for losses totaling $951,486, while other species of wildlife were responsible for $82,000 in damages 
to property, agriculture, and livestock.  
 
 
Providing Wildlife Services  
 

                         

 
        
             
 
 
 

54%

4%

42%

West District

Feral swine Beaver Coyotes

91%

5%4%

Northeast District

Feral swine Beaver Coyotes

Figure 2: Species Removed in the Northeast District 
by percentage during December 2022 
 

Figure 1: Species Removed in West District by 
percentage during December 2022 
 



F-2 
 

                 

 
        

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Coyote Damage Management  
 

Texas County livestock producer requested assistance with coyotes depredating on his 
calves.  The producer reported coyotes had killed two calves valued at $1,763. The Wildlife 
Specialist assigned to Texas County responded to the request and examined the carcass and 
confirmed that coyotes were responsible for the loss of the calf. The Specialist used leg hold traps, 
snares, and calling/shooting to remove fifty-three coyotes.  Control efforts continue to prevent 
additional losses. 

86%

11% 3%

Southeast District

Feral swine Beaver Coyotes

27%

8%65%

Central District

Feral swine Beaver Coyote

68%
6%

26%

State of Oklahoma

Feral swine Beaver Coyotes

Figure 4: Species Removed in the Central District 
by percentage during December 2022 

Figure 3: Species Removed in the Southeast 
District by percentage during December 
2022 
 

Figure 5: Species Removed in the State by percentage during December 2022 
 



 
F-3 

Harmon County livestock producer requested assistance with coyotes depredating on his 
calves.  The producer reported coyotes killed a calf valued at $1,000. The Wildlife Specialist 
assigned to Harmon County responded to the request and examined the carcass and confirmed 
coyotes were responsible for the loss of the calf. Control efforts have removed fourteen coyotes and 
are continuing at this time to further reduce predation losses from coyotes. 

Blaine County livestock producer requested assistance with coyotes depredating on calves.  
The producer reported coyotes had killed one of his calves.  The Wildlife Specialist assigned to 
Blaine County examined the carcass and verified coyotes were responsible for the loss valued at 
$881. Damage management efforts were successful in removing eleven coyotes from the property.  
No further losses have occurred and work is ongoing at this time to prevent additional losses. 

 Cotton County livestock producer requested assistance with coyotes depredating on his 
calves.  The producer reported coyotes had killed one calf valued at $882. The Wildlife Specialist 
assigned to Beckham County responded to the request and examined the carcass and confirmed 
coyotes were responsible for the loss of the calf. The Specialist used M-44 Sodium Cyanide devices 
to remove seven coyotes.  Control efforts continue to prevent additional losses. 

Kiowa County landowner requested assistance with coyotes depredating on his goats.  The 
producer reported coyotes had killed four goats valued at $1,600. The Wildlife Specialist assigned 
to Kiowa County examined one of the carcasses and verified coyotes were responsible for the loss. 
Damage management efforts were successful in removing ten coyotes from the property.  Control 
efforts continue to prevent additional losses. 

 
 
Feral Swine Damage Management 
 

Creek County landowner requested assistance from WS with feral swine that had moved 
onto his property and begun rooting in his hayfield. A WS Troubleshooter visited the location and 
verified the damage estimated at $1,500. An electronic corral-type trap was used to remove twenty-
six feral swine from the property.  With the help of aerial operations, twelve more were removed.  
No further activity has been reported or observed. Work is complete at this time. 
 

Pawnee County farmer contacted WS requesting assistance with a feral swine responsible 
for damages to his wheat field. A WS Specialist responded to the request and verified there was a 
sounder of hogs on the property responsible for approximately 25 acres of damage to the wheat 
field valued at $3,849. The Specialist set a live trap on the property and removed eight feral swine 
from the area. Trapping efforts have concluded at this time with monitoring efforts continuing. 
 

Lincoln County landowner contacted WS requesting assistance with a group of feral swine 
rooting his pasture. A WS Specialist responded to the request and verified the damages.  The 
Specialist set a live trap on the property to remove eight feral swine from the area. Trapping efforts 
have concluded at this time with monitoring efforts continuing on the property.   

 
Roger Mills County landowner contacted WS needing assistance with feral swine rooting in 

his pastures.  The landowner estimated twenty acres of his pasture were rooted up resulting in 
$3,000 in damages.  The Wildlife Specialist assigned to Roger Mills County responded to the request 
and verified the damage.  A live trap was set and thirty-one feral swine were removed from the 



F-4 
 

property.  No additional damage has occurred and the population in the area is being monitored to 
determine if additional management is needed. 

 
Jackson County landowner requested assistance with feral responsible for contaminating 

his sileage and estimated the damage to be valued at $8,000.  The Wildlife Specialist assigned to 
Jackson County responded to the request and verified the damage.  The Specialist set a live trap and 
removed thirty-two feral swine from the area.  Activity in this area is closely being monitored to 
determine if further management is needed.  

 
Tillman County farmer requested assistance with feral swine damaging thirty of his stored 

hay bales.  The Wildlife Specialist assigned to Tillman County responded to the request and his field 
inspection verified the damages to the haybales at $4,000. The Specialist set a live trap and had 
used the aerial program remove seventy-seven feral swine from the property. The area continues to 
be monitored for activity to determine if additional management efforts are needed to reduce 
further damage. 

Kiowa County landowner contacted WS needing assistance with feral swine damaging 
fifteen acres of pasture estimated at $2,400.  The Wildlife Specialist assigned to Kiowa County 
responded to the request and verified the damage.  A live trap was set and twenty-seven feral swine 
were removed from the property.  No additional damage has occurred and the population in the 
area is being monitored to determine if additional management is needed. 

Murray County cooperator called WS for assistance with feral swine causing damage to his 
hayfields and getting into his yard. Damage was verified and estimated at $3,000. After pre-baiting 
with corn, a remote camera trap was placed, and thirty feral swine were removed to reduce 
damages. This project has concluded after no further damages were reported.  

Hughes County cooperator called WS for assistance with feral swine causing damage to his 
farm and cattle operations. Feral swine acitivy was verified and damages were estimated to be 
$2,000 to the rye fields, $7,000 to the winter wheat fields, and $3,000  in damages to the cattle 
pastures. After pre-baiting with corn, a remote camera trap was placed and thirty-two feral swine 
were captured and removed from the property.  Aerial operations were conducted and another 
thirty-six feral swine were removed. This project is still being monitored.     

 
 
Aerial Operations 
 

Aerial operations were conducted in Custer, Blaine, and Dewey Counties in response to 
several farmers requesting feral swine damaging wheat fields and pastures.  Damage in the area 
flown was estimated at $20,000.  The helicopter was utilized for 7.1 flying hours to remove two 
hundred and thirty-two feral swine.  This area will be closely monitored to determine if additional 
aerial operations are needed. 
 
 
Beaver Damage Management 
 



 
F-5 

 Haskell County landowner contacted WS regarding beaver damage on their property. The 
WS Specialist verified the damage, estimated at $9,000. Conibear traps were set and six beavers 
were removed from the property. Work is now complete and there is no current activity from 
beavers. 
 

Nowata County landowner contacted WS about beavers girdling several large trees valued 
at $1,500 and burrowing several large holes into his pond's dam valued at $3,000. A WS Specialist 
responded to the request and verified the damage reported. The Specialist set conibear traps to 
remove two beavers. The landowner was instructed on environmental changes and fencing 
methods that can be used to prevent future damages.  
 

Ottawa County landowner requested WS with assistance with beavers girdling several 
large trees, flooding a drainage ditch, and burrowing several large holes into his pond's dam. Total 
damage to the property was estimated at $8,000. A WS Specialist responded to the request and 
verified the damage reported. The Specialist was able to remove two beavers with a firearm. The 
Specialist also used conibear traps to remove the remaining beaver. The landowner has been 
informed of environmental changes and fencing methods that can be utilized to prevent future 
damages. 
  

Garfield County Road Commissioner contacted WS for assistance with beavers that were 
responsible for damming up the creek on one of his bridge culverts causing the water to go over the 
road. The Commissioner estimated the damage to the road and bridge structure to be $3,300.  The 
Specialist for Garfield County responded and verified the damage.  The Specialist was able to 
remove the beavers from the creek to reduce additional damages to road and bridge. 

 
Stephens County landowner contacted WS for assistance with beavers responsible for 

burrowing into the dam structure on his pond.  The Specialist for Stephens County verified beavers 
were responsible for $3,000 in damage to the dam.  The Specialist used conibear traps to remove 
eleven beavers from the pond. 
 

Kingfisher County Road Commissioner requested assistance with beavers flooding one of 
the roads in his district.  The Commissioner reported beavers were responsible for damages totaling 
$2,000 to the bridge structure and roadbed.  The Specialist for Kingfisher County responded to the 
request and verified the damage.  Conibear traps were set to remove the beavers from the creek and 
no further damage has occurred with work concluded at this property. 

Dewey County landowner contacted WS for assistance with beavers responsible for 
burrowing into the dam structure on his pond. The landowner estimated the damage to the pond 
dam to be valued at $1,000.  The Specialist for Dewey County responded and verified the damage.  
The Specialist removed nine beavers from the pond to reduce any additional damage to the pond 
dam structure.  

Love County NRSCS office contacted WS for assistance with beaver damage to the dam of a 
flood control lake in the district. The beaver damage to the dam was verified and estimated to be 
$5,000. Conibear traps and snares were set and twenty-one beavers were removed. This project is 
still being monitored.  

           Garvin County rancher contacted WS for assistance with beavers cutting down trees on his 
property. Damages to the trees was verified and estimated at $1,000.  Conibear traps and foot-hold 



F-6 
 

traps were set and four beavers were removed. This project has concluded and no further damage 
has occurred.  

           Johnston County property owner called WS for assistance with beavers damaging his trees 
around his pond. Beaver damages were verified and estimated at $200. Conibear traps were set and 
one beaver was removed. This project is till being monitored and the landowner was advised about 
environmental changes that may help deter future beaver damage.  

 
Table 1: Beaver, Coyote, and Feral Swine removal in Oklahoma by WS December 2022 
  

County Beaver Coyote 
Feral 
swine *District 

Adair    NE 
Alfalfa    W 
Atoka    SE 
Beaver 1 41  W 
Beckham 3 12 18 W 
Blaine 4 2 1 W 
Bryan 6  27 SE 
Caddo   82 W 
Canadian 1  42 C 
Carter  1 21 SE 
Cherokee 2   NE 
Choctaw    SE 
Cimarron  6  W 
Cleveland 2   C 
Coal    SE 
Comanche  14 49 W 
Cotton  2 14 W 
Craig  14 103 NE 
Creek  4 70 NE 
Custer   105 W 
Delaware    NE 
Dewey 4 8 212 W 
Ellis  83 2 W 
Garfield 10 14  W 
Garvin 1 3 6 SE 
Grady   21 W 
Grant    W 
Greer  20  W 
Harmon  62  W 
Harper  8  W 



 
F-7 

Haskell    NE 
Hughes   75 SE 
Jackson  21 54 W 
Jefferson 3   SE 
Johnston 3  3 SE 
Kay   2 NE 
Kingfisher 6   W 
Kiowa  1 23 W 
Latimer    SE 
Leflore 1 1 95 SE 
Lincoln    NE 
Logan 6 5 16 W 
Love 14   SE 
Major  4 3 W 
Marshall    SE 
Mayes    SE 
McClain    SE 
McCurtain    SE 
McIntosh 3  8 NE 
Murray 3 5 32 SE 
Muskogee    NE 
Noble    NE 
Nowata 4  72 NE 
Okfuskee 1  5 NE 
Oklahoma 9 10  C 
Okmulgee 5  15 NE 
Osage   23 NE 
Ottawa 2   NE 
Pawnee   51 NE 
Payne 2   NE 
Pittsburg    SE 
Pontotoc 4   SE 
Pottawatomie    C 
Pushmataha 5   SE 
Roger Mills 2 19 16 W 
Rogers    NE 
Seminole   60 SE 
Sequoyah    NE 
Stephens 8 21  W 
Texas  105  W 
Tillman  37 31 W 
Tulsa    NE 



F-8 
 

Wagoner  1 37 NE 
Washington    NE 
Washita  11  W 
Woods 2 2  W 
Woodward 2   W 
TOTAL 119 537 1394  

*NE –Northeast, SE –Southeast, W – West, C - Central Districts 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Scott Alls 
Division Director 
Wildlife Services Division 



  G-1 
 

December 2022 Activity Report 
for  

January 2023 Board Meeting 
 

Agricultural Statistics Division 
 
General 
For the month of December, rainfall totals averaged 1.86 inches throughout the state, with the 
East Central district recording the highest precipitation at 3.15 inches and the Panhandle district 
recording the lowest precipitation at 0.16 of an inch. According to the December 27th, US 
Drought Monitor Report, 98 percent of the state was in the abnormally dry to exceptional 
drought category, up 3 points from the previous year. Additionally, 90 percent of the state was in 
the moderate drought to exceptional drought category, unchanged from the previous year. 
Statewide temperatures averaged in the high 30’s and low 40’s, with the lowest recording of -7 
degrees at Vinita on Thursday, December 22nd and the highest recording of 83 degrees at Tipton 
on Monday, December 5th. Topsoil and subsoil moisture conditions were rated mostly adequate 
to short.  
 
Small Grains: Winter wheat grazed reached 32 percent, down 4 points from the previous year. 
Rye grazed reached 2 percent, down 8 points from the previous year. Oats grazed reached 2 
percent, down 1 point from the previous year.  
 
Pasture and Livestock: Pasture and range condition was rated at 66 percent poor to fair. 
Livestock condition was rated at 71 percent fair to good. 
 
Surveys:  Surveys administered by the Oklahoma call center are listed in the table below: 

Survey Enumerated 
by: Survey Dates 

Row Crop CAPS DCC 11/1 – 1/18 

ITC/Census DCC 12/15 -6/15 

December Ag DCC 11/29 -12/19 

Cotton Ginnings DCC 12/1 – 12/2 

Cotton Ginnings DCC 12/15 -12/16 

January Cattle DCC 12/31 – 1/17 

January Sheep and Goats DCC 12/31 – 1/17 

Milk Production  DCC 12/31 – 1/14 

Pecan PDI DCC 1/3 – 1/11 

Cotton Ginnings DCC 1/3 – 1/4 

Cotton Ginnings DCC 1/16 -1/17 
 



  G-2 
 

Statistics: On January 12, 2023, the Annual Crop Production report was published. Highlights 
include: 
 
Oklahoma Upland cotton production is forecast at 210 thousand bales, 70 percent lower than 
2021. Yield averaged 348 pounds per acre, compared with 756 pounds last year. Acreage 
harvested, at 290 thousand acres, is down 34 percent from last year. 
 
Oklahoma corn production is forecast at 24.4 million bushels, down 45 percent from the 
previous year. Statewide yields averaged 122 bushels per acre, 28.0 bushels lower than 2021. 
Acres harvested for grain, at 200 thousand, is down 32 percent from last year. 
 
Oklahoma sorghum production is forecast at 5.76 million bushels, down 72 percent from last 
year. Yield averaged 24.0 bushels per acre, down 30.0 bushels from the previous year. Acres 
harvested, at 240 thousand acres, is 37 percent lower than 2021. 
 
Oklahoma Soybean production is forecast at 6.55 million bushels, down 47 percent from last 
year. Yield averaged 17.0 bushels per acre, down 6.0 bushels from the previous year. Acres 
harvested, at 385 thousand acres, is 28 percent lower than 2021. 
 
Oklahoma Peanut production is forecast at 62.05 million pounds, down 7 percent from last 
year. Yield averaged 3,650 pounds per acre, down 800 pounds from the previous year. Acres 
harvested, at 17 thousand acres, is 13 percent higher than 2021. 
 
Oklahoma Hay production is forecast at 3.94 million tons, down 21 percent from last year. 
Yield averaged 1.3 tons per acre, down .3 tons per acre from the previous year. Acres harvested, 
at 3.02 million acres, is 2 percent higher than 2021. 
 
Oklahoma Wheat Seedings is forecasted at 4.60 million acres, up 7 percent from the previous 
year. 
 
 
Information Requests:  Phone calls, personal visits to our office, and requests via e-mail for 
information since last report totaled 39.   
 
Releases for December:   Relating Dates:  Release Dates: 
Crop Production    December 1, 2022  December 9, 2022 
Certified Organic Production   2021 Crop Year  December 15, 2022 
Wheat County Estimates   2022 Crop Year  December 15, 2022 
Cattle on Feed     December 1, 2022  December 23, 2022 
Hogs and Pigs     December 1, 2022  December 23, 2022 
Agricultural Prices    December 15, 2022  December 30, 2022 
 
Releases for January:   Relating Dates:  Release Dates 
Annual Crop Production   December 1, 2022  January 12, 2023 
Grain Stocks     December 1, 2022   January 12, 2023 
Winter Wheat      December 1, 2022   January 12, 2023 



  G-3 
 

Cattle on Feed     January 1, 2023  January 20, 2023 
Cattle      January 1, 2023  January 31, 2023 
Sheep and Goats    January 1, 2023  January 31, 2023  
Agricultural Prices    January 15, 2023  January 31, 2023 
 
Meetings and Events:   Date:    Location: 
Oklahoma Peanut Commission Meeting December 1, 2022  Stillwater, OK 
Oklahoma Wheat Commission Meeting December 2, 2022  OKC, OK 
Intertribal Agriculture Council Meeting December 5-8, 2022  Las Vegas, NV 
NASS/NASDA Award Ceremony  December 8, 2022  Virtual 
AYC Session 4     December 14, 2022  OKC, OK 
SEB/FAC Meeting    December 15, 2022  Langston, OK 
Oklahoma Sorghum Commission Meeting December 16, 2022  Stillwater, OK 
Oklahoma Sorghum Growers Meeting January 13, 2023  Enid, OK 
NRCS State Technical Committee  January 19, 2023  Virtual 
AYC Session 5     January 26, 2023  OKC, OK 
Oklahoma NASDA ARMS 3 Training January 31-Feb. 1, 2023 Norman, OK 
 
 
 
 
 
          Respectfully Submitted,  
             
 
          
         Troy Marshall 



H-1 
 
 
 

MARKET DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
January 26, 2023 

Report to the State Board of Agriculture  
 

AG IN THE CLASSROOM 
 

AG IN THE CLASSROOM IMPACT 
● Total Number of Teachers/Administrators Impacted: 110 
● Total Number of Pre-service Teachers Impacted: 54 
● Total Number of Extension Educators Impacted: 25 
● Total Number of Students Directly Impacted by Coordinators: 165 
● Total Number of Resources Given: 11,042 
● Total Number of Teachers/PreService Teachers Resources Given to: 185 
● Total Number of PreK-12th Grade Students Resources Given to: 165 

 
AG IN THE CLASSROOM WEBSITE, LESSON IMPACT, AND SOCIAL MEDIA 
• The AITC website had 23,190 visits and 19,176 unique pageview visits. 
• The AITC monthly email is delivered to 16,710 accounts. 
• The AITC Facebook page now has 9,096 followers. 
• The AITC Twitter page now has 584 followers. 
• Oklahoma AITC Instagram account now has 667 followers.  
• Oklahoma AITC Pinterest account now has 228 followers. 
• The AITC YouTube channel now has 8,886 views.  

 
Ag in the Classroom- Professional Development Workshops 

Number of 
Educators & 

Grade 
Level(s) 

Location Lessons/Activities Used Resources Given 

22 Pre-service 
OSU teachers 

Oklahoma State 
University Willard 
Hall 

Cotton Bolls, Pumpkin PIe in a Bag, Tree 
Glyph, Christmas tree cups STEM Project Barn full of resources 

12 Pre-service 
NSU teachers NSU Broken Arrow 

Cotton Bolls, Pumpkin Pie in a Bag, Tree 
Glyph 

Barn full of resources 

18 4-H County 
Educators 

4-H Summit in OKC 
Champion 
Conference Center 

Cotton Boll Angels, STEM Christmas 
Tree tower; Christmas tree Glyph 

ABC Coloring Book, Ag on Rt 66, 
Red Dirt Symbols, Nutrition Posters, 
Farm Animals reader, Grow Garden 
Grow Reader, barns, pens, various 
tear sheets, soil plants and animals oh 
my, Farm to School cookbook 

10 Elementary 
School 
teachers 

Will Rogers 
Elementary - 
Stillwater 

Christmas Tree, Stone Soup 
Barn full of resources 

19 
Northwestern 

Northwestern OSU - 
Alva 

AITC Website and Resources, Pig 
Personality Test, Thinking in Pictures: Dr. Barn Full of Resources 



H-2 
 
 
 

OSU Pre-
service 
teachers 

Grandin, Garden Grid Lesson, and 
Grady’s in the Silo STEM 

 
Ag in the Classroom- Student Events 

Number of 
Participants & 
Grade Level(s) 

Location Lessons/Activities Used Resources Given 

15 2nd grade 
students 

Deb Wood’s Class - Orvin 
Riser Elementary Edmond, 
OK 

Corn - Inherited Traits of Corn - National 
Ag in the Classroom Lesson 

Corn Elementary Tear 
Sheets 

150 3rd grade 
students 

Perkins-Tryon Elementary 
School Christmas Tree Farms and Forestry Red Dirt Symbols 

 
Ag in the Classroom- Resources Mailed or Delivered 

Locations where Resources are Mailed or Delivered 

Stigler Elementary School Garfield Elementary - Enid 

Deer Creek-Lamont Elementary Fairview High School 

Bridge Creek Intermediate School Leach Public Schools 

Jenks West Elementary McCloud Intermediate 

Mannford Upper Elementary Mark Twain Elementary - Duncan 

Shidler Public Schools Kingston Elementary 

Belfonte School - Muldrow Banner Public Schools - El Reno 

Willard 5th and 6th Grade Center - Ada Creekwood Elementary - Broken Arrow 

Snyder Elementary School Oologah Lower Elementary 

Turkey Ford Elementary - Wyandotte Payne County Livestock 4-H Club 

Jefferson County OSU Extension Oaks Academy Christian Co-op 

Newkirk Elementary Maryetta School 

Cherokee Cloverbuds Fort Gibson 4-H 

Riverside Elementary School - El Reno Grove Early Childhood Center 

Pawnee Elementary School Muldrow School 

Calumet Elementary Altus Christian Academy 

Laverne Elementary Capitol Hill Middle School - Oklahoma City 



H-3 
 
 
 

Esperanza School - Oklahoma City Cleora School - Afton 

Yale High School Cleveland Intermediate School 

Washington Irving Elementary School - Edmond Harmon County 4-H 

Covington-Douglas School Clyde Boyd Middle School - Sand Springs 

Salina Elementary School Afton Public Schools 

Hennessy Public Schools Skiatook Elementary 

St. Catherine School  Bryan County 4-H 

Allen Public Schools Chandler High School 

Savanna Public School The Met - Tulsa 

John K Hubbard Elementary - Noble Kaw Nation Child Development Center 

Newsom Homeschool - Attica DeerCreek Elementary - Edmond 

Marrs Elementary - Skiatook Sweetwater Schools 

Porter School Bradley Elementary - Drumright 

Heritage Elementary - Edmond Ward Elementary - Shidler 

Tulsa County OSU Extension Creek Elementary - Muskogee 

Lawton Farmers Market Oklahoma Union School - South Coffeyville 

Little Axe Elementary Cheyenne Elementary 

Mustang Valley Elementary Horace Mann Elementary - Duncan 

Sallisaw Middle School Summit Christian Academy 

Shawnee Schools Moseley Schools - Colcord  

Tuttle Elementary Schools Love County OSU Extension - Marietta Headstart 

Union 6th/7th grade Center Byng Public Schools 

Kingsgate Elementary - Oklahoma City MacArthur Middle School - Lawton 

Coolidge Elementary - Enid Adams Elementary - Enid 

Alex Elementary Brown Homeschool - Luther 

Big Five Homeschool - Holdenville Cornelsen Elementary - Fairview 

Cleveland Elementary School Marshall Elementary - Checotah 

Duke High School Caney Valley Middle School 



H-4 
 
 
 

High Plains Technology Center - Woodward Guymon Northeast Elementary 

North Park Elementary - Guymon Seed and Soil Prep Academy - Chandler 

Northeastern State University Rejoice School - Owasso 

Cushing Upper Elementary Morrison Homeschool - Tulsa 

Kay County 4-H John Ross Elementary - Edmond 

Burlington School Tuttle High School 

Charter Oak Elementary - Guthrie Perkins-Tryon Elementary School 

Freedom Elementary  

 
Ag in the Classroom- Other Events 

Event Highlights 

Read an Accurate Ag Book 
Week Bushel of Book Winner 
Presentations 

Ketchum FFA 

Provided lunch for Creek 
Elementary school in Broken 
Arrow 

The Oklahoma Farm Bureau Women’s committee partners with us to provide lunch to 
two schools who bring the most teachers to our summer Conference. Creekwood 
Elementary in Broken Arrow was one of those schools. We fed 75 teachers and staff at 
the school. 

NAITCO grant 

Oklahoma AITC submitted a grant for $4,000 to be used specifically for professional 
development. AITC will find out if they receive the grant by January 15th. 

 
AGRITOURISM 

 
Agritourism - Site Visits 
Producer Location Category Highlights 
Wonderland Tree Farm Harrah Christmas Trees Intern took photos of trees 
Cross Timbers Tree 
Farm & Pumpkin Patch 

Harrah Christmas Trees, 
Pumpkin Picking, 
Teachable 
Moments, Petting 
Farm 

Intern took photos of trees 

Molly & Socks 
Christmas Tree Farm 

Bristow Christmas Trees, 
Teachable Moments 

Took ag youth council member for a job shadow 

Okie Grown Farms Bixby Country Stay, 
Petting Farm 

Took ag youth council member for a job shadow. 

Owasso Christmas Tree 
& Berry Farm 

Owasso Christmas Trees, U-
Pick 

Visited for Christmas tree season 

Pleasant Valley Farms Sand Springs Christmas Trees, 
Pumpkin Picking, 
Mazes, Teachable 
Moments 

Intern took photos of trees 



H-5 
 
 
 

Leafer Lodge 
Christmas Tree Farm 

Stillwater Christmas Trees Intern took photos of trees 

Red Barn Christmas 
Tree Farm 

Kiowa Christmas Trees Took ag youth council member for a job shadow 

Mowdy Ranch 
Mustangs 

Coalgate Country Stays, 
Hunting, Wedding, 
Teachable Moments 

Took ag youth council member for a job shadow 

Lovera’s Cheese Co Krebs Farm-to-Table Took ag youth council member for a job shadow 
All Pine Christmas 
Tree Farm 

Yukon Christmas Trees Secretary Arthur visited the farm and created a video 
about Christmas tree production in Oklahoma 

Martinbird Christmas 
Tree Farm 

Tuttle Christmas Trees Job shadow with ag youth council member, created 
instagram reel of farm 

Pioneer Homestead 
Christmas Tree Farm 

OKC Christmas Trees Job shadow with ag youth council member, created 
instagram reel of farm 

Red Bird Farm Enid Christmas Trees Intern photographed farm, talked to Becky and Kent 
about NAFDMA, expanding with a fall season, 
adding food items/commercial kitchen, young farmer 
grant 

Sorghum Mill 
Christmas Tree Farm 

Edmond Christmas Trees Job shadow with ag youth council member 

    
 
Agritourism - New Producers or Potential Producers 
Producer Location Category Highlights 
Akecheta Christmas 
Tree Farm 

Hitchita Christmas Trees Site visit and officially signed up into agritourism 
program 

Mana Farms Davis Petting 
Farm/Country Stay 

Site visit, listed off some things to work on before 
adding to program 

Platter Flats Farm SE OK Pumpkin Patch Site visit and officially signed up 
Better Day Farms Tulsa Farm to table Site visit and officially signed up 
The Cedar Gate Kingfisher Country Stay Site visit, potential to sign up in the future or use 

event space 
Marina – petting farm Pryor Petting Farm Site visit, listed off some things to work before 

adding to program 
 
Social media 
Facebook 

- 22,295 likes 
- 24,749 followers 

Instagram 
- 2,313 followers 

 
Agritourism - Other Activities 

• Phone consult/conversations with: Cedar & Stone B&B (Tishomingo), Flying M Ranch for Farm 
to Table Dinner, A+H Farm – OK Grown Bags, Dunagan Farms – OK Grown bags and farm hub 
info, Prairie earth – OK Grown bags, 

• Email consultation with: Flower shop winery & pizzeria (Chickasha), Forbidden Fruits (Cyril), 
Honey Bear Ranch (Broken Bow), Dancing Skeleton Meadery (Sapulpa) 

• Zoom consults/meetings: 2 zoom meetings with Food Bank of Eastern OK to discuss OKLAS 
partnership, Girls Gone Wine – updated wine profiles,  

• Attend Farmer Veteran Coalition bus tour 



H-6 
 
 
 

• Attend OGIC meeting 
• Create rack cards and backdrop for Market News, send to print 
• Judge AFR speech contest in Enid & Stillwater 
• Speak to OSU Hospitality Classes about Agritourism 
• Ag Youth Council job shadow in Southeast OK 
• Ag Youth Council job shadow in Northeast OK 
• Interview with Radio Oklahoma Ag Network promoting Christmas Tree farms 

 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 
Activity Action 
Agriculture Enhancement & Diversification Program Fifteen (15) applications were received for the new 

Veteran/Young farmer grant, three (3) applications for a Farm 
Diversification grant One (1) Agriculture Event grant and 
Three (3) Veteran/Young farmer loan applications was 
submitted before the January 3rd deadline.  The selection 
committee will meet in February to act on these proposals. 

2019 SCBG Final Report SCBG grant coordinator received, reviewed & edited reports 
for nine (9) projects that were combined in Oklahoma's Final 
Annual Report for the 2019 $621,048.78 Specialty Crop Block 
Grant 

2020 SCBG 2nd Annual Report SCBG grant coordinator received, reviewed & edited reports 
for eight (8) projects that were combined in Oklahoma's 2nd 
Annual Report for the 2020 $589,536.30 Specialty Crop Block 
Grant. 

2021 SCBG 1st Annual Report SCBG grant coordinator received, reviewed & edited reports 
for Six (6) projects that were combined in Oklahoma's 1st 
Annual Report for the 2021 $599,596.19 Specialty Crop Block 
Grant.  

2021 H.R. 133 SCBG 1st Annual Report SCBG grant coordinator received, reviewed & edited reports 
for Nine (9) projects that were combined in Oklahoma's 1st 
Annual Report for the 2021 H.R. 133 $797,812.77 Specialty 
Crop Block Grant. 

 
FARM TO SCHOOL 

 
New Contacts: 

• Erin Martin -Tulsa Urban Ag Coalition/Director of Fresh Rx Oklahoma 
• Morgan Nicolao – Global Gardens Tulsa Coordinator 

 
Resource Requests 

• 35 cookbooks, 35 posters  
 
 
Other Activities 



H-7 
 
 
 

• Local Food For Schools was launched on January 4th 
 
Active Partners 

• Farm Bureau Women’s Leadership Team 
• Hunger Free Oklahoma 
• Dept. of Human Services (LFPA Cooperative Agreement) 
• Healthy Schools Oklahoma 
• ODAFF Food Safety 
• Cooking for Kids – OSU 
• Oklahoma Master Gardeners – Shelley Mitchell 
• National Western Heritage Museum – Gretchen Jeans 
• OK History Center – Sarah Dumas 

 
INTERNATIONAL 

 
Activity Action Location  
Certificate of Free Sale • Lopez 

 
 
 
 

Food Export  • Staff organized the kick-off of the Focus 
Trade Mission to Caribbean 

• Contacting all the suppliers, setting up calls 
and collecting information 

• Working on recruitment for future missions 

 

USLGE • Cattlemen’s Congress is underway. Dec 31-
Jan 14th 

• So far, we have had 10 countries and 52 
attendees in the International Room 

Mexico 
Canada 
Australia 
Norway 
UK 
South Africa 
Singapore 
Argentina 
Scotland 
 
 

 

Trade Show Coordination • Restaurant Show) May 20-23 for an OK 
Pavilion. We will be recruiting companies 
to participate.  

• We will be monitoring the interest and 
attendance at the new SIAL show for future 
participation 

 

Foreign Agriculture Service 
(FAS)  

• N/A  
 



H-8 
 
 
 

GIT (Governor’s International 
Team)/ODEC  

• Governor’s International Team Meeting is 
reorganizing some committees for the 
coming year 

 

 

Meetings • Onboarded our new Food Export Liaison 
went through several MIO companies to 
follow up on   

 

 
  

MADE IN OKLAHOMA COALITION 
 

Made in Oklahoma Coalition – Advertising, Web and Social Traffic 
Type  $ Spent and Information Highlights 
MIO Featured Monthly Recipes in 
Tulsa World and Oklahoman 

$500/month each Featured press release and 1-2 showcased 
recipes in food section 

Marketing, Consulting and 
Graphics Retainer with Krush 

$6,750 Social media posts, digital presence, 
analytics, management of content and 
creation of digital footprint, graphic design, 
etc. 

MIO TV Cooking Segments on 
Channel 6 in Tulsa and Channel 4, 
5 & 9 in OKC 

OKC –  
10 appearances  
Tulsa –  
4 appearances 
 

Natalie Mikels & David Brooks, MIO TV 
Personalities filmed in-person and remote 
segments for TV 

FY23 Media Campaign Reporting https://docs.google.com/sprea
dsheets/d/1HUhkBRVkRgK
wZf6ZZvyyTPeUTBx4I1-
lprDwzDgnPwM/edit#gid=3
78323568  
 
November Report: 
https://www.dropbox.com/s/5
qw02orem77re2s/MIO__KR
USH%20Report%20-
%20October%202022%20%
281%29.pdf?dl=0 
 
December Report: 
https://docs.google.com/prese
ntation/d/1HJLxg9ztJ0vi3A6
8XyAQLIQ4rlQiDZfUgTSg
3U1BoLs/edit#slide=id.g163
218eb926_0_0 
 

Here is a link to our original Google sheet 
workbook that we've been updating as the 
campaigns have evolved. You can toggle 
between all the logistical info for the co-op 
campaign such as the featured recipes per 
block, the annual media schedule, media 
budget, and the campaign spend tracker. It 
is a live link so it will be updated 
throughout the months as we continue our 
Co-Op campaigns. 

Restaurant of the Month Each month staff, along with 
Food Service Committee 
present the restaurant with 
their award and eat lunch as a 
group at their establishment.  

November – Eddie’s, Edmond 
 
December – Roosevelt’s, Tulsa 
 
 

 
Social Media Stats Staff, and MIO media 

committee plan social content 
each month with our 

https://www.dropbox.com/s/38c6kros6u74n
fu/Profile%20Performance%20%28Krush%
29%20December%201%2C%202022%20%

https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1HUhkBRVkRgKwZf6ZZvyyTPeUTBx4I1-lprDwzDgnPwM/edit#gid=378323568
https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1HUhkBRVkRgKwZf6ZZvyyTPeUTBx4I1-lprDwzDgnPwM/edit#gid=378323568
https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1HUhkBRVkRgKwZf6ZZvyyTPeUTBx4I1-lprDwzDgnPwM/edit#gid=378323568
https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1HUhkBRVkRgKwZf6ZZvyyTPeUTBx4I1-lprDwzDgnPwM/edit#gid=378323568
https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1HUhkBRVkRgKwZf6ZZvyyTPeUTBx4I1-lprDwzDgnPwM/edit#gid=378323568
https://www.dropbox.com/s/5qw02orem77re2s/MIO__KRUSH%20Report%20-%20October%202022%20%281%29.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/5qw02orem77re2s/MIO__KRUSH%20Report%20-%20October%202022%20%281%29.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/5qw02orem77re2s/MIO__KRUSH%20Report%20-%20October%202022%20%281%29.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/5qw02orem77re2s/MIO__KRUSH%20Report%20-%20October%202022%20%281%29.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/5qw02orem77re2s/MIO__KRUSH%20Report%20-%20October%202022%20%281%29.pdf?dl=0
https://docs.google.com/presentation/d/1HJLxg9ztJ0vi3A68XyAQLIQ4rlQiDZfUgTSg3U1BoLs/edit#slide=id.g163218eb926_0_0
https://docs.google.com/presentation/d/1HJLxg9ztJ0vi3A68XyAQLIQ4rlQiDZfUgTSg3U1BoLs/edit#slide=id.g163218eb926_0_0
https://docs.google.com/presentation/d/1HJLxg9ztJ0vi3A68XyAQLIQ4rlQiDZfUgTSg3U1BoLs/edit#slide=id.g163218eb926_0_0
https://docs.google.com/presentation/d/1HJLxg9ztJ0vi3A68XyAQLIQ4rlQiDZfUgTSg3U1BoLs/edit#slide=id.g163218eb926_0_0
https://docs.google.com/presentation/d/1HJLxg9ztJ0vi3A68XyAQLIQ4rlQiDZfUgTSg3U1BoLs/edit#slide=id.g163218eb926_0_0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/38c6kros6u74nfu/Profile%20Performance%20%28Krush%29%20December%201%2C%202022%20%E2%80%93%20December%2031%2C%202022-4.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/38c6kros6u74nfu/Profile%20Performance%20%28Krush%29%20December%201%2C%202022%20%E2%80%93%20December%2031%2C%202022-4.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/38c6kros6u74nfu/Profile%20Performance%20%28Krush%29%20December%201%2C%202022%20%E2%80%93%20December%2031%2C%202022-4.pdf?dl=0


H-9 
 
 
 

advertising agency, Krush 
Digital Marketing. 

E2%80%93%20December%2031%2C%20
2022-4.pdf?dl=0 
 
 

Edible OKC Giveaways $100/giveaway Each month MIO partners with Edible OKC 
to give away a $100 gift card to our 
restaurant of the month. 

MIO Monthly Newsletter  
 

 o 2400+ distribution list 
 

OK Living Partnership 
highlighting MIO Recipes 
  

Highlights 2-3 MIO recipes 
per month  

- Free publication to 
electric coop 
members 

 

MIO provides recipe content and OK 
Living does the ad design 

Recipes of the Month MIO recipes are developed 
each month highlighting 
member company products. 

November –  
- Homemade Green Bean Casserole 
- Ham Biscuits 
- Pecan Pie Truffles 
- Twice Baked Sweet Potatoes 

December— 
- Mocha Punch 
- Peanut Butter Reindeer Cookies 
-  

November Retailer of the Month Jumbo Foods 3 Locations in Enid 
December Retailer of the Month Walters Hometown Foods 2 Locations  

 
 

MADE IN OKLAHOMA PROGRAM 
 

Meetings/Events Date Location Details 
Radio Oklahoma Ag 
Network 

Nov. 15 Virtual Interviewed with  
Radio Oklahoma Ag 
Network to discuss ways to 
shop local during holiday 
season. 

Cowboy Christmas Dec. 3 Stockyards (OKC) The Made in Oklahoma 
Market was held in 
conjunction with Cowboy 
Christmas. We had 12 
companies participate. 

NAAMO State Branded Dec. 15 Virtual Attended zoom meeting 
with many other states’ state 
branded coordinators to 
discuss what is working 
well in their state. 

Upcoming Event:    
Tulsa Home and Garden 
Show 

March 9-12 Tulsa We will be having 10 
booths at this show, 
program members submit an 
application and then are 
selected to participate. 

https://www.dropbox.com/s/38c6kros6u74nfu/Profile%20Performance%20%28Krush%29%20December%201%2C%202022%20%E2%80%93%20December%2031%2C%202022-4.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/38c6kros6u74nfu/Profile%20Performance%20%28Krush%29%20December%201%2C%202022%20%E2%80%93%20December%2031%2C%202022-4.pdf?dl=0


H-10 
 
 
 

Ag Day at the Capitol  OKC Approximately 35 
organizations and Made in 
Oklahoma companies will 
be set up at the Capitol 
educating about their 
company. 

 
 

New Program Members - Producers: New Program Members – Retailers: 
Tropical Origins Rough Canyon Trading Company 
Wild Writer Creations OK Crates LLC 
RnB Leatherworks LLC Mollycoddled Hash Slinger 
Amy Watson Artistry Scissortail Gifts 
Coffee Creek MFG Wild Country Meats 
Dark Horse Creations  
Noe-it-all  
Valmedia, LLC  

 
Other Made in Oklahoma Activities: 

• Sent out information for additional events our members can participate in including American 
Farmer and Rancher Convention, Made in Oklahoma events at The Artery and more. 

• Assisted potential Retailers in connecting with Made in Oklahoma Producers 
• Our online store had an increased revenue of $1,308.38 from October to November. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



H-11 
 
 
 

MARKET NEWS SERVICES 
 

November 11, 2022 – January 10, 2023 
 

• Grain Report: 
 

November 11, 2022 January 10, 2023 DIFFERENCE 
 
WHEAT: (bu) $8.33-$9.13  $7.02-$7.92  $1.31 to $1.21 Lower 
 
MILO: (bu)  $6.58-$7.28  $6.55-$7.05  $0.03 to $0.23 Lower 
 
SOYBEANS: (bu) $13.60-$14.40  $13.95-$14.90  $0.35 to $0.50 Higher 
 
CORN: (bu)  $7.18-$8.08  $7.05-$8.05  $0.13 to $0.03 Lower  
 
COTTON: (lb)      85.95 cents   81.76 cents  4.19 cents Lower 
 

• OKC NATIONAL STOCKYARDS (OKC) STEER AND HEIFERS 
 

FEEDER STEERS 
 
Medium & Large Frame No. 1 Muscle Thickness (500-600 lb) 

o (1-11-22)  $172.00-205.50 Wtd. Avg $188.75 
o (1-9-23) $196.00-232.00 Wtd. Avg. $214.00 

 
HEIFERS  
 
Medium & Large Frame No. 1 Muscle Thickness (500-600 lb)  

o (1-11-22)  $142.00-179.00 Wtd. Avg $160.50 
o (1-9-23) $174.00-204.00 Wtd. Avg. $189.00 

 
 

• Weekly Report: 
o Nine weekly Oklahoma Market Reports were sent to 10,200 subscribers  

November 11, 2022-January 10, 2023 (up from 133 subscribers last report). 
 
 

• Voice Messaging System: 
o The market news voice messaging system during  
o Monthly Total: November 11, 2022-January 10, 2023 6,567 Accessed Times 
o Compared to Last Report: October 11, 2022-November 11, 2022 6,163 Accessed Times 
o Compared to Last Month: Accessed Times-is UP 404 on accessed times 

 
 

• Oklahoma Agriculture Market News  
o Facebook Page  

 Likes/Followers 384 
 UP 10 Likes/Followers 



H-12 
 
 
 

  People reached through pasted report: 1,500 people  
 

• Oklahoma Hay Directory  
o Hay Directory 

 Currently have 16 producers that have hay 
 15 producers sold out of hay this past report 

 
• Hay Report  

 
This Month: November 11, 2022 – January 6, 2023 Hay Traded 5,958 

Last Year November 12, 2021 – January 7, 2022 Hay Traded 8,943 
DOWN 2,985 Bales Reported 

 
OKLAHOMA HAY MARKET REPORT 

1-6-23 
Receipts: 1,130 Last Reported: 1,330 Year Ago: 2,762 

 
  

Compared to the last report: Hay trade was light during the holiday weeks. Few trades did move but not 
enough for any trends to be made. As we look at the Oklahoma Mesonet Drought Monitor we are at 11.65 
percent in exceptional drought, 56.13 percent in an extreme drought, 80.92 percent in severe drought, 
89.73 percent in moderate, 98.18 percent in abnormally dry conditions, and 1.82 percent that has no 
drought conditions are located in Adair County.  
 
*** The next report release will be on January 21st***  
  
  
 Central 
Alfalfa: Premium (Ask/Per Ton) 
Size   Qty Price Range Wtd.Avg. Freight/Used 
Large Square   0 275.00    F.OB 
  
 North Central 
Bermuda Grass: Good (Ask/Per Bale) 
Size   Qty Price Range Wtd.Avg. Freight/Used 
Large Round   0 125.00     F.O.B 
  
 Northeastern  
Alfalfa: Premium/Supreme (Trade/Per Ton) 
Size   Qty Price Range Wtd.Avg. Freight/Used 
Large Round   240 350.00  350.00  Delivered 
  
Prairie/Meadow: Premium (Ask/Per Bale) 
Size   Qty Price Range Wtd.Avg. Freight/Used 
Medium Round  0 125.00    Delivered 
  
Prairie/Meadow: Good (Ask/Per Bale) 
Size   Qty Price Range Wtd.Avg. Freight/Used 
Medium Round  0 90.00  90.00  Delivered 
  
 Northwestern  
Alfalfa: Supreme (Ask/Per Ton) 
Size   Qty Price Range Wtd.Avg. Freight/Used 
Large Square  0 380.00    Delivered 
  
Alfalfa: Good (Trade/Per Ton) 
Size   Qty Price Range Wtd.Avg. Freight/Used 
Large Square  440 310.00  310.00  Delivered 
  
Grass: Good (Trade/Per Ton) 



H-13 
 
 
 

Size   Qty Price Range Wtd.Avg. Freight/Used 
Large Round   240 260.00   260.00  Delivered 
  
Grass: Good (Ask/Per Ton) 
Size   Qty Price Range Wtd.Avg. Freight/Used 
Large Round   0 150.00   150.00  F.O.B 
  
 Southwest 
Milo: Good (Trade/Per Ton) 
Size   Qty Price Range Wtd.Avg. Freight/Used 
Large Round   210 175.00   175.00  Delivered 
  
 West 
Mixed Grass: Good/Premium (Ask/Per Ton) 
Size   Qty Price Range Wtd.Avg. Freight/Used 
Large Round   0 95.00    Delivered 

 



I-1 
 

  

 
 

 
 

 

 

AEMS Division Activities  

Meet our New Employees 

 

                                                               
Jones Quarcoo is our Enviromental     Annette Conley is our new  

Programs Specialist III and will be working    Optical Imaing Specialist. 

with our Poultry Program.  Welcome, Jones.    Welcome, Annettte. 

 
 

 AEMS, in coordination with the Animal Industry Services Division, attended stress management 

training focusing on agricultural staff and farmers.  The goal was to bring awareness to our field 

staff on signs of stress and first-aid response. 

 AEMS staff participated in the Oklahoma Water Research Advisory Board meeting, which 

reviews water research project proposals for funding through the Oklahoma Water Research 

Grants Program. 

 The 106 Grant semi-annual report was submitted to the Secretary of Energy and Environment. 

As of October 2022, OWRB has monitored 127 wells for FY23. 

 The AEMS AgPDES permits are still moving forward: 

 The CAFO general permit completed public comment on December 18, 2022. We are 

working with EPA to review and respond to all comments. 

 The Pesticide general permit was approved by EPA the 2nd week of January and posted for 

public comment January 17, 2023. 

  

Oklahoma Department of Agriculture, 

Food, and Forestry 

January 26, 2023 Board Report for the 

Agricultural Environmental  

Management Services Division  

October 24 – December 31, 2022 

 

 

http://oklahoma.gov/


I-2 
 

 The Stormwater Construction general permit was updated with EPA comments and returned 

for final review on January 10, 2023.Following their approval, the permit will be availabe for 

public comment. 

 AEMS participated in the Illinois River Watershed working group calls. 

 AEMS staff attended the two-day Oklahoma Governor’s Water Conference. 
 

AgPDES Permitting Activities 

 Number of AgPDES CAFO Authorizations this reporting period: 0 

 Number of AgPDES PGP Authorizations this reporting period: 0 

 Number of AgPDES CGP Authorizations this reporting period: 5 

 

Complaints and Inspections 

 

A summary of the complaints received and investigated plus all the inspections and technical assistance 

conducted by the ODAFF AEMS Staff for this reporting period: 

 

28 Complaints received and investigated this reporting period 

7 Complaints closed this reporting period 

Complaints Received - Breakdown 

Cattle - 2 

Swine – 2 

Poultry- 1 

Misc. Animal - 4 

Other – 3 

Animal Shelter - 1 

Pet Breeder- 15 

80 Year-to-date complaints received in FY 23  

28 Year-to-date complaints closed in FY 23  

113 LMFO/CAFO inspection and technical assistance 

330 Poultry inspections and technical assistance 

61 Pet Breeders/Shelters inspections and technical assistance 

 

CAFO and LMFO Activities - Month and Fiscal Year 2023 

 Oct 24 – Dec 31 2022 FY 23 Total 

Complaint or Compliance Follow-ups 17 36 

Annual Inspections 95 301 

Technical Assistance with Contacts 18 75 

Site Visit/Review – No contact made 13 42 

 

 

Poultry Activities – Month and Fiscal Year 2023 

 Oct 24 – Dec 31 2022 FY 23 Total 

Complaint or Compliance Follow-ups 6 14 

Annual Poultry Inspections 81 162 

Poultry Technical Assistance 249 701 

Site Visit/Review – No contact made  100 346 

Eucha-Spavinaw CNMP Written 13 53 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



I-3 
 

Pet Breeders Activities – Month and Fiscal Year 2023 

  Oct 24 – Dec 31 2022 FY 23 Total 

Complaint or Compliance Follow-ups 29 86 

Breeder/Shelter Technical Assistance provided 

w/owner/operator 
33 144 

Breeder/Shelter Annual Inspections 28 252 

Breeder/shelter Close out 0 7 

 

                     

                                  AGPDES – Month and Fiscal Year 2023 

 Oct 24-Dec 31 2022 FY 23 Total 

Complaint or Compliance Follow-ups 0 5 

Site Inspections (Annual or 

Compliance follow-up  
4 17 

Technical Assistance provided with owner 

/operator 
4 28 

 
                      Composting Activities – Month and Fiscal Year 2023 

 Oct 24 – Dec 31 2022 FY 23 Total 

Complaint or Compliance Follow-ups 8 22 

Site Inspections (Annual or 

Compliance follow-up) 

 

2 

 

16 

Technical Assistance provided with owner 

/operator 

 

1 

 

11 
 

  

 

  

                
 

      Respectively, 

 

 

Teena G. Gunter 

  AEMS Division 

540

120

67

59

8
286 116

36

15

6
73

172

Current FY 23 AEMS Numbers
PFOs

Swine LMFO

Swine AFOs

Other CAFOs

Lic. Compost Facilities

Private PWAs

Commercial PWAs

AgPDES CAFO GPs

AgPDES PGPs

AgPDES CGPs

Shelters

Pet Breeders



J-1  

BEFORE THE STATE BOARD OF AGRICULTURE 
OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, FOOD, AND FORESTRY 

JANUARY 2023 BOARD REPORT 
REGARDING NOVEMBER 14, 2022 THROUGH JANUARY 8, 2023 

ACTIVITIES OF THE 
OFFICE OF GENERAL COUNSEL 

 
 

AMOUNT OF ADMINISTRATIVE FINES COLLECTED: 
 

Amount to Date (2023) Amount of Fines for this 
Board Meeting 

$0.00 $10,000 
$207,400.00 2022 
$57,475.00 2021 Total (5/31-

12/31/2021) 
 
 

CONTRACTS REVIEWED OR DRAFTED (124): 
  

Marketing: 19 
CPS: 3 
Forestry: 92 
AIS: 5 
Admin: 3 
OGC:1 
Inv. Serv: 1 

 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING PROCEEDINGS: 
 

Total Number of Open Cases: 79 
Total Number of New Cases: 17 
Total Number of Cases Closed: 0 
NOVs Sent: 24 

 
 

OTHER ACTIONS AND PROCEEDINGS: 
 

Kirk Marshall v. ODAFF, Oklahoma County District Court Case No. CJ-2020-1347: 
Petition served. Time period tolled by Supreme Court Order until May 15, 2020. Answer 
drafted and prepared for filing. Application for Injunction Denied. Answer filed. Hearing 
held. Amended Petition filed by Plaintiff. Answer to Amended Petition filed. District Court 
Order AFFIRMED by Court of Civil Appeals. ODAFF Amended Motion to Dismiss 
pending. 



J-2  

Laura Garrison v. State of Oklahoma, ex rel. Oklahoma Department of Agriculture 
Food and Forestry, Pittsburg County District Court, Case No. CJ-2020-111: Lawsuit 
involves vehicle accident between plaintiff and ODAFF employee. Attorney General’s 
Office is handling this claim. 
Upton's Naturals Co v. Stitt and Arthur, District Court, W.D. Oklahoma, Case No. 5:20-
cv-00938: Lawsuit against Governor Stitt and Secretary Arthur in their professional 
capacities. Upton’s Naturals challenges a state law that prohibits food manufacturers from 
using terms like "hot dogs," "burgers," or "bacon" on labeling for meat-free products. The 
Attorney General’s Office is handling this claim. 
William Grossman v. Lori Howard et al., Cherokee County District Court, Case No. CJ-
2020-111: Lawsuit filed on the agency and Forestry Services requesting damages for a car 
wreck that occurred during a prescribed burn. The prescribed burn was not performed by 
ODAFF and the agency was not involved with the circumstances. The Attorney General’s 
Office is handling this claim. 
Spring Creek Coalition v. ODAFF and Trong, Cherokee County Case Number CJ-2021-
29: Petition seeking declaratory and injunctive relief. Answer filed.  
Spring Creek Coalition v. ODAFF and Phan, et al., Delaware County Case Number CJ-
2021-33: Petition seeking declaratory and injunctive relief. Answer filed. Discovery 
ongoing. Responded to Motion for Summary. Motion to Dismiss filed. Hearing set January 
20, 2023 

 
 

MEETINGS: 
 

Date Activity 
November 14, 2022 Open Records/Open Meetings 
November 16, 2022 USDA Civil Rights Cases webinar 
November 16, 2022 OGC/HR 
November 21, 2022 OGC/OHRC HR meeting 
November 23, 2022 OGC/Investigative Services HR Meeting 
November 23, 2022 OGC/HR 
November 24, 2022 OGC/Administrative Services 
November 29, 2022 Director’s Meeting 
December 2, 2022 Oklahoma Wheat Commission 
December 2, 2022 OBA Environmental Law Section 
December 5, 2022 Directors Meeting 
December 6, 2022 Nutrient Management Plan Technical Working Group 
December 6, 2022 CPS annual meeting 
December 6, 2022 OBA Legislative Monitoring Committee 
December 6, 2022 OBA GALPS 
December 7, 2022 Governor’s Water Conference 
December 7, 2022 State Board of Agriculture 
December 8, 2022 Governor’s Water Conference 
December 8, 2022 OGC Docket 
December 8, 2022 Illinois River Technical Group 



J-3  

December 9, 2022 OBA GALPS annual CLE 
December 12, 2022 Directors Meeting 
December 12, 2022 Montana Grain Association 
December 13, 2022 ODAFF/EPA CGP 
December 21, 2022 ODAFF/EPA monthly 
December 29, 2022 Commissioners of Land Office 
January 3, 2023 OBA GALPS monthly 
January 3, 2023 EPA/Ag WOTUS briefing 
January 3, 2023 EPA/State and Local Government WOTUS briefing 
January 5, 2023 Emergency Drought Commission 

 
 

RULE ACTIVITIES: 
 

Chapter 17. Water Quality (Emergency FY 2023):  Emergency rules were adopted 
by the Board on September 15, 2022 and approved by the Governor on October 20, 
2022. Emergency rule document was filed and rules became effective on October 20, 
2022.  
Chapter 40. Market Development (Emergency FY 2023):  Emergency rules were 
adopted by the Board on July 27, 2022 and approved by the Governor on August 10, 
2022. Emergency rule document was filed and rules became effective on August 10, 
2022. 
Chapter 1.  Administrative Operations (Permanent FY 2023):  Prepared notice of 
rulemaking intent, rule impact statement, and rule text for proposed rule amendment; 
submitted rulemakings to Governor's office, Oklahoma Secretary of Agriculture, and 
Office of Administrative Rules; and conducted public hearing on January 4, 2023. 
Chapter 2.  Fees (Permanent FY 2023):  Prepared notice of rulemaking intent, rule 
impact statement, and rule text for proposed rule amendment; submitted rulemakings 
to Governor's office, Oklahoma Secretary of Agriculture, and Office of 
Administrative Rules; and conducted public hearing on January 4, 2023. 
Chapter 10. Agricultural Products (Permanent FY 2023):  Prepared notice of 
rulemaking intent, rule impact statement, and rule text for proposed rule amendment; 
submitted rulemakings to Governor's office, Oklahoma Secretary of Agriculture, and 
Office of Administrative Rules; and conducted public hearing on January 4, 2023. 
Chapter 15. Animal Industry (Permanent FY 2023):  Prepared notice of 
rulemaking intent, rule impact statement, and rule text for proposed rule amendment; 
submitted rulemakings to Governor's office, Oklahoma Secretary of Agriculture, and 
Office of Administrative Rules; and conducted public hearing on January 4, 2023.  
Chapter 17. Water Quality (Permanent FY 2023):  Prepared notice of rulemaking 
intent, rule impact statement, and rule text for proposed rule amendment; submitted 
rulemakings to Governor's office, Oklahoma Secretary of Agriculture, and Office of 
Administrative Rules; and conducted public hearing on January 4, 2023. 
Chapter 20. Forestry (Permanent FY 2023):  Prepared notice of rulemaking intent, 
rule impact statement, and rule text for proposed rule amendment; submitted 



J-4  

rulemakings to Governor's office, Oklahoma Secretary of Agriculture, and Office of 
Administrative Rules; and conducted public hearing on January 4, 2023. 
Chapter 30. Consumer Protection (Permanent FY 2023):  Prepared notice of 
rulemaking intent, rule impact statement, and rule text for proposed rule amendment; 
submitted rulemakings to Governor's office, Oklahoma Secretary of Agriculture, and 
Office of Administrative Rules; and conducted public hearing on January 4, 2023. 
Chapter 37. Food Safety (Permanent FY 2023):  Prepared notice of rulemaking 
intent, rule impact statement, and rule text for proposed rule amendment; submitted 
rulemakings to Governor's office, Oklahoma Secretary of Agriculture, and Office of 
Administrative Rules; and conducted public hearing on January 4, 2023. 
Chapter 40. Market Development (Permanent FY 2023):  Prepared notice of 
rulemaking intent, rule impact statement, and rule text for proposed rule amendment; 
submitted rulemakings to Governor's office, Oklahoma Secretary of Agriculture, and 
Office of Administrative Rules; and conducted public hearing on January 4, 2023. 
Chapter 44. AgPDES (Permanent FY 2023):  Prepared notice of rulemaking intent, 
rule impact statement, and rule text for proposed rule amendment; submitted 
rulemakings to Governor's office, Oklahoma Secretary of Agriculture, and Office of 
Administrative Rules; and conducted public hearing on January 4, 2023. 
Chapter 50. Aquaculture (Permanent FY 2023):  Prepared notice of rulemaking 
intent, rule impact statement, and rule text for proposed rule amendment; submitted 
rulemakings to Governor's office, Oklahoma Secretary of Agriculture, and Office of 
Administrative Rules; and conducted public hearing on January 4, 2023. 
Chapter 55. Commercial Pet Breeders and Animal Shelters (Permanent FY 
2023):  Prepared notice of rulemaking intent, rule impact statement, and rule text for 
proposed rule amendment; submitted rulemakings to Governor's office, Oklahoma 
Secretary of Agriculture, and Office of Administrative Rules; and conducted public 
hearing on January 4, 2023. 

OHRC 
Chapter 1. Commission Powers and Jurisdiction (Permanent FY 2023):  Prepared 
notice of rulemaking intent, rule impact statement, and rule text for proposed rule 
amendment; submitted rulemakings to Governor's office, Oklahoma Secretary of 
Agriculture, and Office of Administrative Rules; and conducted public hearing on 
January 4, 2023. 
Chapter 10. Racing Organization (Permanent FY 2023):  Prepared notice of 
rulemaking intent, rule impact statement, and rule text for proposed rule amendment; 
submitted rulemakings to Governor's office, Oklahoma Secretary of Agriculture, and 
Office of Administrative Rules; and conducted public hearing on January 4, 2023. 
Chapter 15. Licensing (Permanent FY 2023):  Prepared notice of rulemaking 
intent, rule impact statement, and rule text for proposed rule amendment; submitted 
rulemakings to Governor's office, Oklahoma Secretary of Agriculture, and Office of 
Administrative Rules; and conducted public hearing on January 4, 2023. 
Chapter 20. Racing Officials and Racing Personnel (Permanent FY 2023):  
Prepared notice of rulemaking intent, rule impact statement, and rule text for 
proposed rule amendment; submitted rulemakings to Governor's office, Oklahoma 
Secretary of Agriculture, and Office of Administrative Rules; and conducted public 
hearing on January 4, 2023. 



J-5  

Chapter 25. Entries and Declarations (Permanent FY 2023):  Prepared notice of 
rulemaking intent, rule impact statement, and rule text for proposed rule amendment; 
submitted rulemakings to Governor's office, Oklahoma Secretary of Agriculture, and 
Office of Administrative Rules; and conducted public hearing on January 4, 2023. 
Chapter 30. Claiming Races (Permanent FY 2023):  Prepared notice of rulemaking 
intent, rule impact statement, and rule text for proposed rule amendment; submitted 
rulemakings to Governor's office, Oklahoma Secretary of Agriculture, and Office of 
Administrative Rules; and conducted public hearing on January 4, 2023. 
Chapter 35. General Conduct (Permanent FY 2023):  Prepared notice of 
rulemaking intent, rule impact statement, and rule text for proposed rule amendment; 
submitted rulemakings to Governor's office, Oklahoma Secretary of Agriculture, and 
Office of Administrative Rules; and conducted public hearing on January 4, 2023. 
Chapter 50. Human Substance Abuse Testing (Permanent FY 2023):  Prepared 
notice of rulemaking intent, rule impact statement, and rule text for proposed rule 
amendment; submitted rulemakings to Governor's office, Oklahoma Secretary of 
Agriculture, and Office of Administrative Rules; and conducted public hearing on 
January 4, 2023. 
Chapter 55. Fire Prevention and Security (Permanent FY 2023):  Prepared notice 
of rulemaking intent, rule impact statement, and rule text for proposed rule 
amendment; submitted rulemakings to Governor's office, Oklahoma Secretary of 
Agriculture, and Office of Administrative Rules; and conducted public hearing on 
January 4, 2023. 
Chapter 65. Pari-Mutuel Wagering (Permanent FY 2023):  Prepared notice of 
rulemaking intent, rule impact statement, and rule text for proposed rule amendment; 
submitted rulemakings to Governor's office, Oklahoma Secretary of Agriculture, and 
Office of Administrative Rules; and conducted public hearing on January 4, 2023. 
Chapter 70. Objections and Protests; Hearings and Appeals (Permanent FY 
2023):  Prepared notice of rulemaking intent, rule impact statement, and rule text for 
proposed rule amendment; submitted rulemakings to Governor's office, Oklahoma 
Secretary of Agriculture, and Office of Administrative Rules; and conducted public 
hearing on January 4, 2023. 
Chapter 75. Oklahoma-Bred Program (Permanent FY 2023):  Prepared notice of 
rulemaking intent, rule impact statement, and rule text for proposed rule amendment; 
submitted rulemakings to Governor's office, Oklahoma Secretary of Agriculture, and 
Office of Administrative Rules; and conducted public hearing on January 4, 2023. 

 
 

OPEN RECORDS REQUESTS (27): 
 

AEMS: 8 
CPS: 6, 4 
AIS: 5 
Forestry: 3 
Pet Breeders: 3 
Inv. Services: 2 

 



J-6  

 
OKLAHOMA HORSE RACING COMMISSION 

 
Litigation: Alfredo Gomez and Cruz Villafranco v. OHRC, Oklahoma County District 
Court Case No. CV-2020-430: Petition served. Response filed. Petitioners’ Motion for 
Partial Summary Judgment responded to. Pending hearing. 
Litigation: Oscar Nunez v. OHRC, Oklahoma County Case No. CV-2020-449: Petition 
filed and served. Answer filed. Reversed and remanded. Rehearing held. Motion to Modify 
District Court’s Order of November 10, 2020 hearing held. Further briefing ordered. Pending 
Court’s decision. 
Litigation: Miguel Pena v. OHRC, Oklahoma County District Court Case No. CV-2019-
179: Petition for Temporary Restraining Order and Petition for Injunction. Ex Parte TRO 
hearing held October 11, 2019. TRO entered. Amended Petition for TRO heard May 15, 
2020. TRO denied. Permanent injunction denied. Pending Motion to Dismiss. 
Litigation:  Jose Sanchez III, et al. V. Global Gaming, Heritage Place and OHRC, 
Oklahoma County District Court Case No. CJ-2020-2395: Petition for Temporary 
Restraining Order and Petition for Injunction. Ex Parte TRO hearing held May 26, 2020. 
TRO denied. Further action pending. 
Litigation: Sammy Howard v. OHRC, Oklahoma County District Court Case No. CV-
2020-1921. Petition served. Response filed. Briefs filed. Oral arguments held. Remanded for 
further proceedings. Order filed. Motion to Reconsider filed. Hearing reset by the Court to 
August 19, 2022. 
LITIGATION: Rogelio Marquez, Jr. V. OHRC, Oklahoma County District Court Case 
No. CJ-2021-3393. Petition filed. Injunction sought. Hearing held; Injunction denied. 
Pending further proceedings. (Trailing OHRC v. Heltzel) 
Litigation: Carlos Ruiz v. OHRC, Oklahoma County District Court Case No. CV-2021-
2591. Petition Served. Response filed. Record filed. Pending briefing. 
Litigation: Etniel Sanabria v. OHRC Tulsa County District Court Case No. CV-2022-
1899. Petition for Temporary Restraining Order and Petition for Injunction. Ex Parte TRO 
hearing held September21, 2022. TRO DENIED. OHRC Response and Motion to Dismiss 
filed. Motion to Disqualify Judge filed and heard. Case reassigned. OHRC Motion to 
Dismiss sustained. Motion to Vacate Order of Dismissal filed by Plaintiff. OHRC Response 
filed. Pending hearing. 
Prepare cases for presentation at Stewards Hearings 
Prepare cases for presentation in District Courts 
Provide discovery to opposing counsel and Respondents regarding various hearings 
Stewards Hearings at Remington Park 
Stewards Hearing at Will Rogers Downs 
Hearings in District Courts 
Prepare and file Response to Petition for Temporary Restraining Order and Petition for 
Injunction 
Prepare response to brief in support of Petition for Appeal 
Argue appeals at regular session of the Oklahoma Horse Racing Commission 
Discuss possible rule revisions/amendments with Executive Director 
Draft proposed rule revisions 
Advise Executive Director on extent of delegated authority 



J-7  

Discuss certain policy issues with Executive Director 
Review communication from Respondents’ counsel in various cases 
OHRC regular meeting 
Supervise and direct OHRC legal intern 
Attend ARCI Rules Committee meeting 
Consult with OHRC regarding gaming issues 
Attend briefings and meetings regarding Horse Racing Integrity and Safety Act (HISA) 
Consult with concerned constituents regarding HISA 
Respond to open records requests 
Consult and advise on HR issues 
 
 

OTHER ACTIVITIES: 
 
Phone calls or emails with the public: 19 
Assistance to industry: 8 
Assistance to AEMS: 16 
Assistance to CPS: 14 
Assistance to Wildlife Services: 1 
Assistance to Forestry: 5 
Assistance to AIS: 9 
Assistance to Admin: 7 
Assistance to Market Development: 3 
Assistance to other state agencies: 10 
Assistance to federal agencies: 0 
Assistance to Food Safety: 5 
Assistance to NASS: 0 
Assistance to Executive Office: 8 
Assistance to Lab: 6 
Assistance to Investigative Services: 1 
Assistance to Legislature: 4 
Assistance to Attorney General: 0 
 
 

 
 

  Respectfully Submitted,  
  

         
 
        Teena G. Gunter  
        General Counsel  



K-1  
  

FOOD SAFETY REPORT DECEMBER 2022  
  

POULTRY& EGG GRADING, PRODUCE AND ORGANIC SECTION 
  
Poultry and Egg Section 
In Broken Bow at Tyson Foods, USDA poultry grading was performed by ODAFF inspectors on 
2,058,802 pounds of poultry – boneless/skinless leg meat & bone in/skin on parts and ground 
meat. ODAFF inspectors provided USDA Shell Egg grading on 82,402 dozen eggs at Cal-Maine 
Foods Inc. at Sulphur. ODAFF inspectors provided USDA poultry grading services on poultry 
products being shipped from National Steak & Poultry Quality Meats in Owasso. ODAFF 
inspectors also provided USDA poultry grading services on poultry products being shipped from 
OK Foods in Muldrow & Heavener. Child Nutrition Labeling Program Reviews were conducted 
under the USDA cooperative agreement at OK Foods in Oklahoma City and Mitchell’s Sausage 
Rolls in Claremore. Also; routine egg quality inspections under the Oklahoma egg law were 
conducted. 
 
Organic Foods Section 
Organic inspectors completed compliance and certification inspections at: 

• Nine organic crop producers 
• Two organic livestock producers 
• Three organic processors 
• Collected six organic samples 
• Eleven retail organic inspections 
• The organic section had requests for 3,000 certified organic stickers from Oklahoma 

Certified Organic producers and processors, which display the stickers on all products 
sold, labeled, or represented as Organic across the United States. The organic section had 
5 requests for organic crop applications, 2 requests for organic livestock applications and 
2 requests for organic processing applications. 
 

Produce Safety Section 
• Justin McConaghy, Bryan Buchwald and Jamie Allen-Hitt attended the NASDA Produce 

Safety Consortium in Phoenix, AZ 
• Shared information about the law and growing safe produce at an OSU Food Safety class 
• Assisted farms with 1 on-site technical assistance and 6 remote technical assistances 
• Contacted 13 farms to determine coverage/exemption under the Produce Safety Rule 
• Conducted 1 farm inspection 
• Regular conference calls with TX, LA, AR, NM, MO, MS 
• AFDO Produce Safety Committee sessions  
• Sent an e-mail newsletter to inform farms of the latest information on Produce Safety   

 
Homemade Food Freedom Act 

• Received 2 complaints on the Homemade Food Freedom Act. 
• Sent 1 warning letter.  
• Meat Compliance helped with 2 complaints.  
• Taught at one Homemade Food Freedom Act class with OSU.  
• One case was sent to legal counsel.  



K-2  
  

Oklahoma Meat Inspection Services                                                                           
Investigations and Compliance Activities 

                                                           
Planned Compliance Reviews 13 

Random Compliance Reviews 159 

Person-to-Person Contacts 62 

Special Investigations and/or Projects 04 

Reports of Apparent Violations 04 

Detentions 00 

Consumer Complaints 05 

Verbal Warnings Issued 09 

Letters of Warning Issued 04 

Samples Submitted to Lab for Analysis 00 

Accident Investigations 00 

Administrative Procedures Act 01  ENID PACK 

  

See details below:  
ACCIDENT LOCATION  ANIMAL/PRODUCT  DISPOSITION  

HWY 169 S. Delaware, 
Oklahoma 

42443 pounds of fresh, 
uncured pork hams 

Whole load was voluntary 
destroyed took to Vian, OK 
Landfill 

 
Highlighted Activities 

 
During the course of Random Reviews and anonymous Consumer Complaints, Compliance and 
Investigation Services sent out Four (4) Letter of Warning for Violations of the Oklahoma 
Meat/Poultry Inspection Act and/or State Statutes.     

 
 

 
 
 
 
 



K-3  
  

MEAT INSPECTION 
Number of Cattle 732 

Total Beef Condemned 5,120 lbs 
(Beef heads & livers)  

Number of Swine 68 
Total Pork Condemned 910 lbs 

(Pork heads & livers)  
Number of Sheep and Goats 3,686 

Total Condemned 0 lbs 
  

Number of Rabbits 0 
Total Condemnations 0 lbs 

  
Number of Exotic Deer 0 
Total Condemnations 0 lbs 

  
TOTAL MEAT INSPECTED 934,600 lbs 

PROCESSED MEAT INSPECTED 
Processed Red Meat 602,760 lbs. 
Condemned on Reinspection 0 lbs 
  
Poultry (Portions) 198,572 lbs 
Condemned on Reinspection 0 lbs 
  
Rabbit Meat 0 
Condemned on Reinspection 0 lbs 
  
Exotic Deer Meat 0 
Condemned on Reinspection 0 lbs 
  
TOTAL PROCESSED MEAT 
INSPECTED 

 
801,332 lbs 

 
Meat Sample activity: 
32     Samples Submitted for Analysis                                                  0 Samples Not Analyzed 
32    Samples Analyzed                                                                         0  Samples Non-Compliant 
32    Samples Negative Analysis 
 
 
Dec. 8th – 9th 
We interviewed for 2 positions in the Southeast district and 1 position in the Northwest district 
starting date will be Jan. 3rd. 

 



K-4  
  

DAIRY SECTION 
  
Dairy staff conducted routine inspections at dairy plants and farms, conducted dairy plant 
equipment checks and collected ice cream samples, raw milk and retail milk and milk products 
samples and container samples for laboratory analysis.  
 
Dairy Services staff continues to sample ice cream products at Blue Bell in Broken Arrow 
related to the Listeria monocytogenes product contamination and outbreak in 2015.  Since 
starting back up in September of 2015, all samples collected and analyzed by ODAFF have been 
negative for Listeria monocytogenes. 
 
Dairy Services staff continues to sample Swans Dairy for campylobacter and Listeria 
Monocytogenes. Samples where all negative. 
 
Dairy Services staff recently completed three surveys.  The surveys resulted in passing scores for 
sanitation and enforcement compliance.  These passing scores are listed on FDA's Interstate Milk 
Shippers List website and allows for the interstate shipment of milk produced by Oklahoma dairy 
farmers 
 
 
Sincerely,  
  

  
  
Scott Yates 
Director of Food Safety    

  



L-1 
 

Communications 

Compiled 1/12/23 

 

Social Media Highlights 

 

ODAFF Recognizes National Livestock Judging 
Champions – Dec. 6 | For the first time in history, 
livestock judging teams from an Oklahoma high 
school, junior college and senior college claimed 
victory at the national championships.  

Congratulations to Tuttle FFA, the NOC Livestock 
Judging Team, and the Oklahoma State University - 
Livestock Judging Team for their success. 
 

Christmas Videos | Throughout December, ODAFF 
produced five Christmas-themed videos highlighting 
Oklahoma agriculture. With help from local business 
owners and producers, the videos showcased an 
Oklahoma Christmas Tree Farm, promoted Oklahoma 
beef, pork, and wheat, and we even got a special 
appearance from Santa Claus as he helped Dr. Hall 
provide his Christmas message. 

 
Cattlemen’s Congress Visit w/Gov. Stitt – Jan. 5 | The third annual 
Cattlemen's Congress returned to OKC Dec. 31-Jan. 14. Governor Kevin 
Stitt and Secretary Blayne Arthur expressed their support together on 
Jan. 5. 

This year, exhibitors traveled from over 40 states across the nation to 
take part in the 15-day event.  
 
 

Sec. Arthur Sworn in For Second Term – Jan. 9 | Surrounded by 
family and friends, Blayne Arthur was sworn in Monday for her 
second term as Oklahoma Secretary of Agriculture. 

 

 

 



L-2 
 

Social Media Impact 

 

Facebook 
21,250 followers 
Since Dec. 8, 2022: 

-Posts and content reached 60,369 users (up 52.7% vs. previous period) 
-105 new Facebook users have liked the ODAFF page (up 8.2% vs. previous period) 

 

Instagram 
2,811 followers 
Since Dec. 8, 2022: 

 -Posts and content reached 7,166 users (down 1.4% vs. previous period) 
 -69 new Instagram users have followed the account (up 13.1% vs. previous period) 

 

News & Notes 

Ag Youth Council | AYC members learned how Oklahoma agriculture can help make the holiday 
season better by visiting a Christmas Tree Farm and a local candy business. They also heard 
from the Oklahoma Beef Council and Oklahoma Agritourism before finishing the day off with a 
gingerbread house competition. All festivities were coordinated by Audrey Ochsner and Troy 
Marshall. 

 

New WOTUS Rule | The EPA established a new WOTUS rule on Dec. 30, 2022, which prompted 
Sec. Arthur to issue a statement chiding the EPA. Arthur said in part, “…We believe this 
illustrates a lack of regard for those that are doing the work to feed our nation and world.” 

 

Emergency Drought Commission | The Emergency Drought Commission met Jan. 5, 2023, and 
directed all remaining funds allocated to the Commission. The funding directed by the 
Commission totaled approximately $5 million that will be distributed by the Oklahoma 
Conservation Commission through the existing Cost-Share Program. 

 
 



1  

JANUARY 26, 2023 BOARD MEETING 
 

PURCHASES/CONTRACTS 
 

 
Administrative Services 
FY23 – Purchase of new agency vehicles - $450,000 
These vehicles are needed to replace aging fleet vehicles. Replacement of these vehicles are 
critical to the agency mission and if not replaced may put the employee and public at greater 
risk. 
 
 
Animal Industry Services 

$32,106 - Cooperative Agreement for US Swine Health Improvement Plan (SHIP) funds for 
April 2023 through March 2024. Funding will support the OSA Coordinator to conduct 
outreach to the swine industry in Oklahoma to encourage enrollment and certification within 
the US SHIP. It will support travel for the OSA Coordinator to participate as a voting member 
at the 2023 Annual US SHIP House of Delegation meeting.  

 
 

Consumer Protection Services 
Repair of large vehicle scale truck bed - $9,800.00 

 
 
Food Safety Services 
NTT – $6,138.41 
The Oklahoma Department of Agriculture, Food & Forestry has a Federal Trust Cooperative Agreement 
with the United States Department of Agriculture, Agricultural Marketing Service.  The Oklahoma 
Department of Agriculture, Food & Forestry Poultry Services has brought in a significant amount of 
revenue in the past several years and continues to bring in this revenue from this program. With the 
significant amount of revenue this program is bringing into the ODAFF; buying equipment instead of 
renting would allow us to utilize these funds to improve our infrastructure and not be tied into a long 
term rental agreement. 
 
 (2) Dell Latitude 7430     $1,491.82 each  $2,983.64.   (2) 
 (1)Dell Premier Active Pen      $    62.85.    (1) 
 (1)Standard Dell Precision 7670     $2,341.71    (1) 

 
 
 
Forestry Services 
FY 24- $15,000 
Purchase of shipping bags used to distribute seedlings to landowners in Oklahoma and 
surrounding states. Bags are specifically designed with paraffin lining to retain moisture 
during the shipping process thereby maintaining seedling quality.  Justification: without 
bags, there is no way to deliver seedlings to customers. 



2  

FY24 - $25,000  
Renewal of agreement/membership with Western Gulf Forest Tree Improvement Cooperative 
(WGTIP).  Justification: The agreement with Western Gulf Forest Tree Improvement is 
essential in helping FTIC receive new information for improving genetic research for 
Oklahoma and to get tree breeding information from other WGTIP partners. 
 
FY24 - $15,000 
Renewal of agreement/membership with Auburn Nursery Cooperative (contingent upon 
Federal Forest Stewardship grant allocation). It is essential that FRC have the agreement with 
Auburn Nursery Cooperative to be able to use certain chemicals under their license when 
fumigating fields.  Justification:  without this membership, the cost to fumigate, which is 
needed to produce tree and shrub seedlings, would increase to more than $100,000.   
 
FY24 - $50,000 
Fumigation to control insects, disease pathogens and weed seed, like nutgrass, in production 
fields at Forest Regeneration Center in Goldsby.  Justification: without fumigation control, 
insects, weeds, and disease issues would result in poor quality seedlings and increased cost.    
 
FY24 – $15,000 
Pesticides for seedling production at the Forest Regeneration Center and Forest Tree 
Improvement Center (FTIC).  Justification: without pesticides seed, seedlings quality and 
production would decrease because of problems with insects, fungus, and weeds. 
 
FY24 – $15,000 
Tree and shrub seed for use at the Forest Regeneration Center and Forest Tree Improvement 
Center. OFS personnel collect most seed used, but some varieties are more economically 
feasible to purchase seed than to send crews out to collect it.  Justification: without this 
purchase, we would be more restricted on what we could grow and either seedling production 
would be reduced, costs would be increased, or both.   
 
FY24- $18,000 
Pinecone collection at FTIC seed orchard in Idabel is vital to enhanced genetics and vital to 
our conservation seedling program. They provide the best genetically suited pine trees for 
Oklahoma landowners. Contracting experienced labor to collect seeds is required due to lack 
of personnel. Justification: without this purchase, pinecone seed would not be collected, and 
the seedling program would be severely limited. 
 
FY24- $30,000 
Contract harvesting services is needed by qualified, trained workers to lift 3 million 
seedlings.  Each year, the Forest Regeneration Center (FRC) delivers up to 3 million 
seedlings to Oklahomans for conservation planting.  To meet the planting demands of 
landowners throughout the state, a steady supply of seedlings is required. To make sure our 
customers have quality, healthy seedlings, delivered on schedule, a trained harvesting crew is 
required to lift these seedlings. Some of the harvesting will be completed by FRC staff. 
However, we no longer have the inmate crews that we used in the past. Justification: without 
this purchase, we will not be able to lift the seedlings in a timely manner and we will fail to 
meet the delivery requirements for Oklahoma customers.  
 



3  

FY24- $9,500  
Purchase sulfur 90% Pastille for Forest Regeneration Center. The sulfur is needed to keep the 
soil pH between 5 and 6.5 for all the conservation seedlings grown at FRC which are sold to 
landowners throughout Oklahoma and the nation.  Without this purchase, the soil will not 
meet the requirements to grow the seedlings and the seedlings will not survive for their 
intended use.      

 
FY24 $9,500  
Purchase soil media to grow containerized seedlings at the Forest Regeneration Center and 
Forest Tree Improvement Center.  Soil media is needed to grow seedlings for conservation 
plantings such as wetland restoration and reforestation projects. Landowners with challenging 
planting sites request container seedlings and without the soil media, OFS would not be able to 
provide them. 

 
FY 24- $15,000  
Purchase of tree seedling containers for FRC and FTIC.  Container cells and trays will be 
used to grow seedlings for conservation plantings such as wetland restoration and forest 
mitigation sites. Container seedlings are requested by customers who face more challenges on 
their planting sites. Without our containerized seedling options, these customers would have 
failure with their conservation plantings.  
 
FY24 - $14,000  
Aerial spray pesticide application to the seed production pine tree orchards.  OFS needs to spray 
the cone crop in our genetically improved pine tree orchards.  This year there was a noticeable 
decrease in embryotic-material filled seed in the cones collected at the orchards.  This is a result 
of the presence of cone worms/seed insects.  Aerial application of pesticide spray to the 
orchards will control these pests (cone worms/seed bugs).  Justification: Without this 
purchase, there will be a continued decline in the production of genetically-improved seed. 

 
      FY24 - $9,000  

Equipment Rental for Forest Tree Improvement Center. Rent articulating and tracks boom 
lifts to collect pinecones at the Forest Tree Improvement Center. Seed collection is required to 
grow conservation seedlings and conduct genetic testing. Justification: Without the lifts, seed 
collection from the seed orchard would not be possible. 
 
 FY 23- $10,000 
 Replace existing sewer line between the Forest Regeneration Center office building and its 
septic tank. The existing line is over 30 years old and has failed in multiple places, causing 
dips in the line and regular sewage backups.  Justification: Without a new sewer line, the 
office will not have a way to dispose of sewage. 
 
FY24 - $24,000 
Local & Long-Distance Telephone service for FRC, FTIC, and Community Fire Offices 
necessary for communication to the public and governmental agencies.  Justification:  required 
for continuity in communication of operations at these office complexes.   
 
 
 



4  

FY24 - $42,000 
Electrical Service for Community Fire, FRC and FTIC offices located in Goldsby and Idabel.  
Justification: Necessary for continuity of operations at these office complexes.   
 
FY24 - $12,000 
Propane for FRC and Community Fire Headquarters office & FTIC in Idabel.  Justification:  
Necessary for continuity of operations at office complexes.   
 
FY24 - $10,000 
Oklahoma Tax Commission for Titles and Tire Fee associated with the Firefighter Property 
Program.  Justification: OFS cannot transfer ownership of these vehicles to fire departments 
without a title.  These vehicles are converted to firefighting equipment by the receiving fire 
department and then used to protect the lives and property of the citizens of Oklahoma. 
Purchase firefighting equipment and clothing for resale to Rural Fire Departments through the 
Revolving Equipment Fund.  This program allows firefighters to buy equipment and personal 
protective equipment at a reduced cost.  Justification: without this approval and this 
program, rural fire department costs to purchase necessary equipment and supplies  
would increase. 
 
FY 24- $20,000  
Phone/internet for the Community Fire, FRC and FTIC.  Justification:  Without phone 
service, FRC and Rural Fire would not be able to communicate with landowners and fire 
coordinators, which would significantly decrease customer service and service to the public.   
 
FY24 - $7,000 
Postage for meter at FRC and Community Fire Headquarters. Justification: required to send 
information via USPS to customers.   
 
FY24 - $19,000 
Electric, phone/internet, utilities (Propane, Natural Gas, Water, Trash) for the NE Area’s Jay 
District Office, Rose Tower, Area HQ Complex, and Sallisaw District Office.  Justification:  
Necessary expenditure to maintain emergency response radio communications for the NE Area. 
 
FY24- $50,000 
The NE Area needs the above amount for Equipment & repair of mowers, dozers, trailers, & 
office buildings. During fire season, the NE area needs this money when our dozers break down 
to continue fighting fire. This money will also go toward the upkeep of our lawnmowers, 
trailers, and office buildings at (3) locations. Maintenance for Tahlequah, Sallisaw, & Jay, 
Oklahoma. Justification: Without this money, we will be unable to fight fire and keep our 
equipment in good working order. 
 
FY24 - $50,000 
Purchase firefighting personal protective equipment for OFS employees from the Department 
of Defense E-Mall.  Justification:  required to supply OFS firefighters with mandatory personal 
protective equipment (PPE) and other equipment through. 
 
 
 



5  

FY24 - $150,000 
For use of P-Cards to repair firefighting equipment including but not limited to dozers, Bambi 
buckets, UTVs and slip-on firefighting units.  These purchases will be for repairs more than 
$5,000 when a piece of equipment has significant issues and requires Board approval.   
Justification:  This will allow the equipment to be repaired quickly after completion of the 
bidding process and back in service for fire management activities.   
 
FY24 - $150,000 
For use of Comdata Cards to repair firefighting equipment including but not limited to 
transports, engines, pickups, and other rolling stock.  These purchases will be for repairs more 
than $5000 when a piece of equipment has significant issues and requires Board approval.  
Justification: This will allow the equipment to be repaired quickly after completion of the 
bidding process and back in service for fire management activities. 
 
FY24 - $25,000 
Uniforms for OFS employees.  OFS employees are required for recognition by the public.  
Full allotments are purchased for new employees.  Justification:  Existing employees are 
provided an annual allotment of uniforms to replace worn and old uniforms. OFS employees 
provide a vital public safety function, requiring public recognition of our personnel.  (Federal 
& State Funds) 
 
FY24- $11,250 
Land Lease-Commercial BB Office & Land Lease-land only SE Complex Justification:  
This is the space where office is located & land behind office. 
 
FY24- $13,500 
Electricity - SE Area office; SE Area complex; Antler’s complex; Carter Tower complex; Sobol 
Tower repeater; Tom Tower repeater; Security lights. Justification:  Necessary expenditure to 
maintain emergency response radio communications for the SE Area. 
 
FY24- $7,700 
Telecommunications-phone/internet/Long Distance service for SE Area Complex; Antlers 
Complex; and cell phone services for SE Area. Justification:  Necessary continuity of 
operations & to maintain emergency response for the SE Area  
 
FY24- $7,600 
Utility-water, sewer, propane, natural gas, trash service for SE Area complex; Antler’s 
complex; Carter Tower complex; Justification: Necessary continuity of operations & to 
maintain emergency response for the SE Area  

 
FY24- $100,000 
Equipment Repair - maintenance and repair of all SE Area equipment including mowers, 
dozers, trailers, tractors, chain saws, blowers, and building maintenance/repair at all SE Area 
facilities; Justification: This will allow the equipment to be repaired quickly after completion 
of the bidding process and back in service for fire management activities. 
 
 
 



6  

FY24- $100,000 
Radio Repair - radio repair for any handheld radio, battery, or mobile radio used by SE Area 
personnel for all firefighting, emergency, and prescribed burn services; Justification:  
Necessary expenditure to maintain emergency response radio communications for the SE Area. 
This will allow the equipment to be repaired quickly after completion of the bidding process 
and back in service for fire management activities. 
 
 
Laboratory Services 
FY23 - $13,117.20 Service Contract  
Purchase of one year service maintenance contract renewal for dual HPLC System LC 1260 
Infinity ll dual system. (To be purchased by Consumer Protection Services). 
 
 
Market Development Services 
FY2023 – Healthy Food Financing Grant – Jackson Angus Beef - $10,000.00 
 
FY2023 – 32 hotel rooms x 2 days (at the state per diem rate) - Ag in the Classroom Teacher 
Road Trip - $6,272.00 
 
FY2023 – Purchase of Oklahoma Grown Farmers Market bags for OK Grown Markets – 
cost share basis - $23,000.00 
 
FY2023 – Simple Snacks with Farm Fresh Food videos – videographer – Funded entirely 
by Specialty Crop Block Grant Funding - $20,000.00 
 
FY2023 – Wine Consumer Segmentation Research Project – TasteAdvisor – Funded 
entirely by Viticulture and Enology Revolving Grant Funding - $14,000.00 
 




























































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































	Agenda
	Minutes
	Tab A - Administrative Services
	Tab B - Laboratory Services
	Tab C - Forestry Services
	Tab D - CPS
	Tab E - Animal Industry
	Tab F - Wildlife Services
	Tab G - Statistics
	Tab H - Market Development
	Tab I - AEMS
	Tab J - Office of General Counsel
	Tab K - Food Safety
	Tab L - Communications
	Purchasing
	Stipulations of Approval of Cases
	Stipulations Tab 1 - CPS - Ag Solutions LLC
	Stipulations Tab 2 - CPS - Arnett Grain & Feed
	Stipulations Tab 3 - CPS - Central Custom Ag Aviation
	Stipulations Tab 4 - CPS - Landmark Outdoor Services
	Stipulations Tab 5 - CPS - Orkin LLC
	Stipulations Tab 6 - CPS - Rowdy Lawns
	Stipulaations Tab 7 - CPS - Texoma Ag LLC
	Stipulations Tab 8 - CPS - Martin Williams
	Consent Tab 1 - CPS - Deterding Aerial
	Consent Tab 2 - CPS - Eckles Aircraft LLC
	Consent Tab 3 - CPS - Escott Aerial Spraying
	Permanent Rules Tab 1 - Administrative Operations
	Permanent Rules Tab 2 - Fees
	Permanent Rules Tab 3 - Agricultural Products
	Permanent Rules Tab 4 - Animal Industry
	Permanent Rules Tab 5 - Water Quality
	Permanent Rules Tab 6 - Forestry
	Permanent Rules Tab 7 - Consumer Protection
	Permanent Rules Tab 8 - Food Safety
	Permanent Rules Tab 9 - Market Development
	Permanent Rules Tab 10 - Agriculture Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
	Permanentn Rules Tab 11 - Aquaculture
	Permanent Rules Tab 12 - Commerical Pet Breeders and Animal Shelters



